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INTRODUCTION
General

This report contains references to yeaf320012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, which reptdseal years ending or ended January 31,
2014, February 1, 2013, February 3, 2012, Januarg@11, January 29, 2010, and January 30, 208pectvely. Our fiscal year ends on the
Friday closest to January 31, and each of the Visted will be or were 52-week years, with the eption of 2011 which consisted of
53 weeks. All of the discussion and analysis is teport should be read with, and is qualifiedsrentirety by, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes.

Solely for convenience, our trademarks adenames may appear in this report without ttee ®M symbol which is not intended to
indicate that we will not assert, to the fullestezt under applicable law, our rights or the righthese trademarks and tradenames.

Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Staements

We include "forward-looking statements"hiit the meaning of the federal securities lawsugtmut this report, particularly under the
headings "Business," "Management's Discussion aradyAis of Financial Condition and Results of Ofierss," and "Note 9—Commitments
and Contingencies," among others. You can idethi#ge statements because they are not limitedtorigial fact or they use words such as
"may," "will," "should," "could," "believe," "antipate," "project,” "plan," "expect," "estimate,'otecast,” "goal," "potential,” "opportunity,"
"intend," "will likely result,” or "will continueand similar expressions that concern our stratelgys, intentions or beliefs about future
occurrences or results. For example, all statenretating to our estimated and projected expenelitucash flows, results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity; our plans, obiees and expectations for future operations, ghoovtinitiatives; or the expected outcome or
effect of pending or threatened litigation or asdite forward-looking statements.

All forward-looking statements are subjectisks and uncertainties that may change atiamg, 50 our actual results may differ
materially from those that we expected. We deriamynof these statements from our operating budgetforecasts, which are based on
many detailed assumptions that we believe are nedd®. However, it is very difficult to predict tieffect of known factors, and we cannot
anticipate all factors that could affect our acteslults.

Important factors that could cause actesllts to differ materially from the expectatiompressed in our forwarkboking statements a
disclosed under "Risk Factors" in Part |, Iltem I &lsewhere in this document (including, withaenitation, in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements themselves and undehélagling "Critical Accounting Policies and EstingljeAll forward-looking statements
are qualified in their entirety by these and otteutionary statements that we make from time te fimour other SEC filings and public
communications. You should evaluate such statenieriee context of these risks and uncertaintiégese factors may not contain all of the
factors that are important to you. We cannot asgouethat we will realize the results or developitseme anticipate or, even if substantially
realized, that they will result in the consequermeaffect us in the way we expect. Forward-lookstatements are made only as of the date
hereof. We undertake no obligation to publicly upedar revise any forward-looking statement as alte$ new information, future events or
otherwise, except as otherwise required by law.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are the largest discount retailer inlinied States by number of stores, with 10,55rsttocated in 40 states as of March 1, 2013,
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwesterd eastern United States. We offer a broad safect merchandise, including
consumables, seasonal, home products and apparah&chandise includes high quality national bsaindm leading manufacturers, as v
as comparable quality private brand selections piittes at substantial discounts to national brawés offer our merchandise at everyday
low prices (typically $10 or less) through our cenient small-box locations, with selling space agarg approximately 7,300 square feet.

Our History

J.L. Turner founded our Company in 1939.as Turner and Son, Wholesale. We were incorpdragea Kentucky corporation under the
name J.L. Turner & Son, Inc. in 1955, when we open# first Dollar General store. We changed oum@ao Dollar General Corporation in
1968 and reincorporated in 1998 as a Tennesseeratigm. Our common stock was publicly traded fro®68 until July 2007, when we
merged with an entity controlled by investment faiadfiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L,Br KKR. In November 2009 our
common stock again became publicly traded.

Our Business Model

Our long history of profitable growth isuieded on a commitment to a relatively simple bussmaodel: providing a broad base of
customers with their basic everyday and househeddls, supplemented with a variety of general mexike items, at everyday low prices in
conveniently located, small-box stores. We configuavaluate the needs and demands of our custoamersnodify our merchandise
selections and pricing accordingly, while remainiogused on increasing profitability for our shaiglers.

Fiscal year 2012 represented ouf928onsecutive year of same-store sales growth. groisth, regardless of economic conditions,
suggests that we have a less cyclical model thast retailers and, we believe, is a result of oumelling value and convenience proposit

Our attractive store economics, includinmglatively low initial investment and simple, lawst operating model, have allowed us to
grow our store base to current levels, and prowuisignificant opportunities to continue our pralfie store growth strategy.

Compelling Value and Convenience Propositio Our ability to deliver highly competitive prie®n national brand and quality private
brand products in convenient locations and our &asgnd out” shopping format create a compellihgpping experience that distinguishes
us from other discount, convenience and drugsetaglers. Our slogan, "Save time. Save money. Edayy"' summarizes our appeal to
customers. We believe our ability to effectivelyider both value and convenience allows us to seddée small markets with limited
shopping alternatives, as well as to profitablyxistealongside larger retailers in more competitivarkets. Our compelling value and
convenience proposition is evidenced by the follapattributes of our business model:

. Convenient Locations.Our stores are conveniently located in a varétural, suburban and urban communities, currently
with approximately 70% serving communities with ptaions of less than 20,000. In more densely papdlareas, our small-
box stores typically serve the closely surroundirgghborhoods. The majority of our customers livihin three to five miles,
ora




10-minute drive, of our stores. Our close proximidycustomers drives customer loyalty and trip gty and makes us an
attractive alternative to large discount and otasge-box retail and grocery stores which are ofbeated farther away. Our
low-cost economic model enables us to serve magsawith fewer than 1,500 households.

. Time-Saving Shopping Experienc®e also provide customers with a highly convengopping experience. Our stores'
smaller size allows us to locate parking near thetfentrance. Our product offering includes mestassities, such as basic
packaged and refrigerated food and dairy prodetdgning supplies, paper products, and health aadth care items, as well
as greeting cards, party supplies, apparel, housswaardware and automotive supplies, among ot@enstypical store opens
at 8:00 a.m. and closes at 9:00 p.m. or 10:00 pa&ven days per week. Our convenient hours andlbmasichandise offering
allow our customers to fulfill their routine shoppirequirements and minimize their need to shopndisre.

. Everyday Low Prices on Quality Merchandis@ur research indicates that we offer a price athge over most food and drug
retailers and that our prices are highly compaetitiith even the largest discount retailers. Oulitgtio offer everyday low
prices on quality merchandise is supported by owrdost operating structure and our strategy tontaai a limited number of
stock keeping units ("SKUs") per category, whichlvedieve helps us maintain strong purchasing poMest items are priced
below $10, with approximately 25% at $1 or less. &ffer quality nationally advertised brands at theseryday low prices in
addition to offering our own comparable qualityatie brands at value prices.

Substantial Growth Opportunities. We believe we have significant long-term grogwtiential in the U.S. We have identified
significant opportunities to add new stores in battsting and new markets. In addition, we haveoopmities within our existing store base
to relocate or remodel to better serve our custen#es part of our growth strategy, we are develg@ind testing new store formats, with a
current focus on providing customers convenienesgto more affordable perishable food items. Ses Growth Strategy” for additional
detalils.

Our Growth Strategy

We believe that our strategy and executigpabilities will allow us to capitalize on the staterable growth opportunities afforded by
business model. Specifically, we believe we comitaihave significant opportunities to drive pralfiie growth through increasing same-store
sales, expanding our operating profit rate and grgwur store base.

Increasing Same-Store Sales.We believe our customer-driven merchandiseanik attractive value proposition, combined with our
ongoing new store expansion strategy and the ingfamir remodeled and relocated stores, provideoag basis for increased same-store
sales. We define "sanmeres" as stores that have been open for atl8asibnths at the beginning of each monthly accogrgeriod, and w
include stores that have been remodeled, expand®ibeated in our sam&tore sales calculation. Our average net salesguare foot, base
on total stores, increased to $216 in 2012 fronB8$812011 (which included a contribution of approgitely $4 from the 5% week) and
$201 in 2010. We believe we have opportunitiemtogase our store productivity in 2013 through icor@d improvement in our in-stock
positions, improvements in store space utilizatfice optimization and additional operating andchandising initiatives, including the
addition of tobacco products and further expansioour frozen and refrigerated food offerings, \eafriced seasonal items, and electronics.

We remodeled or relocated 592 stores ir228td we plan to remodel or relocate approximaigly stores in 2013. A relocation
typically results in an improved, more visible aaatessible location, and usually includes increasedre footage. A remodel typically
involves new fixtures, signage and




other upgrades, resulting in an improved in-stoygeeience for our customers. We believe we willtoore to have opportunities for
additional remodels and relocations beyond 2013.

Expanding Operating Profit Rate. Another key component of our growth strategiyriproving our operating profit rate through
enhanced gross profit and expense reduction inigisit

We remain committed to an everyday low@{tEDLP") strategy that our customers can dependo strengthen our adherence to this
strategy and still protect gross profit, we utiliz@ious pricing and merchandising options, inahgdzone pricing, markdown optimization
strategies and changes to our product selectiah, & alternate national brands and the expansiour g@rivate brands, which generally have
higher gross profit rates. In addition, we maint@mongoing focus on reducing transportation asttidution costs as well as minimizing
inventory shrinkage and damages. Over the long, teerbelieve there are additional opportunitiesstituce product costs, including further
expansion of our private brands, additional shraduction, benefits from expansion of foreign smgand incremental distribution and
transportation efficiencies. We also plan to camito introduce new non-consumable products. Théiad of tobacco products and the
further expansion of coolers are expected to mbdpstssure our operating profit rate in 2013.

As part of our ongoing effort to improveraost structure and enhance efficiencies througti@iorganization, in 2012, we simplified
many of our store processes and achieved signifinaremental benefits from our store workforce agement program, implemented in
2011. We expect to achieve further efficiencie20d3 and to realize additional cost savings fromoemtralized procurement initiative.

Growing Our Store Base. After slowing our growth rate in 2007 and 2@068ocus on significantly improving the sales and
profitability of our stores, we accelerated ouraxgion in 2009 and have grown our retail squartafpoby approximately 7% annually since
that time. In 2012, we made our initial entrande i@alifornia and Massachusetts, and in 2011 weredtConnecticut, New Hampshire and
Nevada, our first new states since 2006. We hamédance in our real estate disciplines and inahility to identify, open and opera
successful new stores. In 2013, we plan to agaire@#se our square footage by approximately 7% dsintfeer expand in our core markets
and newer states and continue to evaluate ourtkxmg-opportunities to best serve the needs of met®in new markets and more densely
populated metropolitan areas.

Our Merchandise

We offer a focused assortment of everydayessities, which drive frequent customer visitsl, key items in a broad range of general
merchandise categories. Our product assortmentda®the opportunity for our customers to addresstrof their basic shopping needs with
one trip. We sell high quality national brands frieading manufacturers such as Procter & GamblesiRe, Coca-Cola, Nestle, General
Mills, Unilever, Kimberly Clark, Kellogg's and Namo, which are typically found at higher retailges elsewhere. Additionally, our private
brand consumables offer even greater value wittoogto purchase value items and national brand/algnt products at substantial
discounts to the national brand.

Our stores generally offer approximately0DO total SKUs per store; however, the numberkdfi§in a given store can vary based upon
the store's size, geographic location, mercharglisiiatives, seasonality, and other factors. Mafstur products are priced at $10 or less,
with approximately 25% at $1 or less. We separatanerchandise into four categories: 1) consumaBleseasonal; 3) home products; and
4) apparel.

Consumables is our largest category arlddes paper and cleaning products (such as papetgobath tissue, paper dinnerware, trash
and storage bags, laundry and other home cleanjmgliss); packaged food (such as cereals, canngzssmd vegetables, condiments, spi
sugar and




flour); perishables (such as milk, eggs, breadzedromeals, beer and wine); snacks (including carmbkies, crackers, salty snacks and
carbonated beverages); health and beauty (inclumlingthe-counter medicines and personal care ptedsuch as soap, body wash,
shampoo, dental hygiene and foot care productd)pan(including pet supplies and pet food).

Seasonal products include decorations, tmgtseries, small electronics, greeting cardsiostary, prepaid phones and accessories,
gardening supplies, hardware, automotive and hdfreesupplies.

Home products includes kitchen supplieskea@re, small appliances, light bulbs, storage @ioets, frames, candles, craft supplies and
kitchen, bed and bath soft goods.

Apparel includes casual everyday appareinfiants, toddlers, girls, boys, women and menyel$ as socks, underwear, disposable
diapers, shoes and accessories.

The percentage of net sales of each ofaurcategories of merchandise for the fiscal y@adigcated below was as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Consumable 73.%% 73.2% 71.6%
Seasons 13.6% 13.8% 14.5%
Home product: 6.6% 6.8% 7.(%
Apparel 5% 6.2% 6.2%

Our seasonal and home products categgpésatly account for the highest gross profit maggiand the consumables category typically
accounts for the lowest gross profit margin.

The Dollar General Store

The typical Dollar General store has, oerage, approximately 7,300 square feet of sellpags and is typically operated by a store
manager, an assistant store manager and threerersales clerks. Approximately 63% of our storesiarfreestanding buildings and 37%
in strip shopping centers. Most of our customeus Vithin three to five miles, or a 10 minute drieé our stores.

Our traditional store strategy featureeva tost, no frills building with limited maintenamcapital, low operating costs, and a focused
merchandise offering within a broad range of catiegpallowing us to deliver low retail prices whijenerating strong cash flows and
investment returns. Our initial capital investmanbew stores varies depending on the lease steuotuwownership as well as the size and
location of the store. "Plus" stores, our new farmith a significantly expanded frozen and refrigied food section when compared to our
traditional stores, have higher initial capital tsosnd are more costly to operate. Likewise, amlutiti space, equipment, and operating costs,
including store labor, are required in our Dollaar@ral Market stores, primarily to handle fresh th@ad produce. In 2012, a significant
majority of the new stores we opened were traditigiores. We are continuing to test the Plus aatk®t concepts and look for areas to
increase sales productivity and lower our costgpen and operate.

We generally have had good success initagatitable store sites in the past, and we belibat there is ample opportunity for new
store growth in existing and new markets. In additwe believe we have significant opportunitieaitable for our relocation and remodel
programs. We remodeled or relocated 592 store812,575 in 2011 and 504 in 2010. Our remodelsratotations in 2012 included 82
stores which we converted to Plus stores. At tlieaf2012, we operated 10,272 traditional stor2d, Rlus stores, averaging approximately
10,000 square feet of selling space, and 110 DGltareral Market stores, averaging approximatel@d®@square feet of selling space.
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Our recent store growth is summarized enftllowing table:

Stores at Net

Beginning Stores Stores Store Stores at
Year of Year Opened Closed Increase End of Year
2010 8,82¢ 60C 56 544 9,372
2011 9,37 625 6C 56¢ 9,93
2012 9,93 625 56 56¢ 10,50¢

Our Customers

Our customers seek value and convenienggeing on their financial situation and geograpinoximity, customers' reliance on
Dollar General varies from using Dollar Generalfft#in shopping, to making periodic trips to stoap on household items, to making
weekly or more frequent trips to meet most essenéiads. We generally locate our stores and plamauchandise selections to best serve
the needs of our core customers, the low to loweldla or fixed income households often underseiwedther retailers. At the same time,
however, customers from a wide range of incomeklatacand life stages appreciate our quality mermdisarand attractive value and
convenience proposition and are loyal Dollar Gelngrappers. In the last year, we have continuest#increases in the annual number of
shopping trips that our customers make to our stasewell as the amount spent during each trip.

To attract new and retain existing cust@nee continue to focus on product quality andctige, in-stock levels and pricing, targeted
advertising, improved store standards, convenigmtacations, and a pleasant overall customer raipee.

Our Suppliers

We purchase merchandise from a wide vaaéguppliers and maintain direct buying relatiapstwith many producers of national
brand merchandise, such as Procter & Gamble, PepSi@-a-Cola, Nestle, General Mills, Unilever, Kienly Clark, Kellogg's, and Nabisco.
Despite our broad offering, we maintain only a tedi number of SKUs per category, giving us a pgadvantage in dealing with our
suppliers. Approximately 8% and 7% of our purchase2012 were from our largest and second largggplgers, respectively. Our private
brands come from a diversified supplier base. Wectly imported approximately $765 million or 7%air purchases at cost (11% of our
purchases based on their retail value) in 2012.v@ndor arrangements generally provide for payrf@rgéuch merchandise in U.S. dollars.

We have consistently managed to obtairicsafft quantities of core merchandise and belibeg, if one or more of our current source
supply became unavailable, we would generally bbe tabobtain alternative sources without experiega substantial disruption of our
business. However, such alternative sources coalgése our merchandise costs or reduce the qoabityr merchandise, and an inability to
obtain alternative sources could adversely affectsales.

Distribution and Transportation

Our stores are currently supported by elalistribution centers located strategically thitmaigt our geographic footprint, including a
distribution center in Bessemer, Alabama which begfgpping to stores in March 2012 and a leasddlalision facility in Lebec, California
which began shipping in April 2012. We currentlywia distribution center under construction in Bghrania which is expected to begin
shipping in early 2014. We lease additional tempovearehouse space as necessary to support oribdligtn needs. Over the past few years
we have made significant investments in facilitteshnological improvements and upgrades, and wene to improve work processes, all
of which increase our efficiency and ability to popt our merchandising and operations initiativesvall
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as our new store growth. We continually analyzerah@lance the network to ensure that it remaificiexfit and provides the service our
stores require. See "—Properties” for additionfdrimation pertaining to our distribution centers.

Most of our merchandise flows through oistribution centers and is delivered to our stdngshird-party trucking firms, utilizing our
trailers. Our agreements with these trucking fiars based on estimated costs of diesel fuel, Wwéldifference in estimated and current
market fuel costs passed through to us. The césliesel fuel are significantly influenced by imetional, political and economic
circumstances. Our average cost per gallon of dieskincreased slightly in 2012 and more sigrafidy in 2011. If further price increases
were to arise for any reason, including fuel sughlgrtages or unusual price volatility, the resglthigher fuel prices could materially
increase our transportation costs.

Seasonality

Our business is seasonal to a certain exBamerally, our highest sales volume occurs énftlurth quarter, which includes the Christr
selling season, and the lowest occurs in thedistter. In addition, our quarterly results caraffected by the timing of certain holidays, the
timing of new store openings and store closingsatimount of sales contributed by new and existioges, as well as financial transactions
such as debt repurchases, common stock offerirgjstack repurchases. We purchase substantial asmofiimventory in the third quarter a
incur higher shipping costs and higher payroll sdstanticipation of the increased sales activityirty the fourth quarter. In addition, we c:
merchandise during our fourth quarter that we docaay during the rest of the year, such as gif$,sholiday decorations, certain baking
items, and a broader assortment of toys and candy.

The following table reflects the seasowadit net sales, gross profit, and net income byrtgudor each of the quarters of our three most
recent fiscal years. The fourth quarter of the yaated February 3, 2012 was comprised of 14 weekbeach of the other quarters reflected
below were comprised of 13 weeks.

(in millions) 15t Quarter 2" Quarter 3™ Quarter 4™ Quarter
Year Ended

February 1, 2013
Net sales $ 3,901 $ 3,948 $ 3,964 $ 4,207.¢
Gross profi 1,228.: 1,263.: 1,226.: 1,367.¢
Net income(a 213.¢ 214.1 207.7 317.¢
Year Ended

February 3, 2012
Net sales $ 3451.° $ 3575. $ 3595 $ 4,185..
Gross profit 1,087.¢ 1,148.: 1,115.¢ 1,346.
Net income(b’ 157.C 146.( 171.2 292.t
Year Ended

January 28, 2011
Net sales $ 31110 $ 3,214. $ 3,223+ $ 3,486..
Gross profit 999.¢ 1,036.( 1,010.° 1,130.:
Net income 136.( 141.2 128.1 222.F

(a) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of $17libmrelated to the redemption of long-term obtigas in
second quarter of 2012.

(b) Includes expenses, net of income taxes, of4s8tllion related to the redemption of long-terbiligations in
second quarter of 201




Our Competition

We operate in the basic discount consuraedg market, which is highly competitive with resto® price, store location, merchandise
quality, assortment and presentation, in-stock isterscy, and customer service. We compete withodiststores and with many other
retailers, including mass merchandise, groceryg,dcanvenience, variety and other specialty stdresse other retail companies operate
stores in many of the areas where we operate, amg of them engage in extensive advertising andatiaig efforts. Our direct competitors
include Family Dollar, Dollar Tree, Fred's, 99 Cefinly and various local, independent operatorayedisas Walmart, Target, Walgreens,
CVS, and Rite Aid, among others. Certain of our petitors have greater financial, distribution, neditkg and other resources than we do.

We differentiate ourselves from other formfisetailing by offering consistently low pricesa convenient, small-store format. We
believe that our prices are competitive due in fiIadur low cost operating structure and the reddyi limited assortment of products offered.
Purchasing large volumes of merchandise withinfocmsed assortment in each merchandise categorysails to keep our average costs
contributing to our ability to offer competitive enyday low prices to our customers. SeeOd+ Business Model" above for further discus:
of our competitive situation.

Our Employees

As of March 1, 2013, we employed approxiha®0,500 full-time and part-time employees, inibhg divisional and regional managers,
district managers, store managers, other stor@pees and distribution center and administrativespenel. We have increasingly focused on
recruiting, training, motivating and retaining enptes, and we believe that the quality, performamzemorale of our employees have
increased as a result. We currently are not a paryy collective bargaining agreements.

Our Trademarks

We own marks that are registered with théddl States Patent and Trademark Office and ateged under applicable intellectual
property laws, including without limitation the tlemarks Dollar General®, Dollar General Market®ywelr Valley®, DG®, Smart &
Simple®, trueliving®, Sweet Smiles®, Open Traildbbie Brooks® Comfort Bay", and Holiday Style®, along with variations and
formatives of these trademarks as well as certidiardrademarks. We attempt to obtain registratioour trademarks whenever practicable
and to pursue vigorously any infringement of thoseks. Our trademark registrations have variougratipn dates; however, assuming that
the trademark registrations are properly renewssl; have a perpetual duration.

We also hold licenses to use various traakmowned by third parties, including a licenséh Fisher Price brand for certain items of
children's clothing through December 31, 2013, améxclusive license to the Rexall brand throughdd®, 2020.

Available Information

Our Web site address is www.dollargeneoat.cWe file with or furnish to the Securities anxtBange Commission (the "SEC") annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form@,Gurrent reports on Form 8-K, and amendmentsdset reports, proxy statements and
annual reports to shareholders, and, from timente,tregistration statements and other documetissd documents are available free of
charge to investors on or through the Investorrimftion portion of our Web site as soon as readgrahcticable after we electronically file
them with or furnish them to the SEC. In addititire public may read and copy any of the materi&dile@ with the SEC at the SEC's Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington @82 2. The public may obtain information on the agien of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The &&@tains an internet site that contains reportsgypand information statements and
other information regarding issuers, such as D@laneral, that file electronically with the SEC .€Tdddress of that web site is
http://www.sec.gov.




ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risksatidged below and the other information containethia report and other filings that we make
from time to time with the SEC, including our coldated financial statements and accompanying néteg of the following risks could
materially and adversely affect our business, famgrcondition, results of operations or liquidifjhese risks are not the only risks we face.
Our business, financial condition, results of ofieres or liquidity could also be adversely affecisdadditional factors that apply to all
companies generally or by risks not currently knawns or that we currently view to be immaterie can provide no assurance and make
no representation that our mitigation efforts, althh we believe they are reasonable, will be ssfaks

Current economic conditions and other eanic factors may adversely affect our financial fermance and other aspects of our
business by negatively impacting our customer'spdisable income or discretionary spending, increasiour costs of goods sold and
selling, general and administrative expenses, amtversely affecting our sales or profitabilit

We believe many of our customers are oadigr low incomes and generally have limited disonary spending dollars. Any factor that
could adversely affect that disposable income walelckrease our customer's spending and could causeistomers to shift their spending to
products other than those sold by us or to procsaltby us that are less profitable than othedpcbchoices, all of which could result in
lower net sales, decreases in inventory turnovegtgr markdowns on inventory, and a reductiorrafifability due to lower margins. Factc
that could reduce our customers' disposable indootede but are not limited to a further slowdowrttie economy, a delayed economic
recovery, or other economic conditions such asemed or sustained high unemployment or underemmgot/levels, inflation, increases in
fuel or other energy costs and interest rates, dhelvailable credit, consumer debt levels, high&rrates and other changes in tax laws.

Many of the factors identified above thfieet disposable income, as well as commodity ratassportation costs (including the costs of
diesel fuel), costs of labor, insurance and heafthdoreign exchange rate fluctuations, leasescastasures that create barriers to or increase
the costs associated with international trade, gbain other laws and regulations and other econéantors, also affect our cost of goods
sold and our selling, general and administratiygesses, which may adversely affect our sales ditaldity. We have limited or no ability
control many of these factors. We experienced aoal of product costs in 2011 as a result of iases in the costs of certain commodities
(including cotton, sugar, coffee, groundnuts, rgsind increasing diesel fuel costs. These costergdly stabilized in 2012. We will be
diligent in our efforts to keep product costs as s possible in the face of these increases wstiilevorking to optimize gross profit and
meet the needs of our customers.

In addition, many of the factors discusabdve, along with current global economic condgiand uncertainties, the potential for
additional failures or realignments of financiastitutions, and the related impact on availablelitm@ay affect us and our suppliers and other
business partners, landlords and service provideas adverse manner including, but not limitedréalucing access to liquid funds or credit,
increasing the cost of credit, limiting our ability manage interest rate risk, increasing theafdkankruptcy of our suppliers, landlords or
counterparties to, or other financial institutiomgolved in, our credit facilities and our deriwatiand other contracts, increasing the cost of
goods to us, and other adverse consequences whieneaunable to fully anticipate or control.
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Our plans depend significantly on initiatts designed to increase sales and improve theieffties, costs and effectiveness of «
operations, and failure to achieve or sustain thgdans could affect our performance adversely.

We have initiatives (such as those relatingnerchandising, sourcing, shrink, private bratdre operations, selling, general and
administrative expense reduction, and real esiategrious stages of testing, evaluation, and imgletation, upon which we expect to rely to
continue to improve our results of operations andrfcial condition and to achieve our financialndaThese initiatives are inherently risky
and uncertain, even when tested successfully gin #pplication to our business in general. Itasgible that successful testing can result
partially from resources and attention that cameotiuplicated in broader implementation, partidylar light of the diverse geographic
locations of our stores and the fact that our fralthagement is so decentralized. General implerti@mt@so may be negatively affected by
other risk factors described herein. Successfukayside implementation relies on consistency ahing, stability of workforce, ease of
execution, and the absence of offsetting factatehn influence results adversely. Failure to@aahsuccessful implementation of our
initiatives or the cost of these initiatives exaegdnanagement's estimates could adversely afteatesults of operations and financial
condition.

In addition, the success of our merchandigiitiatives, particularly those with respecintan-consumable merchandise and sgpeeific
products and allocations, depends in part uporability to predict consistently and successfullg tiroducts our customers will demand and
to identify and timely respond to evolving trendsdemographics and consumer preferences, expewtatial needs. If we are unable to select
products that are attractive to customers, to ol#ach products at costs that allow us to sell taemprofit, or to effectively market such
products, our sales, market share and profitakibiyld be adversely affected. If our merchandisifigrts in the non-consumables area are
unsuccessful, we could be further adversely aftebieour inability to offset the lower margins asisped with our consumables business.

We face intense competition that couldiirour growth opportunities and adversely impactrfinancial performance.

The retail business is highly competitividhwespect to price, store location, merchandisaity, assortment and presentation, in-stock
consistency, customer service, aggressive promaitaxtivity, customers, and employees. We compdtenetailers operating discount, mass
merchandise, outlet, warehouse club, grocery, drogyenience, variety and other specialty storas §ompetitive environment subjects us
to the risk of adverse impact to our financial parfance because of the lower prices, and thustherimargins, required to maintain our
competitive position. Also, companies like ourseda customer demographics and other factors, raag lmited ability to increase prices in
response to increased costs without losing coniytiosition. This limitation may adversely affectr margins and financial performance.
Certain of our competitors have greater finanalairibution, marketing and other resources thardwand may be able to secure better
arrangements with suppliers than we can. If wetéarbspond effectively to competitive pressures @manges in the retail markets, it could
adversely affect our financial performance.

Competition for customers has intensifieddcent years as competitors have moved intmaoeased their presence in, our geographic
markets. In addition, some of our large box contpetiare or may be developing small box formatschvinhay produce more competition. '
remain vulnerable to the marketing power and hiytell of consumer recognition of these larger coitgestand to the risk that these
competitors or others could venture into our indust a significant way. Generally, we expect atomned increase in competition.
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Our private brands may not maintain broashrket acceptance and increase the risks we f

We have substantially increased the nurabeur private brand items, and the program izalde part of our future growth plans. We
believe that our success in maintaining broad na&eeptance of our private brands depends on ffa@tyrs, including pricing, our costs,
quality and customer perception. We may not achggweaintain our expected sales for our privatetisaAs a result, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be maligrand adversely affected.

A significant disruption to our distributin network or to the timely receipt of inventory wd adversely impact sales or increase our
transportation costs, which would decrease our praf

We rely on our distribution and transpaaiatetwork to provide goods to our stores in aetyrand cost-effective manner through
deliveries to our distribution centers from vendansl then from the distribution centers or diréiip vendors to our stores by various means
of transportation, including shipments by sea andkt Any disruption, unanticipated expense or apenal failure related to this process
could affect store operations negatively. For eXammexpected delivery delays or increases irsprartation costs (including through
increased fuel costs, a decrease in transportesipacity for overseas shipments, or work stoppagskwdowns) could significantly
decrease our ability to make sales and earn prafitsor shortages or work stoppages in the tramapon industry or long-term disruptions to
the national and international transportation istinacture that lead to delays or interruptionseivééries could also negatively affect our
business.

We maintain a network of distribution féa#ls and have plans to build new facilities tosoi our growth objectives. Delays in opening
distribution centers could adversely affect ouufatoperations by slowing store growth, which magurn reduce revenue growth. In
addition, distribution-related construction or empi@n projects entail risks which could cause dekayd cost overruns, such as: shortages of
materials or skilled labor; work stoppages; unfeegsconstruction, scheduling, engineering, envirmtad or geological problems; weather
interference; fires or other casualty losses; arahticipated cost increases. The completion dateuiimate cost of these projects could di
significantly from initial expectations due to ctmgtion-related or other reasons. We cannot gueeathat any project will be completed on
time or within established budgets.

Rising fuel costs could materially advelssaffect our business.

Fuel prices are significantly influencedibiernational, political and economic circumstandacreases in the price of fuel pose a
challenge to our continued priority of optimizingragross profit rate. Sustained inflated pricefuather price increases for any reason,
including fuel supply shortages or unusual prickatility, could materially increase our transpoitatcosts, adversely affecting our gross
profit and results of operations. In addition, catifve pressures in our industry may inhibit obility to reflect these increased costs in the
prices of our products. We will diligently attentptkeep product costs as low as possible as wetli@se increases while still working to
optimize gross profit and meet our customers' needs

Risks associated with or faced by the dstizeand foreign suppliers from whom our productseasourced could adversely affect our
financial performance.

The products we sell are sourced from awitiety of domestic and international suppligns2012, our largest supplier accounted for
8% of our purchases, and our next largest supptieounted for approximately 7% of such purchasesh#@ve not experienced any difficulty
in obtaining sufficient quantities of core mercheedand believe that, if one or more of our cursnirces of supply became unavailable, we
would generally be able to obtain alternative sesithout experiencing a substantial disruptionwfbusiness. However, such alternative
sources could increase our
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merchandise costs and reduce the quality of ouclmamdise, and an inability to obtain alternativerses could adversely affect our sales.

We directly imported approximately 7% of quirchases (measured at cost) in 2012, but maoyrolomestic vendors directly import
their products or components of their products.rglea to the prices and flow of these goods forraagon, such as political and economic
instability in the countries in which foreign sujgpk are located, the financial instability of sligs, suppliers' failure to meet our standards,
issues with labor practices of our suppliers ootgtroblems they may experience (such as strikles)availability and cost of raw materials
suppliers, merchandise quality or safety issuesenay exchange rates, transport availability aoet,dnflation, and other factors relating to
the suppliers and the countries in which they acated or from which they import, are beyond ourtoa and could adversely affect our
operations and profitability. Because a substaatiabunt of our imported merchandise comes from &harchange in the Chinese currenc
other policies could negatively impact our merchs@dosts. In addition, the United States' forérgde policies, tariffs and other impositions
on imported goods, trade sanctions imposed oninartaintries, the limitation on the importationagfrtain types of goods or of goods
containing certain materials from other countried ather factors relating to foreign trade are Imelyour control. Disruptions due to labor
stoppages, strikes or slowdowns, or other disraptiovolving our vendors or the transportation baddling industries also may negatively
affect our ability to receive merchandise and tmay negatively affect sales. Prolonged disruptmmdd also materially increase our labor
costs both during and following the disruption. 3&@nd other factors affecting our suppliers andaoness to products could adversely a
our financial performance. As we increase our irtgof merchandise from foreign vendors, the risgdsaiated with foreign imports will
increase.

Product liability and food safety claimsuald adversely affect our business, reputation dimthncial performance.

Despite our best efforts to ensure theityuahd safety of the products we sell, we mayuigect to product liability claims from
customers or penalties from government agenciasimglto products, including food products thatealled, defective or otherwise alleged
to be harmful. Such claims may result from tampgeby unauthorized third parties, product contanimabr spoilage, including the presence
of foreign objects, substances, chemicals, othentag or residues introduced during the growingragte, handling and transportation phases.
All of our vendors and their products must complghvapplicable product and food safety laws. Weegally seek contractual
indemnification and insurance coverage from oupsaps. However, if we do not have adequate cotuséndemnification and/or insurance
available, such claims could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition aeglits of operations. Our ability to obtain
indemnification from foreign suppliers may be hireteby the manufacturers' lack of understandingd.8f. product liability or other laws,
which may make it more likely that we be requireddspond to claims or complaints from customeii§we were the manufacturer of the
products. Even with adequate insurance and indésatidn, such claims could significantly damage mputation and consumer confidence
in our products. Our litigation expenses could éase as well, which also could have a materialjjatiee impact on our results of operations
even if a product liability claim is unsuccessfulignot fully pursued.

We are subject to governmental regulatippsocedures and requirements. A significant chanige or noncompliance with, these
regulations could have a material adverse effectaur financial performance.

Our business is subject to numerous an@asing federal, state and local laws and regulatid/e routinely incur costs in complying
with these regulations. New laws or regulationstipalarly those dealing with healthcare reforrpghuct safety, and labor and employment,
among others, or changes in existing laws and atigals, particularly those governing the sale obpicts, may result in significant
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added expenses or may require extensive systeropamdting changes that may be difficult to impletraerd/or could materially increase our
cost of doing business. Untimely compliance or momgliance with applicable regulations or untimefyircomplete execution of a required
product recall can result in the imposition of gdéas, including loss of licenses or significamds or monetary penalties, in addition to
reputational damage.

Litigation may adversely affect our busi® financial condition and results of operations.

Our business is subject to the risk ofjéition by employees, consumers, suppliers, conapgtishareholders, government agencies and
others through private actions, class actions, agtnative proceedings, regulatory actions or otttigation. The number of employment-
related class actions filed each year has contitm@ttrease, and recent changes and proposedehanBederal and state laws may cause
claims to rise even more. The outcome of litigatiparticularly class action lawsuits, regulatoryi@ts and intellectual property claims, is
difficult to assess or quantify. Plaintiffs in tleetypes of lawsuits may seek recovery of very lang@determinate amounts, and the magni
of the potential loss relating to these lawsuity meanain unknown for substantial periods of timeadldition, certain of these lawsuits, if
decided adversely to us or settled by us, may tresiiability material to our financial statemergs a whole or may negatively affect our
operating results if changes to our business opesaare required. The cost to defend future littgamay be significant. There also may be
adverse publicity associated with litigation thatild negatively affect customer perception of ausibess, regardless of whether the
allegations are valid or whether we are ultimafelynd liable. As a result, litigation may adversaffect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. See Note 9 to the cons@dlfihancial statements for further details regagdiertain of these pending matters.

If we cannot open, relocate or remodelrs® profitably and on schedule, our planned futugeowth will be impeded, which would
adversely affect sales.

Our ability to open, relocate and remodefifable stores is a key component of our planfutgre growth. Our ability to timely open
stores and to expand into additional market aregsids in part on the following factors: the availity of attractive store locations; the
absence of entitlement process or occupancy delagsibility to negotiate acceptable lease andldpueent terms; the ability to hire and
train new personnel, especially store manageis ciost effective manner; the ability to identifyistamer demand in different geographic
areas; general economic conditions; and the avtijatf capital funding for expansion. Many of tefactors also affect our ability to
successfully relocate stores, and many of thenbeyend our control. Tighter lending practices atsy make financing more challenging
our real estate developers which could impactithag of store openings under our build-to-suitgram.

Delays or failures in opening new storesampleting relocations or remodels, or achievingdr than expected sales in new stores,
could materially adversely affect our growth andgdmfitability. We also may not anticipate all dietchallenges imposed by the expansion of
our operations and, as a result, may not meetaogets for opening new stores, remodeling or reéillogatores or expanding profitably.

Some of our new stores may be locatedeasawhere we have little or no meaningful expeseasrcbrand recognition. Those markets
may have different competitive and market cond#ioonsumer tastes and discretionary spendingrpatiean our existing markets, as well
as higher cost of entry, which may cause our nevestto be initially less successful than storesuinexisting markets. In addition, our
alternative format stores, such as our Dollar Galridarket and, to a lesser degree our Dollar Gérdus stores, have significantly higher
capital costs than our traditional Dollar Genetales, and, as a result, may increase our finarisialf they do not perform as expected.
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Many of our new stores will be located iras where we have existing units. Although we lessgerience in these markets, increasing
the number of locations in these markets may résuttadvertent over-saturation and temporarilpermanently divert customers and sales
from our existing stores, thereby adversely affectur overall financial performance.

Natural disasters (whether or not causeddiimate change), unusual weather conditions, pamaic outbreaks, terrorist acts, and
global political events could cause permanent omggorary distribution center or store closures, inipaur ability to purchase, receive ¢
replenish inventory, or decrease customer traffid] of which could result in lost sales and othersé adversely affect our financial
performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural thsassuch as hurricanes, fires, floods and eaatteg) unusual weather conditions, pandemic
outbreaks, terrorist acts or disruptive global ficdi events, such as civil unrest in countriesvirich our suppliers are located, or similar
disruptions could adversely affect our operatiom$ #nancial performance. To the extent these evedult in the closure of one or more of
our distribution centers, a significant numbertoiss, or our corporate headquarters or impacbomeore of our key suppliers, our operati
and financial performance could be materially adebraffected through an inability to make deliesror provide other support functions to
our stores and through lost sales. In additiorsetevents could result in increases in fuel (oeloémergy) prices or a fuel shortage, delays in
opening new stores, the temporary lack of an adeguark force in a market, the temporary or longrt@isruption in the supply of products
from some domestic and overseas suppliers, theaempdisruption in the transport of goods from reeas, delay in the delivery of goods to
our distribution centers or stores, the temporaduction in the availability of products in our e and disruption of our utility services or to
our information systems. These events also can ingitect consequences such as increases in the afdgsurance if they result in
significant loss of property or other insurable cae.

Material damage or interruptions to ourfarmation systems as a result of external factostaffing shortages and unanticipated
challenges or difficulties in updating our existingechnology or developing or implementing new techwgy could have a material adverse
effect on our business or results of operations.

We depend on a variety of information texdbgy systems for the efficient functioning of dwsiness. Such systems are subject to
damage or interruption from power outages, compandrtelecommunications failures, computer virusesurity breaches and natural
disasters. Damage or interruption to these systBaysrequire a significant investment to fix or eg@ them, and we may suffer interruptions
in our operations in the interim. Any material imtgotions may have a material adverse effect orbasmess or results of operations.

We also rely heavily on our informationhieology staff. Failure to meet these staffing needy negatively affect our ability to fulfill
our technology initiatives while continuing to prdg maintenance on existing systems. We rely otaicevendors to maintain and
periodically upgrade many of these systems satltiggt can continue to support our business. Thevaodt programs supporting many of our
systems were licensed to us by independent softikarelopers. The inability of these developerssroucontinue to maintain and upgrade
these information systems and software programddaaiarupt or reduce the efficiency of our operatiaf we were unable to convert to
alternate systems in an efficient and timely manimeaddition, costs and potential problems andrimiptions associated with the
implementation of new or upgraded systems and tdogy or with maintenance or adequate support @tieg systems could also disrupt or
reduce the efficiency of our operations.
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Failure to attract and retain qualified eptoyees, particularly field, store and distributiacenter managers, while controlling labc
costs, as well as other labor issues, could advgra#fect our financial performance.

Our future growth and performance depemdswr ability to attract, retain and motivate gfiel employees, many of whom are in
positions with historically high rates of turnowrch as field managers and distribution center gensaOur ability to meet our labor needs,
while controlling our labor costs, is subject tonpaxternal factors, including competition for emgilability of qualified personnel in a giv
market, unemployment levels within those marketsyailing wage rates, minimum wage laws, health @hér insurance costs, and changes
in employment and labor laws (including changetheprocess for our employees to join a union)tbeloworkplace regulation (including
changes in "entitlement" programs such as headtlréamce and paid leave programs). To the extagnhdisant portion of our employee base
unionizes, or attempts to unionize, our labor costdd increase. In addition, we are evaluatingpbiential future impact of recently enacted
comprehensive healthcare reform legislation, wkidhlikely cause our healthcare costs to incred8aile the significant costs of the
healthcare reform legislation will occur after 20if3at all, due to provisions of the legislatioaeihg phased in over time, changes to our
healthcare costs structure could have a signifioagative effect on our business. Our ability tespalong labor costs to our customers is
constrained by our low price model.

Our profitability may be negatively affext by inventory shrinkage.

We are subject to the risk of inventoryslasid theft. We experience significant inventomritage, and we cannot assure you that
incidences of inventory loss and theft will decee@sthe future or that the measures we are takiligffectively reduce the problem of
inventory shrinkage. Although some level of invegtshrinkage is an unavoidable cost of doing bissing we were to experience higher
rates of inventory shrinkage or incur increasedisgccosts to combat inventory theft, our finandandition could be affected adversely.

Our cash flows from operations may be négely affected if we are not successful in managiour inventory balances.

Our inventory balance represented approtaip®0% of our total assets exclusive of goodatilt other intangible assets as of
February 1, 2013. Efficient inventory managemerat key component of our business success andaibifiy. To be successful, we must
maintain sufficient inventory levels to meet oustmmers' demands without allowing those levelsitodase to such an extent that the costs tc
store and hold the goods unduly impacts our fir@meisults. If our buying decisions do not accuygpeedict customer trends or purchasing
actions, we may have to take unanticipated markddwlispose of the excess inventory, which alsoachversely impact our financial
results. We continue to focus on ways to reducsethisks, but we cannot assure you that we wifumeessful in our inventory management.
If we are not successful in managing our inventmalances, our cash flows from operations may bathedy affected.

Because our business is seasonal to aaterxtent, with the highest volume of net salesitig the fourth quarter, adverse events
during the fourth quarter could materially affectur financial statements as a whole.

We generally recognize our highest volurheat sales during the Christmas selling seasoighwdccurs in the fourth quarter of our
fiscal year. In anticipation of this holiday, werphase substantial amounts of seasonal inventatyhie many temporary employees. An
excess of seasonal merchandise inventory couldt iesur net sales during the Christmas sellingss were to fall below either seasonal
norms or expectations. If our fourth quarter sadssilts were substantially below expectations fimancial performance and operating results
could be adversely affected by unanticipated
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markdowns, especially in seasonal merchandise. ttvem anticipated sales in the Christmas selleasen would also negatively affect our
ability to absorb the increased seasonal laboscost

Our current insurance program may exposg o unexpected costs and negatively affect ouafinial performance.

Our insurance coverage reflects deductjlsielé-insured retentions, limits of liability asémilar provisions that we believe are prudent
based on the dispersion of our operations. Howehere are types of losses we may incur but agaihigth we cannot be insured or which
believe are not economically reasonable to insureh as losses due to acts of war, employee atalrcether crime, some employment-
related or other class actions, and some natwabthrs. If we incur these losses and they areriadataur business could suffer. Certain
material events may result in sizable losses feirisurance industry and adversely impact the alviditly of adequate insurance coverage or
result in excessive premium increases. To offsgatiee insurance market trends, we may elect feisglire, accept higher deductibles or
reduce the amount of coverage in response to thasieet changes. In addition, we self-insure a §icamt portion of expected losses under
our workers' compensation, automobile liabilityngeal liability and group health insurance prograbhsanticipated changes in any
applicable actuarial assumptions and managementagss underlying our recorded liabilities for thdssses, including expected increases in
medical and indemnity costs, could result in matbridifferent expenses than expected under thesgrams, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations. In addition, we are evaluating gbtential future impact of the
comprehensive healthcare reform legislation, winey cause our healthcare costs to increase. Althaggcontinue to maintain property
insurance for catastrophic events at our store@tigenter and distribution centers, we are effetyi self-insured for other property losses. If
we experience a greater number of these losseswbamticipate, our financial performance couldadeersely affected.

If we fail to protect our brand name, comtitors may adopt tradenames that dilute the vabfeour brand name.

We may be unable or unwilling to strictlyferce our trademarks in each jurisdiction in whied do business. Also, we may not always
be able to successfully enforce our trademarksnagaompetitors, or against challenges by otheus félure to successfully protect our
trademarks could diminish the value and efficacpufbrand recognition, and could cause customgfiusimn, which could, in turn, advers
affect our sales and profitability.

Our success depends on our executive efé@and other key personnel. If we lose key persaror are unable to hire additional
qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.

Our future success depends to a signifidagtee on the skills, experience and efforts ofexecutive officers and other key personnel.
The loss of the services of any of our executiiieefs, particularly Richard W. Dreiling, our Chigkecutive Officer, could have a material
adverse effect on our operations. Our future sicedbalso depend on our ability to attract anthire qualified personnel and a failure to
attract and retain new qualified personnel coulehen adverse effect on our operations. We doumogstly maintain key person life
insurance policies with respect to our executifeeefs or key personnel.
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Any failure to maintain the security of farmation relating to our customers, employees arehdors that we may hold, whether a:
result of cybersecurity attacks or otherwise, coelkpose us to litigation, government enforcementiacs and costly response measures,
and could seriously disrupt our operations and hamwar reputation.

In connection with credit card sales, vamsmit confidential credit and debit card inforroatiWe also have access to, collect or mai
private or confidential information regarding owstomers, employees and vendors, as well as oindsss We have procedures and
technology in place to safeguard such data andnrdtion. As a result of those procedures, to owmkadge computer hackers have been
unable to gain access to the information storezliminformation systems. However, cyberattacksrapily evolving and becoming
increasingly sophisticated. It is possible that pater hackers and others might compromise our ggeuneasures or those of our technology
vendors in the future and obtain the personal mé&dion of our customers, employees and vendorsatedtold or our business information.
security breach of any kind could expose us tesridfkdata loss, litigation, government enforcenaations and costly response measures, anc
could seriously disrupt our operations. Any resigithegative publicity could significantly harm aeputation which could cause us to lose
market share and have an adverse effect on ourdi@aesults.

We have substantial debt that must be idpa refinanced at or prior to applicable maturitgtates which could adversely affect our
ability to raise additional capital to fund our opations and limit our ability to pursue our growtktrategy or other opportunities or to rea
to changes in the economy or our industry.

At February 1, 2013, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of long-teobrligations) of $2.772 billion, including a
$1.964 hillion senior secured term loan facilitywich, $1.084 billion matures on July 6, 2014 &&%¥9.7 million matures on July 6, 2017,
$500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.12&8fior notes due 2017, and borrowings of $286l%5munder our senior secured asset-
based revolving credit facility. We also had aniiddal $873.4 million available for borrowing undie revolving credit facility which is
scheduled to mature on July 6, 2014. We do noebelthat we will experience difficulty in refinang this debt prior to applicable maturity
dates. However, if we were to experience difficuipaying or refinancing this debt prior to matyrthis, and the level of debt itself, could
have important negative consequences to our bissimesuding:

. increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry conditions because our debt paymengatitins may limit our
ability to use our cash to respond to or defendragahanges in the industry or the economy;

. requiring a substantial portion of our cash flisam operations to be dedicated to the paymeptiatipal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toawgecash flow to fund our operations, capital exgigires and future business
opportunities or repurchase shares of our comnmokst

. limiting our ability to pursue our growth strategy;

. placing us at a disadvantage compared to our céimgzetvho are less leveraged and may be bettertahise their cash flow
fund competitive responses to changing industryketaor economic conditions;

. limiting our ability to obtain additional finaimg for working capital, capital expenditures, dsétvice requirements,
acquisitions and general corporate or other pupeead

. increasing the difficulty of our ability to makayments on our outstanding debt.

17




Our ability to obtain additional financingn favorable terms could be adversely affected/biatility in the capital markets

We obtain and manage liquidity from theiphos cash flow we generate from our operating\diitis and our access to capital markets,
including our credit facilities. There is no assw@ that our ability to obtain additional financithgough the capital markets will not be
adversely impacted by economic conditions. Tightgnin the credit markets, or low liquidity and wility in the capital markets could result
in diminished availability of credit and higher ta$ borrowing, making it more difficult to obtaadditional financing on terms favorable to
us.

Our variable rate debt exposes us to iesrrate risk which could adversely affect our cafibw.

The borrowings under the term loan faciditd the senior secured asset-based revolving €aedity comprise our credit facilities and
bear interest at variable rates. Other debt werialso could be variable rate debt. If market ie¢érates increase, variable rate debt will
create higher debt service requirements, whichdcadlersely affect our cash flow. While we haveessd and may in the future enter into
agreements limiting our exposure to higher interatgts, any such agreements may not offer comptetection from this risk.

Our debt agreements contain restrictiohgt could limit our flexibility in operating our bsiness.

Our credit facilities and the indenture gming our notes contain various covenants thalddauit our ability to engage in specified
types of transactions. These covenants limit odran restricted subsidiaries' ability to, amonigeotthings:

. incur additional indebtedness, issue disqualifock or issue certain preferred stock;

. pay dividends and make certain distributiongegiments and other restricted payments;
. create certain liens or encumbrances;

. sell assets;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates;

. allow payments to us by our restricted subsidiaries

. merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise disposelafraubstantially all of our assets; and

. designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted subigidia

A breach of any of these covenants cowddltén a default under the agreement governing suiebtedness. Upon our failure to
maintain compliance with these covenants, the lencieuld elect to declare all amounts outstandiegeunder to be immediately due and
payable and terminate all commitments to extenthéurcredit thereunder. If the lenders under sndeltedness accelerate the repayment of
borrowings, we cannot assure you that we will hewficient assets to repay those borrowings, abagebur other indebtedness, including
outstanding notes. We have pledged a significartiquoof our assets as collateral under our crieditities. If we were unable to repay those
amounts, the lenders under our credit facilitiesd@@roceed against the collateral granted to tteesecure that indebtedness. Additional
borrowings under the senior secured asset-basetViey credit facility will, if excess availabilitynder that facility is less than a certain
amount, be subject to the satisfaction of a spetiinancial ratio. Accordingly, our ability to aess the full availability under our senior
secured asset-based revolving credit facility magdnstrained. Our ability to meet this financatia can be affected by events beyond our
control, and we cannot assure you that we will nigistratio, if applicable, and other covenants.
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New accounting guidance or changes in ih&erpretation or application of existing accountmguidance could adversely affect o
financial performance.

The implementation of proposed new accognstandards may require extensive systems, interoeess and other changes that could
increase our operating costs, and may also resahlianges to our financial statements. In partictite implementation of expected future
accounting standards related to leases, as cyritagitig contemplated by the convergence projeetdrt the Financial Accounting Stande
Board ("FASB") and the International Accounting8tards Board ("IASB"), as well as the possible didopof international financial
reporting standards by U.S. registrants, couldireqis to make significant changes to our leaseag@ment, fixed asset, and other accoui
systems, and in all likelihood would result in cgas to our financial statements.

U.S. generally accepted accounting prirsi@nd related accounting pronouncements, impletentguidelines and interpretations w
regard to a wide range of matters that are releiaotir business involve many subjective assumptiestimates and judgments by our
management. Changes in these rules or their irtton or changes in underlying assumptions, esésor judgments by our management
could significantly change our reported or expedieancial performance. The outcome of such chaegesd include litigation or regulatory
actions which could have an adverse effect onioantial condition and results of operations.

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P. ("KKR;'certain affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co. (th&sS Investors"), and other equity co-
investors (collectively, the "Investors") continu® have influence over us, including in connectianth decisions that require the approv
of shareholders.

Through their investment in Buck Holdings?., the Investors continue to hold a significatérest in our outstanding common stock
(approximately 17% of our outstanding common staglof March 15, 2013). As a result, the Investotemially have the ability to influence
the outcome of matters that require a vote of bareholders, including election of our Board ofdaitors and other corporate transactions,
regardless of whether others believe that the &igtion is in our best interests. In addition, parguo a shareholders' agreement that we
entered into with Buck Holdings, L.P., based ondheent ownership by Buck Holdings, L.P. of ountoon stock, KKR has certain rights
appoint directors to our Board.

The Investors are also in the businessaking investments in companies and may from timtine acquire and hold interests in
businesses that compete directly or indirectly wighThe Investors may also pursue acquisition dppities that are complementary to our
business, and, as a result, those acquisition typgpties may not be available to us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of March 1, 2013, we operated 10,55irstores located in 40 states as follows:

Number of Number of
State Stores % Stores
Alabama 57C Missouri 38¢
Arizona 74 Nebraske 8C
Arkansas 30€ Nevads 1€
California 51 New Hampshire 6
Colorada 32 New Jerse 66
Connecticu 4 New Mexico 65
Delaware 34 New York 267
Florida 59t North Caroline 58t
Georgia 605 Ohio 54t
Illinois 385 Oklahoma 33¢€
Indiana 38¢ Pennsylvanii 45€
lowa 17€ South Carolin: 414
Kansas 18€ South Dakotz 11
Kentucky 39¢ Tennesse 553
Louisiana 43 Texas 1,15¢
Maryland 84 Utah 8
Massachusett 3 Vermont 17
Michigan 31Z Virginia 29:¢
Minnesota 22 West Virginia 17z
Mississippi 35€ Wisconsin 10¢

Most of our stores are located in leasednises. Individual store leases vary as to thaingerental provisions and expiration dates.
Many stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangemeiith landlords, which typically carry a primdease term of 10-15 years with multiple
renewal options. We also have stores subject tdeshierm leases and many of these leases haveakoptions. In recent years, an
increasing percentage of our new stores have hdgeacs to build-to-suit arrangements.

As of March 1, 2013, we operated elevelriBigtion centers, as described in the followiniglea

Approximate

Year Approximate Number of
Location Opened Square Footage Stores Served
Scottsville, KY 195¢ 720,00( 78¢
Ardmore, OK 199¢ 1,310,00! 1,31:
South Boston, V£ 1997 1,250,00! 95¢€
Indianola, MS 199¢ 820,00( 864
Fulton, MO 199¢ 1,150,00! 1,28¢
Alachua, FL 200( 980,00 91¢€
Zanesville, OF 2001 1,170,00! 1,162
Jonesville, SC 200t 1,120,00! 1,04¢
Marion, IN 200¢ 1,110,00! 1,15¢
Bessemer, Al 201z 940,00( 90z
Lebec, CA 201z 600,00( 164

We lease the distribution centers locate@alifornia, Oklahoma, Mississippi and Missourdawn the other seven distribution centers
in the table above. Approximately 7.25 acres ofléimel on which our Kentucky distribution centetdsated is subject to a ground lease. A
February 1, 2013,
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we leased approximately 506,000 square feet otiaddi temporary warehouse space to support otrilgliion needs.

Our executive offices are located in apprately 302,000 square feet of owned buildings approximately 56,000 square feet of lec
office space in Goodlettsville, Tennessee.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information contained in Note 9 to tdomsolidated financial statements under the heddliegal proceedings” contained in Part I,
Item 8 of this report is incorporated herein bystreference.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information regarding our current execuifficers as of March 25, 2013 is set forth bel&ach of our executive officers serves at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and is elecaadiually by the Board to serve until a successduly elected. There are no familial
relationships between any of our directors or etieewfficers.

Name Age Position

Richard W. 59 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Dreiling

David M. Tehle 56 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

John W. 61 Executive Vice President, Global Supply Chain
Flanigan

Susan S. 50 Executive Vice President and General Counsel
Lanigan

Robert D. 54 Executive Vice President and Chief People Officer
Ravenel

Gregory A. 52 Executive Vice President, Store Operations
Sparks

Todd Vasos 51 Executive Vice President, Division President anie€h

Merchandising Office
Anita C. Elliott 48 Senior Vice President and Control

Mr. Dreiling joined Dollar General in January 2008 as Chief ltige Officer and a member of our Board. He wasoamed Chairman
of the Board on December 2, 2008. Prior to joirliralar General, Mr. Dreiling served as Chief ExéeaitOfficer, President and a director of
Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. and Duane Reade Irclathest drugstore chain in New York City, fromvidmber 2005 until January 2008 ¢
as Chairman of the Board of Duane Reade from Ma@€y until January 2008. Prior to that, Mr. Drailifbeginning in March 2005, served
as Executive Vice President—Chief Operating Offiaekongs Drug Stores Corporation, an operator dii@n of retail drug stores on the
West Coast and Hawaii, after having joined Long3uly 2003 as Executive Vice President and Chiedr@jpons Officer. From 2000 to 2003,
Mr. Dreiling served as Executive Vice President—Rk&ding, Manufacturing and Distribution at Safewhng., a food and drug retailer. Prior
to that, Mr. Dreiling served from 1998 to 2000 asdftdent of Vons, a Southern California food anggdiivision of Safeway. He currently
serves as the Vice Chairman of the Retail Industigders Association (RILA). Mr. Dreiling is a ditec of Lowe's Companies, Inc.

Mr. Tehle joined Dollar General in June 2004 as Executivee\Reesident and Chief Financial Officer. He serfveth 1997 to June
2004 as Executive Vice President and Chief Findi@fificer of Haggar Corporation, a manufacturingrieting and retail corporation. From
1996 to 1997, he was Vice President of Financa fdivision of The Stanley Works, one of the worldigiest manufacturers of tools, and
from 1993 to 1996, he was Vice President and (Firedincial Officer of Hat Brands, Inc., a hat mamtdiaer. Earlier in his career, Mr. Tehle
served in a variety of financial-related roles gtl& System, Inc. and Texas Instruments. Mr. Teshéedirector of Jack in the Box, Inc.

21




Mr. Flanigan joined Dollar General as Senior Vice Presidentb@l&upply Chain, in May 2008. He was promotedxedttive Vice
President in March 2010. He has 25 years of manageexperience in retail logistics. Prior to joigiDollar General, he was group vice
president of logistics and distribution for Longeu@ Stores Corporation from October 2005 to Apdi02. In this role, he was responsible for
overseeing warehousing, inbound and outbound toategfon and facility maintenance to service ov@0 %etail outlets. From September
2001 to October 2005 he served as the Vice Prasidémgistics for Safeway Inc. where he oversastrithution of food products from
Safeway distribution centers to all retail outlétdound traffic and transportation. He also hegtribution and logistics leadership positions
at Vons—a Safeway company, Specialized Distribulitamagement Inc., and Crum & Crum Logistics.

Ms. Laniganjoined Dollar General in July 2002 as Vice Prestd&eneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary. Sh@mwasoted to
Senior Vice President in October 2003 and to Exeeltice President in March 2005. Prior to joiniDgllar General, Ms. Lanigan served as
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segratatale Corporation, a specialty retailer of fi@erelry. During her six years with Zale,
Ms. Lanigan held various positions, including Asate General Counsel. Prior to that, she held Ipgaitions with both Turner Broadcasting
System, Inc. and the law firm of Troutman SanderB.L

Mr. Ravenerjoined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@hif People Officer in August 2008. He was prorddte Executive
Vice President in March 2010. Prior to joining olGeneral, he served in human resources exeagote®with Starbucks Coffee Company
from September 2005 until August 2008 as the Sevime President of U.S. Partner Resources andr, fwithat, as the Vice President, Par
Resources—Eastern Division. As the Senior Viceitees$ of U.S. Partner Resources at Starbucks, ldveRer oversaw all aspects of human
resources activity for more than 10,000 store@rRai serving at Starbucks, Mr. Ravener held Vimesklent of Human Resources roles for
The Home Depot's Store Support Center and a doerfesdt division from April 2003 to September 2008t. Ravener also served in
executive roles in both human resources and opesatit Footstar, Inc. and roles of increasing lesiie at PepsiCo.

Mr. Sparksjoined Dollar General in March 2012 as Executiveé/President of Store Operations. Prior to joifdudjar General,
Mr. Sparks served as Division President, Seattlésioin, for Safeway Inc., a food and drug retaigerple he had held since 2001. As Divis
President of the Seattle Division, Mr. Sparks wesponsible for the supervision of approximately &tles and approximately 23,000
employees in the northwest region and oversawesate, finance and operations of the Seattle DividMr. Sparks has 36 years of retail
experience including a 34-year career with Safewiagre he held roles of increasing responsibiligiiding merchandising manager (1987),
category manager (1987-1990), divisional directanerchandising, grocery and general merchandi8@Q11997) and divisional vice
president of marketing (1997-2001).

Mr. Vasosjoined Dollar General in December 2008 as ExecWiiwe President, Division President and Chief Marudtising Officer.
Prior to joining Dollar General, Mr. Vasos servadeikecutive positions with Longs Drug Stores Coagion for 7 years, including Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer (Febyu2008 through November 2008) and Senior Vice Bezgiand Chief Merchandising
Officer (2001-2008), where he was responsible lgplagarmacy and front-end marketing, merchandisprgcurement, supply chain,
advertising, store development, store layout amde@llocation, and the operation of three distidnucenters. He also previously served in
leadership positions at Phar-Mor Food and Drug dncl Eckerd Drug Corp.

Ms. Elliott joined Dollar General as Senior Vice President@adtroller in August 2005. Prior to joining Doll&eneral, she served as
Vice President and Controller of Big Lots, Incglaseout retailer, from May 2001 to August 2005e@®eeing a staff of 140 employees at Big
Lots, she was responsible for accounting operati@mancial reporting and internal audit. Priorserving at Big Lots, she served as Vice
President and Controller for Jitney-Jungle Storffe&merica, Inc., a grocery retailer, from April 1% March 2001. At Jitney-Jungle,
Ms. Elliott was responsible for the accounting @piens and the internal and external financial répg functions. Prior to serving at Jitney-
Jungle, she practiced public accounting for 12 g,e@iof which were with Ernst & Young LLP.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the New Y@idck Exchange under the symbol "DG." The highlamdsales prices during each quarter
in fiscal 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

First Second Third Fourth
2012 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 48.7¢ $ 56.0¢ $ 53.3¢ $ 50.8C
Low $ 41.2C $ 4537 $ 4558 $ 39.7¢

First Second Third Fourth
2011 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
High $ 335¢ $ 35.0¢ $ 40.71 $ 43.07
Low $ 2665 $ 31.1C $ 29.8¢ $ 38.3-

Our stock price at the close of the madreMarch 15, 2013, was $48.18. There were apprdeima,511 shareholders of record of our
common stock as of March 15, 2013.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid recurringd#imids subsequent to a merger transaction in 206hafe no current plans to pay any cash
dividends on our common stock and instead mayrreainings, if any, for future operation and expamsepurchases of our common stock,
or debt repayment. Any decision to declare andddagends in the future will be made at the disorebf our Board of Directors and will
depend on, among other things, our results of dipaa cash requirements, financial condition, cactual restrictions and other factors that
our Board of Directors may deem relevant. In additiour ability to pay dividends is limited by caats in our Credit Facilities. See
"Liquidity and Capital Resources" in the Managersebiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl &esults of Operations section of
this report for a description of restrictions orr ability to pay dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains informatiomyeeding purchases of our common stock made duniagjtiarter ended February 1, 2013 b
on behalf of Dollar General or any "affiliated phaser," as defined by Rule 10b-18(a)(3) of the Bes Exchange Act of 1934

Total Approximate

Number of Shares Dollar Value of

Total Purchased as Shares that May
Number of Average Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Plans or Under the Plans

Period Purchased per Share Programs(a) or Programs(a)
11/03/12- 11/30/12 — 3 — — §$ 218,565,00
12/01/12- 12/31/12 1,719,511 $ 43.6- 1,719,511 $ 143,565,00
01/01/13- 02/01/13 — 3 = — $ 143,565,00
Total 1,719,511 $ 43.6- 1,719,511 $ 143,565,00

(a) On August 29, 2012, our Board of Directors approaethare repurchase program of up to $500 millfarutstanding
shares of our common stock. Purchases may be nmalde the authorizations in the open market or ivapely
negotiated transactions from time to time subjecharket conditions. The repurchase program haxpwation date
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On March 19, 2013, our Board of Directorsreased the authorization under the repurchagggmby $500 million, resulting in
approximately $643.6 million remaining available foe repurchase of our common stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulatotel return provided shareholders on Dollar Gah€orporation's common stock relative
to the cumulative total returns of the S&P 500 indad the S&P Retailing index. An investment of 81@ith reinvestment of all dividends)
is assumed to have been made in our common stacinaach of the indexes on 11/13/2009, the dataiofnitial public offering.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Dollar General Corporation, the S&P 500 Indexand S&P Retailing Index

5250
5200 1
$150 1
5100

550

111309 12910 12811 a2 21113
—8— Dollar General Corporation —&—S&P 500 —&— S&P Retailing
* $100 invested on 11/13/09 in stock or 10/31/0%dek, including reinvestment of dividends. Indegakulated on month-end basis.

Copyright© 2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hilbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.

11/13/09  1/29/10  _1/28/11 2/3/12 2/1/13

Dollar General Corporation 100.0C 103.3¢ 124.9¢ 184.5. 203.6:
S&P 500 100.0C 104.1¢ 127.27 132.6¢ 154.8¢
S&P Retailing 100.0C 104.3: 135.2¢ 156.6¢ 199.2"

The stock price performance included in this gragphot necessarily indicative of future stock priegformance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth selectedsmlitiated financial information of Dollar Generabr@oration as of the dates and for the per
indicated. The selected historical statement ofatns data and statement of cash flows datahfofiscal years ended February 1, 2013,
February 3, 2012 and January 28, 2011, and bakirext data as of February 1, 2013 and Februai®12, have been derived from our
historical audited consolidated financial stateraémtluded elsewhere in this report. The selecisitical statement of operations data and
statement of cash flows data for the fiscal yeaygeoiods, as applicable, ended January 29, 20d @amuary 30, 2009 and balance sheet data
as of January 28, 2011, January 29, 2010 and JaB80aR009 presented in this table have been difreen audited consolidated financial

statements not included in this report.
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The information set forth below should bad in conjunction with, and is qualified by refeze to, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes included in Patel) B of this report and the Management's Discassil Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations included in Part Il, If2of this report.

Year Ended

(Amounts in millions, excluding
per share data,
number of stores, selling squar
feet, and net sales February 1, February 3, January 28, January 29, January 30,
per square foot) 2013 2012(1) 2011 2010 2009
Statement of

Operations Data:
Net sales $ 16,022.. $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.( $ 11,796.. $ 10,457’
Cost of goods sol 10,936. 10,109.. 8,858.¢ 8,106.t 7,396.¢
Gross profit 5,085.: 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢ 3,689.¢ 3,061.:
Selling, general and

administrative

expense: 3,430.: 3,207.: 2,902.t 2,736.¢ 2,448.¢
Litigation settlement an

related costs, n — — — — 32.C
Operating profit 1,655.! 1,490.¢ 1,274.. 953.¢ 580.¢
Interest expens 127.¢ 204.¢ 274.( 345.¢ 388.¢
Other (income) expen: 30.C 60.€ 15.1 b5t (2.9
Income before income

taxes 1,497.. 1,225 985.( 552.1 194.¢
Income tax expens 544, 458.¢ 357.1 212.i 86.2
Net income $ 9527 $ 7667 9 627.¢ $ 3392 $ 108.2
Earnings per share—

basic $ 2871 $ 22t % 184 $ 108 % 0.34
Earnings per share—

diluted 2.8t 2.2z 1.82 1.04 0.3¢
Dividends per shar — — — 0.752¢ —
Statement of Cash

Flows Data:
Net cash provided b

(used in):

Operating activitie! $ 1,131 $ 1,050 $ 8247 $ 6728 $ 575.

Investing activities (569.9) (513.9) (418.9 (248.0) (152.¢)

Financing activitie: (546.9 (908.0) (130.9 (580.%) (144.9
Total capital

expenditure: (571.¢) (514.9 (420.9 (250.%) (205.5)
Other Financial and

Operating Data:
Same store sales grow

(2) 4.7% 6.C% 4.%% 9.5% 9.C%
Same store sales( $ 14,992 $ 13,626.° $ 12,227.. $ 11,356.! $ 10,118.
Number of store

included in same stor

sales calculatio 9,78: 9,25¢ 8,71: 8,32¢ 8,15:
Number of stores (:

period end’ 10,50¢ 9,931 9,37: 8,82¢ 8,36:
Selling square feet (in

thousands at period

end) 76,90¢ 71,774 67,09 62,49 58,801
Net sales per square fi

3) $ 21€ % 212 % 201 % 19t % 18C
Consumables salt 73.%% 73.2% 71.€% 70.8% 69.2%
Seasonal sale 13.€% 13.8% 14.5% 14.5% 14.€%
Home products sale 6.€% 6.8% 7.C% 7.4% 8.2%
Apparel sale: 5.€% 6.2% 6.S% 7.2% 7.%
Rent expens $ 614: $ 542 $ 489 $ 4286 $ @ 389

Balance Sheet Data (at
period end):

Cash and cash
equivalents and sht-



term investment $ 140 $ 126.1 $ 497.¢  $ 222.1

Total asset 10,367. 9,688.t 9,546.: 8,863.!
Long-term debi 2,772.: 2,618t 3,288.: 3,403.¢
Total shareholders'

equity 4,985.: 4,668." 4,054." 3,390.:

(1) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2012 was conpnéé3 weeks
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(2) Same-store sales are calculated based upon dtatesdre open at least 13 full fiscal months amdaie open at the end
of the reporting period. When applicable, we exeltlte sales in the non-comparable week of a 53-wyeakfrom the
same-store sales calculation.

3 Net sales per square foot was calculated baisedtal sales for the preceding 12 months aB@ending date of the
reporting period divided by the average sellingassgufootage during the period, including the entheffiscal year, the
beginning of the fiscal year, and the end of edatuo three interim fiscal quarter

Year Ended
February 1, February 3, January 28, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges(1) 4.7x 3.8x 3.1x 2.1x 1.4x

(1) For purposes of computing the ratio of earsitmfixed charges, (a) earnings consist of incoss) before income
taxes, plus fixed charges less capitalized expemetated to indebtedness (amortization expensedpitalized interest |
not significant) and (b) fixed charges consistniérest expense (whether expensed or capitalitezlgmortization of
debt issuance costs and discounts related to iedebss, and the interest portion of rent expe
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read witld, ia qualified in its entirety by, the Consolidhteénancial Statements and the notes
thereto. It also should be read in conjunction wiik Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-LoakBtatements and the Risk Factors
disclosures set forth in the Introduction and ienit 1A of this report, respectively.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer inlinied States by number of stores, with 10,55rsttocated in 40 states as of March 1, 2013,
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwesterd eastern United States. We offer a broad $eteot merchandise, including
consumable products such as food, paper and cteaniducts, health and beauty products and petisgppnd non-consumable products
such as seasonal merchandise, home decor and dmnastl basic apparel. Our merchandise includgs duiality national brands from
leading manufacturers, as well as comparable guafivate brand selections with prices at subséhdiscounts to national brands. We offer
our customers these national brand and privatedguesducts at everyday low prices (typically $10ess) in our convenient smddbx (small
store) locations.

The customers we serve are value-conscmasy with low or fixed incomes, and Dollar Gendra always been intensely focused on
helping them make the most of their spending delldfe believe our convenient store format and beselction of high quality products at
compelling values have driven our substantial ghoawtd financial success over the years. Like atberpanies, we have been operating for
approximately four years in an environment with @ing economic challenges and uncertainties. Consuare facing sustained high rates of
unemployment, fluctuating food, gasoline and eneagts, rising medical costs, and a continued weskm housing and consumer credit
markets, and the timetable and strength of econogsimvery remains uncertain. The longer our custerhave to manage under such diffic
conditions, the more difficult it is for them taetch their spending dollars, particularly for det@onary purchases. Nonetheless, as a result of
our long-term mission of serving these customeygplted with a vigorous focus on improving our op@gand financial performance, our
2012 and 2011 financial results were strong, anderein optimistic with regard to executing outiatives in 2013.

At the beginning of 2008, we defined fopemting priorities, which we remain keenly focusedexecuting. These priorities are:
1) drive productive sales growth, 2) increase agosg margins, 3) leverage process improvementsnémuination technology to reduce costs,
and 4) strengthen and expand Dollar General'sreutitiserving others.

Our first priority is driving productive les growth by increasing shopper frequency ands&etion amount and maximizing sales per
square foot. In 2012, sales in same-stores inaldasd.7%, due to increases in both traffic andaye transaction. Inflation had a lesser
impact in 2012 than in 2011. Sales in sastares were aided by continued enhancements tcabegory management processes which he
determine the most productive merchandise offeriagsur customers. Specific sales growth initiagiin 2012 included: continued
improvement in merchandise in-stock levels; theagson of the number of coolers for refrigerated finzen foods in approximately 1,400
existing stores; further progress on our beer ainé wollout; merchandising initiatives for electicmand domestic goods; and the impact of
592 remodeled and relocated stores during the yreaddition to same-store sales growth, we op&2&dnew stores, including 41 Dollar
General Market stores and 35 Dollar General "Ptistes in 2012. Plus stores are our newest stameatowhich are slightly larger than our
traditional stores with a significantly expandeozien and refrigerated food section.

Our second priority is to increase grosfipthrough effective category management, theaesjon of private brand offerings, increased
foreign sourcing, shrink reduction, distributiordan
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transportation efficiencies and improvements topriging and markdown model, while remaining contedtto our everyday low price
strategy. We constantly review our pricing stratagy work diligently to minimize product cost inases as we focus on providing our
customers with quality merchandise at great valuresur consumables category, we strive to offerdptimal balance of the most popular
nationally advertised brands and our own privassmts, which generally have higher gross profits#tan national brands. Commodities ¢
inflation moderated in 2012 following a year ofrficant increases throughout 2011. Accordinglyei@i price increases passed through to
our customers were less in 2012. We remain comdnitt@ur seasonal, home, and apparel categorthsugh we expect the growth of
consumables to continue to outpace these categgés in 2013 due to anticipated continued ecoogréssures which limit our customers'
discretionary spending.

Our third priority is leveraging processpimavements and information technology to reducéscé¥e are committed as an organizatic
extract costs, particularly Selling, general anchiadstrative expenses (SG&A) that do not affect¢hstomer experience, and plan to utilize
our procurement capabilities and other initiatitefurther these efforts. In 2012, we again focusedowering our store labor costs as a
percentage of sales while improving our overalkeoer experience. We further utilized our new worké management system and
simplified many of our store processes, resultimgignificant cost savings as a percentage of sales

Our fourth priority is to strengthen angard Dollar General's culture of serving others.dtstomers this means helping them "Save
time. Save money. Every day!" by providing cleae]lvstocked stores with quality products at lowcpd. For employees, this means creating
an environment that attracts and retains key enggl®yhroughout the organization. For the publis, feans giving back to our store
communities through our charitable and other effdrt 2012, we, along with our vendors, customadsamployees, donated millions of
dollars through our various charitable initiativesr shareholders, this means meeting their expetaof an efficiently and profitably run
organization that operates with compassion andjiitye

Our continued focus on these four pricsitiesulted in improved 2012 financial performaneerdhe prior year as follows. Note that
fiscal 2012 consisted of 52 weeks while 2011 caedisf 53 weeks. Basis points, as referred to bedoavequal to 0.01 percent of total sales.

. Total sales in 2012 increased 8.2% over 2011. $alesme-stores, over a comparable 52-week pdriotgased 4.7%, with
increases in both customer traffic and averages#éretion amount. Consumables drove 83% of the itndedase in sales with t
most significant increases in perishables, candlysaacks. Average sales per square foot in 2012 $&16, up from $213
(including a $4 contribution from the 538 week) in 2011.

. Operating profit increased 11.0% to $1.66 hillior 10.3% of sales, compared to $1.49 billionl@1% of sales in 2011. The
improvement in our operating profit rate was atttible to a 25 basis-point reduction of SG&A aridl@sis-point increase in
our gross profit rate.

. We are pleased with our ability to manage our gpvsfit as consumables continued to increase as@ptage of our overall
sales mix. We continued to gain efficiencies in wansportation network and had a lower LIFO chahgevever, the
markdown rate was higher in 2012, primarily in agghaand we experienced a modest increase in oinkstate.

. The improvement in SG&A, as a percentage ofssalas due in large part to improved utilizatiorstare labor, partially offset
by higher rent expense and higher fees associdatediebit card transactions. For other factors,thealetailed discussion that
follows.

. Interest expense decreased by $77.0 million in 2082127.9 million, as a result of lower averageriest rates on our

outstanding long-term obligations and lower averdefat balances throughout the year. In 2012, weae€ed the remaining
balance of our 11.875%/12.625% senior subordinadéels, resulting in a non-operating charge of $a€llon.
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. We reported net income of $952.7 million, or $2p@5% diluted share, for fiscal 2012, compared toimeime of $766.7 millior
or $2.22 per diluted share, for fiscal 2011.

. We generated approximately $1.13 billion of cfistvs from operating activities in 2012, an ingeaf 7.7% compared to
2011. We primarily utilized our cash flows from oggng activities to invest in our business andurepase our common sto¢

. During 2012 we opened 625 new stores, remodeleglacated 592 stores, and closed 56 stores.

Also in 2012, we refinanced the remainid§ ¥ million of our 11.875%/12.625% outstanding sesubordinated notes with the issuance
of $500 million of 4.125% senior notes due 201 TiHer reducing interest expense and strengtheningreancial position. Also in 2012, we
repurchased approximately 14.4 million shares ofoatstanding common stock for $671.4 million.

In 2013, we plan to continue to focus onfour key operating priorities. We will continue tefine and improve our store standards i
attempt to increase sales, focusing on maintaiaingnsistent look and feel across the chain. Coetirprogress on improving our
merchandise in-stock position is an important el@nmeimproving overall customer service and insing sales. As part of our category
management program, we plan to improve the squatade utilization in our legacy stores that havelh®een converted to our current
customer centric format in addition to expanding i@frigerated food offerings in approximately 105kisting stores. We have initiatives
underway to increase our margins on many itemsinvghr consumables category, from which the majaftour sales are generated. We
plan to add approximately 320 new private brandsaamables items during the year and by the end o$@eond fiscal quarter, we expect to
offer tobacco products in most of our locations. bééeve tobacco products will help drive additibsaes through both increased traffic and
average transaction amount, although we expeace threglucts to result in a reduction of our grossiprate. We also plan to continue to
introduce new non-consumable products that we\eeligll resonate with our customers' needs andegsiWe will continue our focused
shrink reduction efforts by employing our exceptieporting tools, enhanced shrink optimization psses and defensive merchandising
fixtures. We will also continue to pursue globapoptunities to directly source a larger portioroaf products, with the potential for
significant savings to current costs, and to wdilimr overall purchasing expertise to reduce oonatic purchase costs.

We believe that there is opportunity to ioy® our inventory turns, and we are focused in3261 improved inventory management.
Initiatives in process include operational effadptimize presentation levels, improvesitock levels, and enhance forecasting and allat
execution. We are also in the process of implemgrdan improved supply chain solution to assistrantional and core inventory
forecasting, ordering, monitoring and improvingentory visibility from purchase to receipt to maiimt efficient levels of inventory.
Eventually, all of our SKUs will be managed througb new supply chain solution. We expect this sapply chain solution to also improve
several processes in the stores which we belieNeesult in work simplification and enhance ouewi of inventory levels in the supply che

With regard to leveraging information teology and process improvements to reduce costexyect to gain further efficiencies with
additional utilization of our workforce managemsepstems and improved store technology and commiimnsacapabilities. We will also
seek to enhance our procurement capabilities &edadditional steps to augment our strong cultfiest reduction.

Finally, we are pleased with the perforneaatour 2012 new stores, remodels and relocatamjn 2013 we plan to open 635 new
stores and remodel or relocate an additional 5&@st

Key Financial Metrics. We have identified the following as our mostical financial metrics:

. Same-store sales growth;

. Sales per square foot;
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. Gross profit, as a percentage of sales;

. Selling, general and administrative expenses,mseentage of sales;

. Operating profit;

. Inventory turnover;

. Cash flow;

. Net income;

. Earnings per share;

. Earnings before interest, income taxes, deptieniand amortization;

. Return on invested capital; and

. Adjusted debt to Earnings before interest, incoaxes, depreciation and amortization and rent expens

Readers should refer to the detailed dsonsof our operating results below for additiocamments on financial performance in the
current year periods as compared with the prior pesdods.

Results of Operations

Accounting Periods. The following text contains references to ye2%2, 2011 and 2010, which represent fiscal yeadgd
February 1, 2013, February 3, 2012 and Januar@®8l, respectively. Our fiscal year ends on thddyriclosest to January 31. Fiscal year
2011 was a 53-week accounting period and fiscaisy2@12 and 2010 were 52-week accounting periods.

Seasonality. The nature of our business is seasonal totaisaxtent. Primarily because of sales of holidalgted merchandise, sales
in our fourth quarter (November, December and Jafurave historically been higher than sales addan each of the first three quarters of
the fiscal year. Expenses and, to a greater exipptating profit vary by quarter. Results of aigetshorter than a full year may not be
indicative of results expected for the entire y&arthermore, the seasonal nature of our businaysaffiect comparisons between periods.
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The following table contains results of @®ns data for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2at@,the dollar and percentage variances

among those years.

2012 vs. 201 2011 vs. 201(

(amounts in
millions, except
per share Amount % Amount %
amounts) 2012 2011 2010 Change Change Change Change
Net sales b

category:
Consumable $ 11,844.t $ 10,833." $ 9,332.. $ 1,011.1 9.3%%$ 1,501.6 16.1%
% of net sale 73.93% 73.17% 71.59%
Seasons 2,172.¢ 2,051.: 1,887.¢ 121.3 5.9 163.2 8.6
% of net sale 13.56% 13.85% 14.48%
Home

products 1,061.¢ 1,005.: 917.¢ 56.4 5.6 87.6 9.5
% of net sale 6.63% 6.79% 7.04%
Apparel 943.: 917.1 897.: 26.2 2.9 19.8 2.2
% of net sale 5.89% 6.19% 6.88%
Net sales $ 16,022.: $ 14,807.. $ 13,035.( $ 1,214.9 8.2%%$ 1,772.2 13.6%
Cost of good

sold 10,936." 10,109.: 8,858.¢ 827.4 8.2 1,250.8 14.1
% of net sale 68.26% 68.27% 67.96%
Gross profit 5,085.¢ 4,697.¢ 4,176.¢ 387.5 8.2 521.4 12.5
% of net sale 31.74% 31.73% 32.04%
Selling,

general an

administral

expense: 3,430.: 3,207.: 2,902." 223.0 7.0 304.6 10.5
% of net sale 21.41% 21.66% 22.27%
Operating

profit 1,655.! 1,490.¢ 1,274.. 164.5 11.0 216.7 17.0
% of net sale 10.33% 10.07% 9.77%
Interest

expense 127.¢ 204 .¢ 274 .( (77.0) (37.6) (69.1) (25.2)
% of net sale 0.80% 1.38% 2.10%
Other

(income)

expenst 30.C 60.€ 15.1 (30.7) (50.6) 455 3014
% of net sale 0.19% 0.41% 0.12%
Income

before

income

taxes 1,497 .« 1,225.: 985.( 272.1 22.2 240.3 24.4
% of net sale 9.35% 8.27% 7.56%
Income taxe: 544 458.¢ 357.1 86.1 18.8 101.5 28.4
% of net sale 3.40% 3.10% 2.74%
Net income $ 9527 $ 766.7 $ 627.¢ $ 186.0 24.3%%$ 138.8 22.1%
% of net sale 5.95% 5.18% 4.82%
Diluted

earnings

per share $ 28t $ 22z $ 1.8z $ 0.63 28.4% % 0.40 22.0%

Net Sales. The net sales increase in 2012 reflects a sare-sales increase of 4.7% compared to 20112¢42, there were 9,783
same-stores which accounted for sales of $14.898rhilSamestores include stores that have been open foast 8 months and remain o}
at the end of the reporting period. Same-storessateeases are calculated based on the compa@lbledar weeks in the prior year. The
remainder of the increase in sales in 2012 waibatible to new stores, partially offset by salesf closed stores. The increase in sales
reflects increased customer traffic and averageséretion amounts, as a result of the refinementiofnerchandise offerings, improvements
in our category management processes and stomasthsn and increased utilization of square footagwr stores. Increases in sales of
consumables outpaced our non-consumables, with ehknacks, candy, beverages and perishablestugintg the majority of the increase
throughout the year.
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The net sales increase in 2011 reflectar@esstore sales increase of 6.0% compared to Fet@011, there were 9,254 same-stores
which accounted for sales of $13.63 billion. Acdogly, the same store sales percentage for 201lidges sales from the 3% week as there
was no comparable week in 2010. Net sales for 31& @eek of 2011 totaled $289.3 million. The remaindiethe increase in sales in 2011
was attributable to new stores, partially offseshies from closed stores. The increase in sdlesteincreased customer traffic and average
transaction amounts, which is the result of theiooed refinement of our merchandise offerings,ahgmization of our category
management processes, further improvement in stanglards, and an increase in sales prices ragpliimarily from passing through certain
cost increases and increased utilization of sqigex@age in our stores. Increases in sales of coablas outpaced our non-consumables, with
sales of packaged foods, snacks, beverages arsthales, contributing the majority of the incretiseughout the year.

Of our four major merchandise categories,donsumables category, which generally has arlgwmass profit rate than the other three
categories, has grown most significantly over thstgeveral years. Because of the impact of salesemmgross profit, we continually review
our merchandise mix and strive to adjust it wheprapriate. Maintaining an appropriate sales miarisntegral part of achieving our gross
profit and sales goals. Both the number of custanamsactions and average transaction amount isedeia 2012 and 2011, and we believe
that our stores have benefited to some degree dittmacting new customers who are seeking valuerasudt of the challenging
macroeconomic environment in recent years.

Gross Profit. The gross profit rate as a percentage of sehss31.7% in both 2012 and 2011. Factors favorafbacting our gross
profit rate include a significantly lower LIFO prigion, higher inventory markups, and improved tpamtation efficiencies due in part to a
decrease in average miles per delivery enablediby@w distribution centers and other logistictidtives. These positive factors were offset
by higher markdowns, a reduction in price increas&bsa modest increase in our inventory shrinkaggeaompared to 2011. In addition,
consumables, which generally have lower markups tfzan-consumables, represented a greater percesftagkes in 2012 than in 2011. We
recorded a LIFO provision of $1.4 million in 201@nepared to a $47.7 million provision in 2011, priityaas a result of lower inflation on
commodities.

The gross profit rate as a percentagelesaas 31.7% in 2011 compared to 32.0% in 20H@&ctine of 31 basis points. Consumables
also represented a greater percentage of sal€d intBan in 2010. Our purchase costs increasedaphndue to increased commodity costs.
In addition, we incurred higher markdowns and ocans$portation costs were impacted by higher fuekran 2011. Our LIFO provision
increased to $47.7 million in 2011 compared to $6ilon in 2010. In 2011, our mix of home and apgpanerchandise decreased as
percentage of sales and the gross profit rate mitiése categories decreased due, in part, tormgéekdowns. Factors positively affecting
gross profit include the selective price increassted above as well as lower inventory shrinkagkdistribution center costs, as a percentage
of sales.

SG&A Expense. SG&A expense was 21.4% as a percentage of isa®f82 compared to 21.7% in 2011, an improverné6 basis
points. Retail labor expense increased at a loaterthan our increase in sales, partially due gwing benefits of our workforce management
system coupled with savings due to various stonksimplification initiatives. Also positively immding SG&A was lower legal settlement
costs in 2012 due to two legal matters settleditlXor a combined expense of $13.1 million anditiygact of decreased expenses ($2.9
million in 2012 compared to $11.1 million in 20I&Jating to secondary offerings of our common st@sts that increased at a rate higher
than our sales increase include rent expenseatsexiated with the increased use of debit cardislapreciation expense, primarily related to
additions of certain store equipment and fixtures.

SG&A expense was 21.7% as a percentagaled ;1 2011 compared to 22.3% in 2010, an impr@rerof 61 basis points reflecting the
favorable impact of the 13.6% increase in sales. In
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addition, retail labor expense increased at aloater than our increase in sales, partially duth&rollout of our workforce management
system. A decrease in incentive compensation diiyemore aggressive bonus targets, and variougedsttion efforts affecting rent,
benefits, electricity and other power costs, amathgr expenses, also contributed to the overaliedse in SG&A as a percentage of sales.
Costs that increased at a rate higher than oueaserin sales included those associated with asipigéd store data network rollout,
depreciation and amortization expense, and feexiassd with the increased use of debit cards. &m@ation and amortization increases were
primarily due to investments in the store data oetvand store properties purchased. SG&A in 20tludes expenses totaling $19.7 million
for expenses (primarily share-based compensatnanyied in connection with secondary offerings @f common stock.

Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense in 2012 cadpar2011 is due to lower average outstanding-teng obligations
resulting from our repurchases and refinancingndébtedness in 2012 and 2011 and lower all-inéstenates on our long-term obligations.
See Liquidity and Capital Resources below for ferttliscussion.

The decrease in interest expense in 20ftpaced to 2010 was primarily the result of loweerage outstanding long-term obligations
and lower average interest rates due to the redemgt our senior notes due 2015 with cash anddwgngs under our revolving credit
facility in the first half of 2011 and lower all-interest rates on our term loan, primarily duesihuced notional amounts on our interest rate
swaps.

We had outstanding variable-rate debt c8$Dillion and $1.63 billion as of February 1, 3tdnd February 3, 2012, respectively, after
taking into consideration the impact of intereserswaps. The remainder of our outstanding indelgtesliat February 1, 2013 and February 3,
2012 was fixed rate debt.

See the detailed discussion under "Liquiditd Capital Resources" regarding repurchasesedimancing of various long-term
obligations and the related effect on interest agpen the periods presented.

Other (Income) Expense.In 2012, we recorded pretax losses of $29.0anitesulting from repurchases of $450.7 milliaggeegate
principal amount of our Senior Subordinated Notes pccrued and unpaid interest.

In 2011, we recorded pretax losses of $61lon resulting from repurchases of $864.3 moifliaggregate principal amount of our senior
notes due 2015 plus accrued and unpaid interest.

In 2010, we recorded pretax losses of $irlifon resulting from the repurchase in the opearket of $115.0 million aggregate princi
amount of our senior notes due 2015 plus accruddiapaid interest.

Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for 2012, 2Gid 2010 were expenses of 36.4%, 37.4%, and 36exyectively.

The 2012 effective tax rate of 36.4% wasager than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyntar the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate. The 2012 effective tate of 36.4% was lower than the 2011 rate oA%rdue primarily to the favorable resolut
of a federal income tax examination during 2012.

The 2011 effective tax rate of 37.4% wasager than the statutory tax rate of 35% due pilyntar the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate. The 2011 effectivienaas greater than the 2010 rate of 36.3% prigndrik to the effective resolution of various
examinations by the taxing authorities in 2010 thidtnot reoccur, to the same extent, in 2011. &lfastors resulted in rate increases in 2
as compared to 2010, associated with state incares and income tax related interest expense.dsesan federal jobs related tax credits,
primarily due to the Hire Act's Retention Credéduced the effective rate in 2011 as compared 16.2Dhe Retention Credit was only
effective for 2011.
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The 2010 effective tax rate of 36.3% wasatgr than the statutory tax rate of 35%, alsopdimearily to the inclusion of state income
taxes in the total effective tax rate.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The entities involved in ownership struetunderlying the leases for three of our distriuttenters meet the accounting definition of a
Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). One of these diBtition centers has been recorded as a finandligadion whereby its property and
equipment are reflected in our consolidated balaheets. The land and buildings of the other twtrithution centers have been recorded as
operating leases. We are not the primary beneficfthese VIEs and, accordingly, have not inclutheste entities in our consolidated
financial statements. Other than the foregoingaveenot party to any off balance sheet arrangements

Effects of Inflation

We experienced little or no overall prodcast inflation in 2012 or 2010. In 2011, we expaded increased commodity cost pressures
mainly related to food, housewares and apparelymtsdvhich were driven by increases in cotton, suggffee, groundnut, resin, petroleum
and other raw material commodity costs. We beltbet our ability to selectively increase sellingcps in response to cost increases in 2011
partially mitigated the effect of these cost inaesaon our overall results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition and Recent Developments

During the past three years, we have géee@n aggregate of approximately $3.0 billionastecflows from operating activities and
incurred approximately $1.51 billion in capital exglitures. During that period, we expanded the rarmbstores we operate by 1,678,
representing growth of approximately 19%, and waageled or relocated 1,671 stores, or approximd@¥s, of the stores we operated as of
February 1, 2013. We intend to continue our curstnigtegy of pursuing store growth, remodels atategions in 2013 and for the next
several years.

At February 1, 2013, we had total outstagdiebt (including the current portion of long-teobiligations) of $2.77 billion, which
includes our senior secured asset-based revolveditdacility ("ABL Facility" and, together withhie Term Loan Facility, the "Credit
Facilities"), and senior notes, all of which arsctébed in greater detail below. We had $873.4iomlavailable for borrowing under the ABL
Facility at February 1, 2013.

We believe our cash flow from operationd aristing cash balances, combined with availahilitder the Credit Facilities (described in
greater detail below), and access to the debt rteavkiél provide sufficient liquidity to fund our ctent obligations, projected working capital
requirements and capital spending for a perioditithides the next twelve months as well as the seweral years.

We intend to refinance outstanding amountier our secured Credit Facilities with new unsedlong-term debt of up to $2.3 billion,
expected to consist of new unsecured term loansiewdunsecured senior notes. In addition, we interehter into a new unsecured cash
flow based revolving credit facility, which is cently expected to have no initial revolver borroggroutstanding. The actual amounts and
type of financing is dependent on market conditiand other factors. Although we currently anticgpabmpleting this financing in the first
quarter of 2013, there can be no assurance thatiwemplete the refinancing on the foregoing terar at all.
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Credit Facilities

Overview. The Credit Facilities consist of the $1.964idnil Term Loan Facility and the ABL Facility whidfas a maximum of
$1.2 billion (of which up to $350.0 million is aValdle for letters of credit), subject to borrowibgse availability. The ABL Facility includes
borrowing capacity available for letters of creatitd for short-term borrowings referred to as swirgloans.

We amended the Term Loan Facility and tBé& A&acility in March 2012. The amendment of thefdroan Facility resulted in the
extension of the maturity on $879.7 million of therm Loan Facility to July 6, 2017. The remainirigd8 billion of the Term Loan Facility
will mature on July 6, 2014. The applicable marfginborrowings under the Term Loan Facility remaimehanged. The amendment of the
ABL Facility extended the maturity of the ABL Fatjlto July 6, 2014, and increased the total comiit to $1.2 billion.

Interest Rates and FeesBorrowings under the Credit Facilities beaeiest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plusyr option,
either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate (which is uguatjual to the prime rate). The applicable mafgirborrowings under the Term Loan
Facility is 2.75% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.75% fuase-rate borrowings. The interest rate for bwimgs under the Term Loan Facility
was 3.0% (without giving effect to the market rateaps discussed below) as of February 1, 2013.

As of February 1, 2013, the applicable rimafgr borrowings under the ABL Facility was 1.50&6 LIBOR borrowings and 0.50% for
base-rate borrowings, and the commitment fee tdetiders for any unutilized commitments was 0.3 f#¥annum. See Item 7A.
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About kktrRisk" below for a discussion of our use of iagt rate swaps to manage our interest
rate risk.

Prepayments. The senior secured credit agreement for thenTearan Facility requires us to prepay outstandergitioans, subject to
certain exceptions, with:

. up to 50% of our annual excess cash flow (as defim¢he credit agreement) if our total net leveraatio were to exceed 5.C
1.0;
. 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-orglicaurse asset sales or other dispositions of pippeexcess of $25.0 million

in the aggregate and subject to our right to reshtiee proceeds; and

. 100% of the net cash proceeds of any incurrendelof, other than proceeds from debt permitted utiedesenior secured cre
agreement.

The mandatory prepayments discussed abdMeenapplied to the Term Loan Facility as dirett®y the senior secured credit agreement.
No prepayments have been required under the prepaypnovisions listed above. The Term Loan Facdidy be prepaid in whole or in p:
at any time.

In addition, the senior secured credit agrent for the ABL Facility requires us to prepag &BL Facility, subject to certain exceptions,
as follows:

. With 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-@dircourse asset sales or other dispositions ofIRieg Facility Collateral
(as defined below) in excess of $1.0 million in #ggregate and subject to our right to reinvesptioeeeds; and

. To the extent such extensions of credit exceedhtte current borrowing base (as defined in theoses@cured credit agreem
for the ABL Facility).

The mandatory prepayments discussed abiMeenapplied to the ABL Facility as directed biyetsenior secured credit agreement fo
ABL Facility. No prepayments have been requiredairiie prepayment provisions listed above.
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An event of default under the senior seduredit agreements will occur upon a change ofrobas defined in the senior secured credit
agreements governing our Credit Facilities. Upomeant of default, indebtedness under the Credilifi@s may be accelerated, in which
case we will be required to repay all outstandoank plus accrued and unpaid interest and all aimne@unts outstanding under the Credit
Facilities.

Guarantee and Security. All obligations under the Credit Facilities aneconditionally guaranteed by substantially albaf existing
and future domestic subsidiaries (excluding ceritaimaterial subsidiaries and certain subsidiaresighated by us under our senior secured
credit agreements as "unrestricted subsidiariesf@yred to, collectively, as U.S. Guarantors.

All obligations and related guarantees uitide Term Loan Facility are secured by:

. a second-priority security interest in all existangd after-acquired inventory, accounts receivabid, other assets arising from
such inventory and accounts receivable, of our @m@and each U.S. Guarantor (the "Revolving Fgdiibllateral), subject
to certain exceptions;

. a first-priority security interest in, and maatges on, substantially all of our and each U.Sr&uar's tangible and intangible
assets (other than the Revolving Facility Colldjeend

. a first-priority pledge of 100% of the capital stdweld by us, or any of our domestic subsidiaried &re directly owned by us
or one of the U.S. Guarantors and 65% of the vataqgjtal stock of each of our existing and futweefgn subsidiaries that are
directly owned by us or one of the U.S. Guarantors.

Certain Covenants and Events of DefaulfThe senior secured credit agreements contaumedber of covenants that, among other th
restrict, subject to certain exceptions, our aptlit

. incur additional indebtedness;

. create liens;

. sell assets;

. pay dividends and distributions or repurchase apital stock;

. make investments or acquisitions;

. repay or repurchase subordinated indebtedness;

. amend material agreements governing our subatetinndebtedness; or
. change our lines of business.

The senior secured credit agreements alstain certain customary affirmative covenants evehts of default.

At February 1, 2013, we had the followimgaants outstanding under our ABL Facility: borrogsnof $286.5 million and letters of
credit of $40.1 million. We anticipate potentialrbmwings under any outstanding revolving crediilfgcduring the remainder of 2013 up to a
maximum of approximately $500 million at any onmaei which may include borrowings for the share repases discussed below.

Senior Notes due 2017

Overview. On July 12, 2012, we issued $500.0 million agate principal amount of 4.125% senior notes di& Zthe "Senior
Notes") which mature on July 15, 2017, pursuarrtindenture and a supplemental indenture eack datef July 12, 2012 (together,
"Senior Indenture").
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Interest on the Senior Notes is payableash on January 15 and July 15 of each year, anthenced on January 15, 2013. The Senior
Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed @eior unsecured basis by each of the existindwnde direct or indirect domesit
subsidiaries that guarantee the obligations undeCoedit Facilities.

We may redeem some or all of the SenioeBlat any time at redemption prices describedtdogé in the Senior Indenture. We also
may seek, from time to time, to retire some oofthe Senior Notes through cash purchases onpgée market, in privately negotiated
transactions or otherwise. Such repurchases, ifwiflydepend on prevailing market conditions, tiquidity requirements, contractual
restrictions and other factors. The amounts inviblveay be material.

Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a change of controgitng event, which is defined in the Senior Indesteach holder
of the Senior Notes has the right to require ugpaurchase some or all of such holder's SeniordNatta purchase price in cash equal to 101%
of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued amgiid interest, if any, to the repurchase date.

Covenants. The Senior Indenture contains covenants limjtamong other things, our ability and the abitifyour restricted
subsidiaries to (subject to certain exceptionsysotidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose obraslubstantially all of our assets; and incur or
guarantee indebtedness secured by liens on angssbvoting stock of significant subsidiaries.

Events of Default. The Senior Indenture also provides for evehttefault which, if any of them occurs, would perimi require the
principal of and accrued interest on the SenioreNdd become or to be declared due and payable.

Senior Subordinated Toggle Notes due 2017

On July 15, 2012, we used net proceeds framsale of the Senior Notes to redeem the remaBd50.7 million outstanding aggregate
principal amount of 11.875%/12.625% senior sub@t#id toggle notes due 2017 (the "Senior Subordindtges” which had been scheduled
to mature on July 15, 2017) at a redemption prfcE06.938% of the principal amount, plus accrued ampaid interest, resulting in a pretax
loss of $29.0 million. The redemption was effedtedccordance with the indenture dated as of JuB067 governing the Senior
Subordinated Notes. The pretax losses on thesgairtions are reflected in Other (income) expensaiir2012 consolidated statement of
income. We funded the redemption price for the @eBubordinated Notes with proceeds from the Sevddes.

Senior Notes due 2015

On April 29, 2011, we repurchased in theroparket $25.0 million outstanding aggregate jpalamount of our 10.625% senior notes
due 2015 at a redemption price of 107.0% of theggual amount, plus accrued and unpaid interestiltiag in a pretax loss of $2.2 million.
On July 15, 2011, we redeemed the remaining $884l®n outstanding aggregate principal amountwgtsnotes (which had been scheduled
to mature on July 15, 2015) at a redemption prfcB06.313% of the principal amount, plus accrued ampaid interest, resulting in a pretax
loss of $58.1 million. The redemption was effedtedccordance with the indenture dated as of JuRD67 governing the notes. The pretax
losses on these transactions are reflected in @itleame) expense in our 2011 consolidated stateoféncome. We funded the redemption
price with cash on hand and borrowings under thé& KBcility.

Adjusted EBITD/

Under the agreements governing the Cragtitlifies, certain limitations and restrictions tbarise if we are not able to satisfy and
remain in compliance with specified financial ratidManagement
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believes the most significant of such ratios isgteior secured incurrence test under the Creditifies. This test measures the ratio of the
senior secured debt to Adjusted EBITDA. This ratimuld need to be no greater than 4.25 to 1 to aswdth limitations and restrictions. As of
February 1, 2013, this ratio was 1.1 to 1. Sersoused debt is defined as our total debt securdikby or similar encumbrances less cash
cash equivalents. EBITDA is defined as income {l&ssn continuing operations before cumulative effef change in accounting principles
plus interest and other financing costs, net, @iowi for income taxes, and depreciation and araiitia. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as
EBITDA, further adjusted to give effect to adjustteerequired in calculating this covenant ratioemour Credit Facilities. EBITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA are not presentations made in adaoce with U.S. GAAP, are not measures of finarmgatormance or condition,
liquidity or profitability, and should not be codsred as an alternative to (1) net income, opeagyaticome or any other performance measures
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP or (2) afiag cash flows determined in accordance with GASAP. Additionally, EBITDA and
Adjusted EBITDA are not intended to be measureseaf cash flow for management's discretionary ase¢hey do not consider certain cash
requirements such as interest payments, tax pagmaadtdebt service requirements and replacemefitedfassets.

Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBKA has limitations as an analytical tool, and ddmot be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as repoueder U.S. GAAP. Because not all companies usdimgmalculations, these presentations of
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparabletber similarly titted measures of other compani#e believe that the presentat
of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is appropriate to pide additional information about the calculatidrttds financial ratio in the Credit
Facilities. Adjusted EBITDA is a material componehthis ratio. Specifically, non-compliance withetsenior secured indebtedness ratio
contained in our Credit Facilities could prohibitfuiom making investments, incurring liens, makéegtain restricted payments and incurring
additional secured indebtedness (other than thit#i@ala funding provided for under the senior seclicredit agreement and pursuant to
specified exceptions).

The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA undeet@redit Facilities is as follows:

Year Ended
February 1, February 3,
(in millions) 2013 2012
Net income $ 9527 $  766.]
Add (subtract)
Interest expens 127.¢ 204.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 293.t 264.1
Income taxe: 544.; 458.¢
EBITDA 1,918.¢ 1,694.
Adjustments
Loss on debt retireme 30.€ 60.2
(Gain) loss on hedging instrumel (2.9 0.4
Non-cash expense for sh-based award 217 15.2
Litigation settlement and related costs, — 13.1
Indirect merge-related cost 1.4 0.€
Other noi-cash charges (including LIF( 10.4 b3.:
Other 25 —
Total Adjustment: 64.2 143.%
Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,983.( $ 1,837.
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Interest Rate Sway

We use interest rate swaps to minimizeaigieof adverse changes in interest rates. Theapsware intended to reduce risk by hedgin
underlying economic exposure. Because of high tadrom between the derivative financial instrumentl the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the finanaiatruments are generally offset by reciprocal gesnin the value of the underlying econol
exposure. Our principal interest rate exposurdeslo outstanding amounts under our Credit FeslitAt February 1, 2013, we had interest
rate swaps with a total notional amount of appr@tety $875.0 million. For more information see It@/ "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk" below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swapgurther discussed in Item 7A. below, in Levelf 2he fair value hierarchy, as the significant
inputs to the overall valuations are based on ntaykeervable data or information derived from araeborated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, modebcation to market-clearing transactions, brokedesler quotations, or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transpgraibere models are used, the selection of a péatiecnodel to value a derivative depends
upon the contractual terms of, and specific riskerent in, the instrument as well as the avaitghoff pricing information in the market. We
use similar models to value similar instrumentslugton models require a variety of inputs, inchglcontractual terms, market prices, yield
curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, aodelations of such inputs. For our derivativdlspfiwhich trade in liquid markets, model
inputs can generally be verified.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustmeatappropriately reflect both our own nonperforeanisk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremehtair derivatives. The credit valuation adjustnsesnte calculated by determining the total
expected exposure of the derivatives (which incafes both the current and potential future expgsamd then applying each counterparty's
credit spread to the applicable exposure. For dévies with two-way exposure, such as interestsai@ps, the counterparty's credit spread is
applied to our exposure to the counterparty, andaun credit spread is applied to the counterpagyposure to us, and the net credit
valuation adjustment is reflected in our derivatieduations. The total expected exposure of a dévie is derived using market-observable
inputs, such as yield curves and volatilities. Triputs utilized for our own credit spread are basedmplied spreads from our publiclsadec
debt. For counterparties with publicly availabledit information, the credit spreads over LIBORdisethe calculations represent implied
credit default swap spreads obtained from a thamdypcredit data provider. In adjusting the faitueaof our derivative contracts for the effect
of nonperformance risk, we have considered the @nplnetting and any applicable credit enhancementch as collateral postings,
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees. Additipnak actively monitor counterparty credit ratirfgs any significant changes.

As of February 1, 2013, the net credit aibn adjustments reduced the settlement valuesrodlerivative liabilities by $0.2 million.
Various factors impact changes in the credit vadmaadjustments over time, including changes inciteelit spreads of the parties to the
contracts, as well as changes in market rates aladilities, which affect the total expected expsaf the derivative instruments. When
appropriate, valuations are also adjusted for warfactors such as liquidity and bid/offer spreadsich factors we deemed to be immaterial
as of February 1, 2013.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual obligations and commercial committe@s of February 1, 2013 (in

thousands):

Payments Due by Perioc

Contractual obligations Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5years 5+ years
Long-term debt obligation $ 2,764,49' $ — $ 1,370,390 $ 1,380,25! $§  13,85(
Capital lease obligatior 7,73 892 2,03¢ 2,11« 2,69:
Interest(a 271,70¢ 88,82% 114,34t 67,43¢ 1,097
Selfinsurance liabilities(b 226,58! 87,43t 88,02¢ 31,47: 19,65(
Operating leases( 4,535,21 611,59! 1,077,71 852,46 1,993,44

Subtotal $ 7,805,74¢ $ 788,75( $ 2,652,500 $ 2,333,74! $ 2,030,73

Commitments Expiring by Period

Commercial commitments(d) Total 1 year 1- 3 years 3-5years 5+ years
Letters of credi $ 1646 $ 1646 $ — % — 3 —
Purchase obligations( 622,12¢ 565,95: 56,17 — —

Subtotal $ 63858 $ 58241 $ 56,17¢ $ — 3 —

Total contractual
obligations and

commercial
commitments (f) $ 8,444,32' $ 1,371,16' $ 2,708,68. $ 2,333,74! $ 2,030,73!
(@) Represents obligations for interest payments og-term debt and capital lease obligations, andigies projected

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

interest on variable rate long-term debt, using22gdar end rates. Variable rate long-term debtiohes the balance of
the senior secured asset-based revolving credlityeaf $286.5 million, the balance of our tax neenent financing of
$14.5 million, and the unhedged portion of the geaecured term loan facility of $1.089 billion.

We retain a significant portion of the risk for amorkers' compensation, employee health insuragereral liability,
property loss and automobile insurance. As thefigadltons do not have scheduled maturities, theseumts represent
undiscounted estimates based upon actuarial asgunspReserves for workers' compensation and geliegdity
which existed as of the date of a merger transa@i®007 were discounted in order to arrive ateested fair value. All
other amounts are reflected on an undiscounted basur consolidated balance sheets.

Operating lease obligations are inclusive of ameimtiuded in deferred rent and closed store otitiga in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Commercial commitments include informationhiealogy license and support agreements, suppligsrds, letters of
credit for import merchandise, and other invenjouychase obligations.

Purchase obligations include legally binding agreets for software licenses and support, supplietsirés, and
merchandise purchases (excluding such purchasgstbletters of credit).

We have potential payment obligations associatéld wicertain tax positions that are not reflectethese totals. We
anticipate that approximately $1.5 million of swahounts will be paid in the coming year. We areenity unable to
make reasonably reliable estimates of the periazhsh settlement with the taxing authorities far maining

$23.4 million of reserves for uncertain tax positic
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Share Repurchase Program

On August 29, 2012, our Board of Directaushorized a $500 million common stock repurchasgnam, of which $143.6 million
remained available for repurchase as of Februa2@13. On March 19, 2013, our Board of Directogé@ased this authorization by an
additional $500 million. As a result, as of March 2013, the Company had $643.6 million availablettie repurchase of common stock.

The repurchase authorization has no expiratate and allows repurchases from time to timthé open market or in privately negotic
transactions, which could include repurchases fBartk Holdings, L.P., an existing shareholder of @m@npany, or other related parties if
appropriate. The timing and number of shares pwathavill depend on a variety of factors, such &sepmarket conditions, compliance with
the covenants and restrictions under our seniarredaredit facilities and other factors. Repurelsasnder the program may be funded from
available cash or borrowings under our ABL Faciliuring 2012, we repurchased approximately 7.8anilshares under this authorization
at a total cost of $356.4 million.

On November 30, 2011, our Board of Direstauthorized a $500 million common stock repurcheiegram on terms similar to the
August 2012 authorization. During 2012, we repuseltbapproximately 7.1 million shares under thisiaritation at a total cost of
$315.0 million, completing that authorization.

In summary, we repurchased approximatelt idllion shares of common stock at a total cd§6¥ 1.4 million in 2012, including
approximately 11.7 million shares repurchased fBunk Holdings, L.P. at an aggregate cost of $55@10on.

Other Considerations

We have no current plans to pay any cagldelids on our common stock and instead may reginings, if any, for future operation ¢
expansion and common stock repurchases. Any dadisideclare and pay dividends in the future wallbade at the discretion of our Board
of Directors, subject to certain limitations fouindcovenants in our Credit Facilities as discusaatore detail above, and will depend on,
among other things, our results of operations, caghirements, financial condition, contractuatnesons and other factors that our Boarc
Directors may deem relevant.

Our inventory balance represented approtatp®0% of our total assets exclusive of goodatilt other intangible assets as of
February 1, 2013. Our proficiency in managing ewentory balances can have a significant impadorcash flows from operations during
a given fiscal year. As a result, efficient inveagtmanagement has been and continues to be aofdi@aus for us.

As described in Note 9 to the Consolidd&ethncial Statements, we are involved in a numbérgal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash paymeAtverse developments in those actions could naednd adversely affect our liquidity.
As discussed in Note 5 to the Consolidated FindiStetements, we also have certain income taxeelebntingencies. Future negative
developments could have a material adverse effeouo liquidity.

In April 2012, Standard & Poor's upgraded corporate rating to BBB- from BB+ with a stablatlook, and in February 2013, Moody's
placed our corporate rating of Bal on review fagnale. Our current credit ratings, as well as futating agency actions, could (i) impact
our ability to fund our operations on satisfactteyms; (ii) affect our financing costs; and (iiffect our insurance premiums and collateral
requirements necessary for our self-insured progrdinere can be no assurance that we will be abteintain or improve our current credit
ratings.
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Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities.Significant components of the increase in dasks from operating activities in 2012 compared
to 2011 include increased net income due primawiiyncreased sales and lower SG&A expenses, acaniage of sales, in 2012 as descr
in more detail above under "Results of OperatioAgibrtion of the changes in Prepaid and otherentrassets as well as Accrued expenses
and other reflect the activity associated withgalesettlement accrued in 2011 for which paymermewnade in 2012. Changes in Accrued
expenses and other were also affected by highes sa accruals at the end of 2011 and the adjastofi@ccruals during 2012 due to the
favorable resolution of income tax examinationse Téclassification of the tax benefit of stock ops to cash flows from financing activities
was higher in 2012 due to an increase in stoclooptexercised. Changes in Accounts payable weréodnereased merchandise purchas:
discussed in more detail below, the most significategory of which were domestic purchases.

On an ongoing basis, we closely monitor @wxahage our inventory balances, and they may ffuetirom period to period based on new
store openings, the timing of purchases, and d#twtors. Merchandise inventories increased by 18%nd 2012, compared to a 14% incre
in 2011. The increase in inventories in 2012 was tduseveral factors including new items introduice®012, the receipt during 2012 of
certain items related to our 2013 merchandisintigiives, and the emphasis on improved presentégigis of select merchandise categories.
Inventory levels in the consumables category ireeddy $245.7 million, or 22%, in 2012 comparednadncrease of $132.3 million, or 13%,
in 2011. The seasonal category increased by $7dlidmor 18%, in 2012 compared to an increas&2if.5 million, or 7%, in 2011. The
home products category increased $56.2 millior2986, in 2012 compared to an increase of $24.6anillor 14%, in 2011. The apparel
category increased by $16.0 million, or 5%, in 2@hehpared to an increase of $59.4 million, or 2492011.

A significant component of our increaseash flows from operating activities in 2011 congghto 2010 was the increase in net income
due to increases in sales and gross profit, andrl@G&A expenses as a percentage of sales, ashiebor more detail above under "Results
of Operations." Significant components of the ias@in cash flows from operating activities in 2@binpared to 2010 were related to
working capital in general and Accrued expensesadiner in particular. Items affecting Accrued exgesand other include increased acc
for income tax reserves, increased accruals f@l legttlements and sales taxes, partially offseebyced interest accruals. The timing of
interest and certain other accruals and the refsdgthents were affected by the'83veek in 2011. Partially offsetting this increaseash
flows was an increase in income taxes paid in 2fitdpared to 2010 due to the increase in net income.

In addition, inventory balances increasgd 4% in 2011 compared to an increase of 16% if©20iventory levels in the consumables
category increased by $132.3 million, or 13%, in2@ompared to an increase of $133.9 million, @61t 2010. The seasonal category
increased by $27.5 million, or 7%, in 2011 compatedn increase of $55.2 million, or 18%, in 20IBe home products category increased
$24.6 million, or 14%, in 2011 compared to an iaseof $25.2 million, or 17%, in 2010. The appaetkgory increased by $59.4 million, or
24%, in 2011 compared to an increase of $32.3anillor 15%, in 2010.

Cash flows from investing activities.Significant components of property and equiphpemchases in 2012 included the following
approximate amounts: $155 million for new leasedest; $132 million for stores purchased or builuigy $83 million for distribution centers;
$80 million for remodels and relocations of exigtstores; $71 million for improvements and upgradesxisting stores; $27 million for
systems-related capital projects; and $17 millmmtfansportatiomelated projects. The timing of new, remodeled @aldcated store openin
along with other factors may affect the relatiopdhétween such openings and the related propedtg@umipment purchases in any given
period. During 2012, we opened 625 new stores embdeled or relocated 592 stores.
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Significant components of property and pgqeént purchases in 2011 included the following apipnate amounts: $120 million for
distribution centers, including the constructiortheé distribution center in Alabama; $114 millimr hew leased stores; $80 million for
improvements and upgrades to existing stores; $iBi@mfor stores purchased or built by us; $73lioil for remodels and relocations of
existing stores; $28 million for systems-relategita projects; and $15 million for transportaticelated projects. During 2011, we opened
625 new stores and remodeled or relocated 575sstore

Significant components of our property aaggdipment purchases in 2010 included the folloveipgroximate amounts: $104 million for
improvements and upgrades to existing stores; §iidion for new leased stores; $91 million for stermpurchased or built by us; $53 million
for remodels and relocations of existing store& fllion for distribution and transportation-reddtcapital expenditures; and $22 million for
information systems upgrades and technology-refatefcts. During 2010 we opened 600 new stores@mddeled or relocated 504 stores.

Capital expenditures during 2013 are ptejgto be in the range of $575-$625 million. Wea@pate funding 2013 capital requirements
with cash flows from operations, and if necessasy also have significant availability under our ABhcility. We plan to continue to invest
in store growth and development of approximately 68w stores and approximately 550 stores to bedefad or relocated. Capital
expenditures in 2013 are anticipated for the cotn of new stores; costs related to new leaggeés such as leasehold improvements,
fixtures and equipment; the purchase of existingest;, continued investment in our existing storgehiacluding our plans to improve the
productivity of our legacy stores; our tobaccoiative; transportation and distribution, includiagnew distribution center that is under
construction in Pennsylvania; and also for routind ongoing capital requirements.

Included in our 2013 new store growth plarsapproximately 20 new Dollar General Marketetand approximately 40 Dollar
General Plus stores, which will expand our presémoearkets such as California and Nevada. The Btaakd Plus stores require higher
investments than our traditional stores which cary Wepending on numbers of coolers, square fga, df construction and layout. Because
we continue to test several different formats,dbsts of rolling out these concepts in larger qitiast should we decide to do so, are unce
at the present time. Any plans to undertake theperalitures would be part of our efforts to improue infrastructure and increase our cash
generated from operating activities.

Cash flows from financing activities.In 2012 we repurchased 14.4 million outstandingres of our common stock at a total cost of
$671.4 million, including 11.7 million shares rephased from Buck Holdings, L.P. In July 2012, wsued $500.0 million aggregate princi
amount of 4.125% senior notes due 2017. Also in 20lL2, we redeemed the remaining aggregate pehaipount of our Senior
Subordinated Notes at a redemption price of 103488the principal amount thereof, resulting inastt outflow of $477.5 million. Net
borrowings under the ABL Facility were $101.8 naitliduring 2012.

In July 2011, we redeemed $839.3 milliogragate principal amount of our outstanding senates due 2015 at total cost of
$883.9 million including associated premiums, amépril 2011, we repurchased in the open market@®#%llion aggregate principal amot
of senior notes due 2015 at a total cost of $26l@mincluding associated premiums. A portiontbé July 2011 redemption of senior notes
due 2015 was financed by borrowings under the ABtiliy. Net borrowings under the ABL Facility we$484.7 million during 2011. In
December 2011, we repurchased 4.9 million outstensihares from Buck Holdings, L.P. at a total ad$$185.0 million.

During 2010, we repurchased $115.0 milpoincipal amount of outstanding senior notes duks24t a total cost of $127.5 million
including associated premiums. We had no borrowargepayments under the ABL Facility in 2010.

44




Accounting Standards

In February 2013, the Financial Account8tgndards Board issued an accounting standardseugtizch will revise the manner in whi
entities report amounts reclassified out of otlenprehensive income in their financial statemems.are in the process of evaluating this
guidance, which will be effective for us in thesfiquarter of 2013. At the current time, we doeqtect this guidance to have a material e
on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statementadnordance with U.S. GAAP requires management teereatimates and assumptions that
affect reported amounts and related disclosuregddlition to the estimates presented below, therether items within our financial
statements that require estimation, but are nanddecritical as defined below. We believe thesenedées are reasonable and appropriate.
However, if actual experience differs from the asptions and other considerations used, the reguitianges could have a material effec
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management believes the following policesl estimates are critical because they involveifsdgnt judgments, assumptions, and
estimates. Management has discussed the developmeselection of the critical accounting estimatiéh the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee haseeed the disclosures presented below relatingded policies and estimates.

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are stated at the lmf/eost or market with cost determined using ttaif last-in,
first-out ("LIFO") method. Under our retail invempomethod ("RIM"), the calculation of gross pradind the resulting valuation of inventories
at cost are computed by applying a calculated esttail inventory ratio to the retail value ofesmat a department level. The RIM is an
averaging method that has been widely used inetadl industry due to its practicality. Also, itiscognized that the use of the RIM will re:
in valuing inventories at the lower of cost or metrkLCM") if markdowns are currently taken as duetion of the retail value of inventories.

Inherent in the RIM calculation are certsignificant management judgments and estimatégdimg, among others, initial markups,
markdowns, and shrinkage, which significantly impthe gross profit calculation as well as the egdiventory valuation at cost. These
significant estimates, coupled with the fact thet RIM is an averaging process, can, under cectainmstances, produce distorted cost
figures. Factors that can lead to distortion indakulation of the inventory balance include:

. applying the RIM to a group of products that is faatly uniform in terms of its cost and sellingqe relationship and turnover;

. applying the RIM to transactions over a peribtime that include different rates of gross pradiich as those relating to
seasonal merchandise;

. inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage betvieemlate of the last physical inventory at a storé the financial statement
date; and
. inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reserves.

Factors that reduce potential distortioziide the use of historical experience in estinggtire shrink provision (see discussion below)
and an annual LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs arssicered for inclusion in the index formulation. Actual valuation of inventory under
the LIFO method is made at the end of each yeardas the inventory levels and costs at that téoeordingly, interim LIFO calculations
are based on management's estimates of expectednaaventory levels, sales for the year andetkgected rate of inflation/deflation for
the year and are thus subject to adjustment ifitaeyear-end LIFO inventory valuation. We alsafpem interim inventory analysis for
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determining obsolete inventory. Our policy is tatesdown inventory to an LCM value based on varimaagement assumptions including
estimated markdowns and sales required to liquisiatl inventory in future periods. Inventory isiesved on a quarterly basis and adjuste
reflect write-downs as appropriate.

Factors such as slower inventory turnower i changes in competitors' practices, consunefengnces, consumer spending and
unseasonable weather patterns, among other facturisl cause excess inventory requiring greater #séimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorabladmngn our consolidated financial statements. Sdiestfalls due to the above factors cc
cause reduced purchases from vendors and assoegtddr allowances that would also result in aravofable impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision basedotual physical inventory results during the figeatiod and an accrual for estimated shrink
occurring subsequent to a physical inventory thhoting end of the fiscal reporting period. This aetis calculated as a percentage of sal
each retail store, at a department level, andteroiened by dividing the book-to-physical invent@gjustments recorded during the previous
twelve months by the related sales for the samieghéor each store. To the extent that subsequeygipal inventories yield different results
than this estimated accrual, our effective shratk for a given reporting period will include timegact of adjusting the estimated results tc
actual results. Although we perform physical ineeigs in virtually all of our stores on an annuasis, the same stores do not necessarily get
counted in the same reporting periods from yegetr, which could impact comparability in a giveporting period.

We believe our estimates and assumptidatereto merchandise inventories have generally lbeeurate in recent years and we do not
currently anticipate material changes in theseredtis and assumptions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsWe amortize intangible assets over their eggohaseful lives unless such lives are deemed
indefinite. If impairment indicators are noted, atimable intangible assets are tested for impaitrhased on projected undiscounted cash
flows, and, if impaired, written down to fair valbased on either discounted projected cash floveppraised values. Future cash flow
projections are based on management's projectigsificant judgments required in this testing @®& may include projecting future cash
flows, determining appropriate discount rates, ectty applying valuation techniques, correctly catipg the implied fair value of goodwiill
as discussed in greater detail below, and othemgsisons. Projections are based on management'edt@nates given recent financial
performance, market trends, strategic plans anet atyailable information which in recent years hagen materially accurate. Although not
currently anticipated, changes in these estimatdsaasumptions could materially affect the deteatidgm of fair value or impairment. Future
indicators of impairment could result in an assgtairment charge.

Under accounting standards for goodwill attter indefinite-lived intangible assets, an gritias the option first to assess qualitative
factors to determine whether events and circumstindicate that it is more likely than not that #sset is impaired. If after such assessmen
an entity concludes that the asset is not impathest the entity is not required to take furtheicac However, if an entity concludes
otherwise, then it is required to perform quanti&aimpairment tests as discussed further belogniS¢ant judgments required in the analy
of qualitative factors may include determining #poropriate factors to consider, the relative ingrore of those factors, along with other
assumptions.

We are required to test goodwill and indiei-lived intangible assets for impairment anngadr more frequently if impairment
indicators occur. The quantitative goodwill impagnmt test is a two-step process that requires mamagteto make judgments in determining
what assumptions to use in the calculation. Iféjagdgments or assumptions are incorrect or flasherlanalysis could be negatively
impacted. The first step of the process consisestifnating the fair value of our reporting unisbd on valuation techniques (including a
discounted cash flow model using revenue and piarfitcasts)
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and comparing that estimated fair value with themrded carrying value, which includes goodwilltHé estimated fair value is less than the
carrying value, a second step is performed to cdenfinie amount of the impairment, if any, by det&ing an "implied fair value" of
goodwill. The determination of the implied fair ual of goodwill would require us to allocate tharasted fair value of our reporting unit to
its assets and liabilities. Any unallocated failuearepresents the implied fair value of goodwilhich would be compared to its
corresponding carrying value.

The quantitative impairment test for indé@é-ived intangible assets consists of a comparisah@fair value of the intangible asset v
its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of adéfinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its failue, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess.

Our most recent testing of our goodwill amdiefinite lived trade name intangible assets eaapleted during the third quarter of 2012.
No indicators of impairment were evident and naatipent to these assets was required. We are mehtly projecting a decline in ca
flows that could be expected to have an adversetsdiich as a violation of debt covenants or futapairment charges.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at costghdigp our assets into relatively homogeneous etasad
generally provide for depreciation on a straightlbasis over the estimated average useful liBaoh asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lestheoapplicable lease term or the estimated u$iédudf the asset. Certain store and
warehouse fixtures, when fully depreciated, areoved from the cost and related accumulated degi@eiand amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets aad$signment of depreciable lives involves sigaifigudgments and the use of estimates,
which we believe have been materially accuratedasnt years.

Impairment of Long-lived AssetsWe review the carrying value of long-lived asger impairment at least annually, and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tieatdtrying value of an asset may not be recoverabkeccordance with accounting standi
for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets,rexew for impairment stores open for approximatelo years or more for which recent
cash flows from operations are negative. Impairmesilts when the carrying value of the assetsezicthe estimated undiscounted future
cash flows over the life of the lease. Our estinmditendiscounted future cash flows over the leas® is based upon historical operations of
the stores and estimates of future store profitghilhich encompasses many factors that are sutgjeariability and are difficult to predict.
our estimates of future cash flows are not matgracurate, our impairment analysis could be ingéaccordingly. If a long-lived asset is
found to be impaired, the amount recognized forampent is equal to the difference between theyaagrvalue and the asset's estimated fair
value. The fair value is estimated based primanign projected future cash flows (discounted atovedit adjusted risk-free rate) or other
reasonable estimates of fair market value in a@ord with U.S. GAAP. Although not currently antaied, changes in these estimates,
assumptions or projections could materially affeetdetermination of fair value or impairment.

Insurance Liabilities. We retain a significant portion of the risk faur workers' compensation, employee health, ptgpess,
automobile and general liability. These represgttiicant costs primarily due to our large empleymase and number of stores. Provisions
are made for these liabilities on an undiscounteishbased on actual claim data and estimateswifred but not reported claims developed
using actuarial methodologies based on historieatctrends, which have been and are anticipatedmtinue to be materially accurate. If
future claim trends deviate from recent historjgatterns, or other unanticipated events affechtimaber and significance of future claims,
may be required to record additional expenses pemrse reductions, which could be material to otur&financial results.
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Contingent Liabilities—Income Taxeslncome tax reserves are determined using ttieadelogy established by accounting standards
relating to uncertainty in income taxes. Thesedsdas require companies to assess each incomeséiop taken using a twstep process.
determination is first made as to whether it is enliely than not that the position will be sustdnbased upon the technical merits, upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the tasipion is expected to meet the more likely thahaniteria, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is grebatar 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settat of the respective tax position.
Uncertain tax positions require determinations estimated liabilities to be made based on provssfrthe tax law which may be subject to
change or varying interpretation. If our determioias and estimates prove to be inaccurate, thétirgsadjustments could be material to our
future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities—Legal Matters. We are subject to legal, regulatory and otlecgedings and claims. We establish liabilities as
appropriate for these claims and proceedings baged the probability and estimability of losses éméhirly present, in conjunction with the
disclosures of these matters in our financial statets and SEC filings, management's view of ounsue. We review outstanding claims
and proceedings with external counsel to assesmbpildy and estimates of loss, which includes aalgsis of whether such loss estimates are
probable, reasonably possible, or remote. We résatathese assessments on a quarterly basisnemaand significant information becomes
available to determine whether a liability shoudddstablished or if any existing liability shoulel &djusted. The actual cost of resolving a
claim or proceeding ultimately may be substantidlfferent than the amount of the recorded liapilih addition, because it is not permiss
under U.S. GAAP to establish a litigation liabilitytil the loss is both probable and estimablesome cases there may be insufficient time to
establish a liability prior to the actual incurrenaf the loss (upon verdict and judgment at tf@l example, or in the case of a quickly
negotiated settlement).

Lease Accounting and Excess Facilitiesvlany of our stores are subject to build-to-suiangements with landlords, which typically
carry a primary lease term of 10-15 years with ipldtrenewal options. We also have stores subjeshorter-term leases and many of these
leases have renewal options. Certain of our stwaies provisions for contingent rentals based uppereentage of defined sales volume. We
recognize contingent rental expense when the aefrient of specified sales targets is consideredaitebWe recognize rent expense over
the term of the lease. We record minimum rentakesp on a straight-line basis over the base, nocetable lease term commencing on the
date that we take physical possession of the ptypfem the landlord, which normally includes aipeérprior to store opening to make
necessary leasehold improvements and install tdtges. When a lease contains a predeterminedifescalation of the minimum rent, we
recognize the related rent expense on a straightdasis and record the difference between thgnéoed rental expense and the amounts
payable under the lease as deferred rent. Terlantaaices, to the extent received, are recorde@i@sréd incentive rent and amortized as a
reduction to rent expense over the term of theeled& reflect as a liability any difference betwéem calculated expense and the amounts
actually paid. Improvements of leased propertiessanortized over the shorter of the life of thelmpple lease term or the estimated useful
life of the asset.

For store closures (excluding those astatiaith a business combination) where a leasgatitin still exists, we record the estimated
future liability associated with the rental obligat on the date the store is closed in accordariteagcounting standards for costs associated
with exit or disposal activities. Based on an ollemalysis of store performance and expected seménagement periodically evaluates the
need to close underperforming stores. Liabilitiesestablished at the point of closure for the gmesalue of any remaining operating lease
obligations, net of estimated sublease income aatide communication date for severance and ottiecasts. Key assumptions in calculal
the liability include the timeframe expected tatiérate lease agreements, estimates related taltihease potential of closed locations, and
estimation of other related exit costs. Historigall
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these estimates have not been materially inaccurateever, if actual timing and potential termioaticosts or realization of sublease income
differ from our estimates, the resulting liabilgieould vary from recorded amounts. These liabdiaire reviewed periodically and adjusted
when necessary.

Share-Based PaymentsOur share-based stock option awards are valneth individual grant basis using the Black-Scaderton
closed form option pricing model. We believe thas tmodel fairly estimates the value of our shaaeddl awards. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are juelgiad and highly sensitive in the valuation of &toptions, which affects compensation
expense related to these options. These assumpiidude the term that the options are expectdzbtoutstanding, the historical volatility of
our stock price, applicable interest rates andlthielend yield of our stock. Other factors involgijudgments that affect the expensing of
share-based payments include estimated forfeities i0f share-based awards. Historically, thesmatsts have not been materially
inaccurate; however, if our estimates differ matérifrom actual experience, we may be requirecetmrd additional expense or reduction
expense, which could be material to our futurerfgial results.

Fair Value Measurements. We measure fair value of assets and liabilitiemccordance with applicable accounting standavtigch
require that fair values be determined based oaseamptions that market participants would ug®iging the asset or liability. These
standards establish a fair value hierarchy thdingdigishes between market participant assumptiasedon market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity (oke®evinputs that are classified within Levels 1 araf the hierarchy) and the reporting
entity's own assumptions about market participastimptions (unobservable inputs classified witherdl 3 of the hierarchy). Therefore,
Level 3 inputs are typically based on an entitys @assumptions, as there is little, if any, relatetket activity, and thus require the use of
significant judgment and estimates. Currently, \weehno assets or liabilities that are valued baségly on Level 3 inputs.

Our fair value measurements are primasioaiated with our derivative financial instrumeimtsangible assets, debt instruments, and to
a lesser degree our investments. The values aderivative financial instruments are determinechgsvidely accepted valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow analysis on the etgu cash flows of each derivative. This analysfiects the contractual terms of the
derivatives, including the period to maturity, arsks observable market-based inputs, includingesteate curves. The fair values of interest
rate swaps are determined using the market stamtketttbdology of netting the discounted future fixagh payments (or receipts) and the
discounted expected variable cash receipts (or patsh The variable cash receipts (or paymentshased on an expectation of future
interest rates (forward curves) derived from obaklw market interest rate curves. The applicatforatuation models involves assumptions
such as discounted cash flow analysis and inteméstcurves that are judgmental and highly semsitithe fair value computations. In recent
years, these methodologies have produced matesiatiyrate valuation

Derivative Financial Instruments. We account for our derivative instruments in@dance with accounting standards for derivative
instruments (including certain derivative instrunse@mbedded in other contracts) and hedging desyias amended and interpreted, which
establish accounting and reporting requirementsdech instruments and activities. These standaglsine that every derivative instrument
recorded in the balance sheet as either an askabitity measured at its fair value, and thatmfpes in the derivative's fair value be
recognized currently in earnings unless specifalgleeaccounting criteria are met. See "Fair Valuaddeements" above for a discussion of
derivative valuations. Special accounting for dyaig hedges allows a derivative's gains and lossesther offset related results on the
hedged item in the statement of operations or beraalated in other comprehensive income, and regirat a company formally document,
designate, and assess the effectiveness of traorsattat receive hedge accounting. We use dere/aistruments to manage our exposure to
changing interest rates, primarily with intereserswaps.
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In addition to making valuation estimat®s, also bear the risk that certain derivative insgnts that have been designated as hedgt
currently meet the strict hedge accounting requemrgisimay not qualify in the future as "highly effee,” as defined, as well as the risk that
hedged transactions in cash flow hedging relatigpsstmay no longer be considered probable to odauther, new interpretations and
guidance related to these instruments may be issube future, and we cannot predict the possihfeact that such guidance may have on
our use of derivative instruments going forward.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK
Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarilyriradverse changes in interest rates, and to a lésgeee commodity prices. To minimize t
risk, we may periodically use financial instrumemteluding derivatives. As a matter of policy, de not buy or sell financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes and all derivdiivencial instrument transactions must be authdriezed executed pursuant to approval by
Board of Directors. All financial instrument positis taken by us are intended to be used to redglcby hedging an underlying economic
exposure. Because of high correlation between ¢higative financial instrument and the underlyingpesure being hedged, fluctuations in
the value of the financial instruments are geng@iset by reciprocal changes in the value ofuhderlying economic exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk throughsthategic use of fixed and variable interest datet and, from time to time, derivative
financial instruments. Our principal interest ratgosure relates to outstanding amounts under mditGacilities. As of February 1, 2013,
we had variable rate borrowings of $1.964 billiavdar our Term Loan Facility and $286.5 million under ABL Facility. In order to
mitigate a portion of the variable rate intereqt@sure under the Credit Facilities, we have enteredvarious interest rate swaps in recent
years.

Currently, we are counterparty to certaiiest rate swaps with a total notional amour$835.0 million entered into in May 2012 in
order to mitigate a portion of the variable rateeiast exposure under the Credit Facilities. Tls@sgps are scheduled to mature in May 2015.
Under the terms of these agreements we swappechonth LIBOR rates for fixed interest rates, resgtin the payment of an all-in fixed
rate of 3.34% on a notional amount of $875.0 millio

A change in interest rates on variable datst impacts our pre-tax earnings and cash flathgreas a change in interest rates on fixed
rate debt impacts the economic fair value of debbtiot our pre-tax earnings and cash flows. Owrett rate swaps qualify for hedge
accounting as cash flow hedges. Therefore, changearket fluctuations related to the effectivetfmor of these cash flow hedges do not
impact our pre-tax earnings until the accrued e@geis recognized on the derivatives and the assathedged debt. Based on our variable
rate borrowing levels and interest rate swaps antkhg as of February 1, 2013 and February 3, 2@kpectively, the annualized effect of a
one percentage point increase in variable inteedas would have resulted in a pretax reductioouofearnings and cash flows of
approximately $13.9 million in 2012 and $16.3 roitliin 2011.

The conditions and uncertainties in theébglaredit markets may increase the credit riskanfnterparties to our swap agreements. In the
event such counterparties fail to perform underswep agreements and we are unable to enter intGwap agreements on terms favorable
to us, our ability to effectively manage our intreate risk may be materially impaired. We attetoghanage counterparty credit risk by
periodically evaluating the financial position arr@ditworthiness of such counterparties, monitothrgamount for which we are at risk with
each counterparty, and where possible, disperbimgisk among multiple counterparties. There candassurance that we will manage or
mitigate our counterparty credit risk effectively.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheets of Dollar General Corporationsabdidiaries as of February 1, 2013
February 3, 2012, and the related consolidatedretatts of income, comprehensive income, sharerlelguity and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended February 13.2Iese financial statements are the respongibilithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptexused and significant estimates made by maregeas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thataodits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Dollar General Corporation and subsidiaries at &afyr 1, 2013 and February 3, 2012, and the coraelidresults of their operations and t
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegioded February 1, 2013, in conformity with U.8nerally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Dollar
General Corporation and subsidiaries' internalrobiver financial reporting as of February 1, 208&sed on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Casion and our report dated
March 25, 2013 expressed an unqualified opiniorethre.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 25, 2013
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Merchandise inventorie
Prepaid expenses and other current a

Total current asse
Net property and equipme
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, r
Other assets, n
Total asset
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term obligations
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and ott

Income taxes payab
Deferred income taxe

Total current liabilities
Long-term obligations
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
Commitments and contingenci

Shareholders' equit
Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authori

Common stock; $0.875 par value, 1,000,000 shartt®dzed,
327,069 and 338,089 shares issued and outstanding a

February 1, 2013 and February 3, 2012, respect

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive i

Total shareholders' equi
Total liabilities and shareholders' eqL

February 1, February 3,
2013 2012
$ 140,80¢ $ 126,12
2,397,17 2,009,201
139,12¢ 139,74.
2,677,11. 2,275,07.
2,088,66! 1,794,96
4,338,58! 4,338,58'
1,219,54. 1,235,95.
43,77: 43,94:
$ 10,367,68 $ 9,688,52
$ 89z ¢ 59C
1,261,60 1,064,08
357,43t 397,07
95,381 44.,42¢
23,22: 3,722
1,738,54 1,509,90.
2,771,33 2,617,89
647,07( 656,99t
225,39¢ 229,14
286,18! 295,82(
2,991,35. 2,967,02
1,710,73. 1,416,911
(2,93¢) (5,192
4,985,33 4,674,58.

$ 10,367,68 $ 9,688,52

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Year Ended

February 1, February 3, January 28,
2013 2012 2011

Net sales $ 16,022,120 $ 14,807,18 $ 13,035,00
Cost of goods sol 10,936,72 10,109,27 8,858,44.
Gross profit 5,085,40: 4,697,911 4,176,55!
Selling, general and administrative exper 3,430,12! 3,207,101 2,902,49.
Operating profit 1,655,27i 1,490,80. 1,274,06
Interest expens 127,92¢ 204,90( 273,99.
Other (income) expen: 29,95¢ 60,61¢ 15,10:
Income before income tax 1,497,39 1,225,28 984,97:
Income tax expens 544,73: 458,60: 357,11!
Net income $ 95266 $ 766,68 $ 627,85
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 287 $ 228 $ 1.84

Diluted $ 28t % 22z $ 1.82
Weighted average share

Basic 332,25¢ 341,23 341,04°

Diluted 334,46 345,11 344.,80(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftinsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

February 1, February 3, January 28,
2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 952,66: $ 766,68° $ 627,85
Unrealized net gain on hedged transactions, netlafed

income tax expense of $1,448, $9,692 and $9,406,

respectively 2,25: 15,10¢ 13,87:

Comprehensive incon $ 95491! $ 781,79( $ 641,72

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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Balances,
January 29,
2010

Net income

Unrealized ne
gain on
hedged
transaction:

Share-based
compensati
expense

Tax benefit
from stock
option
exercises

Issuance of
common
stock under
stock
incentive
plans

Exercise of
stock
options

Other equity
transaction:

Balances,
January 28,
2011

Net income

Unrealized ne
gain on
hedged
transaction:

Share-based
compensati
expenst

Repurchases
common
stock

Tax benefit
from stock
option
exercises

Exercise of
stock
options

Other equity
transaction:

Balances,
February 3,
2012

Net income

Unrealized ne
gain on
hedged
transaction:

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands except per share amounts)

Accumulated

Common Additional Other
Stock Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Shares Stock Capital Earnings Loss Total
340,58t $ 298,01 $ 2,941,86. 203,07! $ (34,167 $ 3,408,78
— — — 627,85 — 627,85
— — — — 13,87: 13,87:
— — 12,80¢ — — 12,80¢
— — 10,11( — — 10,11¢(
93 82 1,94: — — 2,02t
872 76 (12,059 — — (11,29)
(44) (39 (490 — — (529
341,500 $ 298,81¢ $ 2,954,417 $ 830,93 $ (20,29¢) $ 4,063,63:
— — — 766,68! — 766,68!
— — — — 15,10¢ 15,10¢
— — 15,25( — — 15,25(
(4,960) (4,340 (1,55 (180,69 — (186,59)
— — 27,72, — — 27,72,
1,53¢ 1,342 (28,739 — — (27,39))
8 7 165 — — 172
338,08¢ $ 295,82( $ 2,967,02° $ 1,416,991 $ (5,197 $ 4,674,58

952,66.

— 952,66:

2,25: 2,25:



Share-based

compensati

expense — — 21,66« — — 21,66¢
Repurchases

common

stock (14,399 (12,595 (16) (658,84) — (671,459
Tax benefit

from stock

option

exercises — — 77,02( — — 77,02(
Exercise of

stock

options 3,04¢ 2,661 (75,787 — — (73,120
Other equity

transaction: 32¢€ 28E 1,44: — — 1,72¢

Balances,

February 1,
2013 327,06¢ $ 286,18 $ 2,991,335 $ 1,710,73 $ (2,939 $ 4,985,33

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the Year Ended

February 1, February 3, January 28,
2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 952,66: $ 766,68 $ 627,85
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net casinfro

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 302,91: 275,40¢ 254,92
Deferred income taxe (2,605 10,23: 50,98t
Tax benefit of stock optior (87,757 (33,109 (13,909
Loss on debt retirement, r 30,62( 60,30: 14,57¢
Noncash sha-based compensatic 21,66« 15,25( 15,95¢
Other noncash gains and los 6,77¢ 54,19( 13,54¢
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Merchandise inventorie (391,409 (291,49) (251,809
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 5,55: (34,559 (10,157
Accounts payabl 194,03! 104,44. 123,42
Accrued expenses and other liabilit (36,74) 71,76 (42,429
Income taxe: 138,71: 51,55( 42,90:
Other (3,07)) (195) (1,199
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 1,131,35; 1,050,48! 824,68:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipir (571,590 (514,86) (420,39
Proceeds from sales of property and equipr 1,76( 1,02¢ 1,44¢
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (569,83  (513,83) (418,94)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of lor-term obligations 500,00 — —
Repayments of lor-term obligations (478,25 (911,95) (131,180
Borrowings under revolving credit facili 2,286,701 1,157,801 —
Repayments of borrowings under revolving creditlitsc (2,184,90) (973,100 —
Debt issuance cos (15,27%) — —
Repurchases of common stc (671,459 (186,59 —
Other equity transactions, net of employee taxéd (71,399 (27,219 (13,097
Tax benefit of stock optior 87,75: 33,10: 13,90¢
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (546,83) (907,96) (130,36)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 14,68: (371,320 275,37(
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 126,12t 497,44t 222,07¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of \ $ 140,80¢ $ 126,12t $ 497,44t

Supplemental cash flow informatic
Cash paid for

Interest $ 121,71 $ 209,35: $ 244,75:
Income taxe: 422,33: 382,29 314,12
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding
activities:
Purchases of property and equipment awaiting psigs
for payment, included in Accounts paya $ 39,147 $ 3566: $ 29,65¢
Purchases of property and equipment under cap#skl
obligations $ 3,44C $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the w8, 2011 and 2010, which represent fiscal yeaded February 1, 2013, February 3, 2012,
and January 28, 2011, respectively. The Compaisgalfyear ends on the Friday closest to Januar2@®12 and 2010 were 52-week
accounting periods, while 2011 was a 53-week adogiperiod. The consolidated financial statemémtgide all subsidiaries of the
Company, except for its not-for-profit subsidiarfzieh the Company does not control. Intercompanysiations have been eliminated.

Business description

The Company sells general merchandisereted basis through 10,506 stores (as of Febria®013) in 40 states covering most of the
southern, southwestern, midwestern and eastered)8itates. The Company owns distribution cent®&€¢") in Scottsville, Kentucky; Sou
Boston, Virginia; Alachua, Florida; Zanesville, ®hdonesville, South Carolina; Marion, Indiana, 8stsemer, Alabama, and leases DCs in
Ardmore, Oklahoma; Fulton, Missouri; Indianola, Bissippi; and Lebec, California.

The Company purchases its merchandise &avite variety of suppliers. Approximately 8% artd @f the Company's purchases in 2
were made from the Company's largest and secogesasuppliers, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highlyidi investments with insignificant interest rakrand original maturities of three months or
less when purchased. Such investments primarilgisbaf money market funds, bank deposits, cedtiéis of deposit (which may include
foreign time deposits), and commercial paper. Tdreying amounts of these items are a reasonabiaadstof their fair value due to the short
maturity of these investments.

Payments due from processors for electrtmmder transactions classified as cash and castadents totaled approximately
$45.2 million and $38.7 million at February 1, 2GR February 3, 2012, respectively.

At February 1, 2013, the Company maintaicegh balances to meet a $20 million minimum tholeksket by insurance regulators, as
further described below under "Insurance liab#itie

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for investments int datd marketable equity securities as held-to-nitgtuavailable-for-sale, or trading,
depending on their classification. Debt securitiagegorized as held-to-maturity are stated at anseakicost. Debt and equity securities
categorized as available-for-sale are stated mav#é#ie, with any unrealized gains and lossesphdeferred income taxes, reported as a
component of Accumulated other comprehensive Ibsaling securities (primarily mutual funds held guant to deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plans, as further discussémv in Notes 7 and 10) are stated at fair valitlhy changes in fair value recorded as a
component of Selling, general and administratif®3&A") expense.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

For the years ended February 1, 2013, Bep®; 2012, and January 28, 2011, gross realiaets @nd losses on the sales of available-
for-sale securities were not material. The costemfurities sold is based upon the specific idewatifon method.

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket with cost determined using the retait-la, first-out ("LIFO") method as this method
results in a better matching of costs and reveruieder the Company's retail inventory method ("RIMhe calculation of gross profit and
resulting valuation of inventories at cost are cated by applying a calculated cost-to-retail ineeptratio to the retail value of sales at a
department level. Costs directly associated withelvausing and distribution are capitalized intceimory. The excess of current cost over
LIFO cost was approximately $101.9 million and $B0@illion at February 1, 2013 and February 3, 20&8pectively. Current cost is
determined using the RIM on a first-in, first-oasis. Under the LIFO inventory method, the impaétssing or falling market price changes
increase or decrease cost of sales (the LIFO poova benefit). The Company recorded a LIFO priavi©of $1.4 million in 2012,
$47.7 million in 2011, and $5.3 million in 2010.

The 2011 LIFO provision was impacted by@ased commodity costs related to food, housevear@spparel products which were
driven by increases in cotton, sugar, coffee, gdoul, resin, petroleum and other raw material coditpe@osts. These costs were relatively
stable in 2012 and 2010.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consiaeraeceived from vendors in accordance with aggfiie accounting standards pertaining to
such arrangements. Cash consideration receiveddreamdor is generally presumed to be a rebata al@wance and is accounted for as a
reduction of merchandise purchase costs as eanwseever, certain specific, incremental and otheevgaalifying SG&A expenses related to
the promotion or sale of vendor products may bsetfiby cash consideration received from vendora¢c@ordance with arrangements such as
cooperative advertising, when earned for dollar am® up to but not exceeding actual incrementakcos

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Prepaid expenses and other current asedtgle prepaid amounts for rent, maintenance, édirag, and insurance, as well as amounts
receivable for insurance related to a litigatiotilement discussed in greater detail in Note 9, @tthin vendor rebates (primarily those
expected to be collected in cash) and coupons.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)
Property and equipment

In 2007, as the result of a merger tramsacthe Company's property and equipment was decbat estimated fair values. Property and
equipment acquired subsequent to the merger hasreeerded at cost. The Company's property andgewgiit is summarized as follows:

February 1, February 3,

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Land and land improvemer $ 257,69' $ 204,56:
Buildings 773,83! 622,84¢
Leasehold improvemen 279,35: 213,85:
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 1,828,57. 1,500,26:
Construction in progres 87,44« 139,45:

3,226,89 2,680,98!
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 1,138,23. 886,02!
Net property and equipme $ 2,088,66! $ 1,794,96

The Company provides for depreciation amérization on a straight-line basis over the foilog estimated useful lives (in years):

Land improvement 20
Buildings 39-40
Leasehold improvemen (€)
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 3-10

(a) amortized over the lesser of the life of the agtlle lease term or the estimated useful life ofabee

Depreciation expense related to propertyegquipment was approximately $277.2 million, $248illion and $215.7 million for 2012,
2011 and 2010. Amortization of capital lease agsdtecluded in depreciation expense. Interestamdwed funds during the construction of
property and equipment is capitalized where apblée&dnterest costs of $0.6 million and $1.5 milliwere capitalized in 2012 and 2011. No
interest costs were capitalized in 2010.

Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are presthvd, Company evaluates the carrying value of lived assets, other than goodwill, in relat
to the operating performance and future cash flomtbe appraised values of the underlying asset@ct¢ordance with accounting standards
for long-lived assets, the Company reviews for impant stores open more than two years for whiehecu cash flows from operations are
negative. Impairment results when the carrying @atithe assets exceeds the undiscounted futunefloass over the life of the lease. The
Company's estimate of undiscounted future cashsflover the lease term is based upon historicaldipes of the stores and estimates of
future store profitability which encompasses maagtdrs that are subject to variability and diffical predict. If a long-lived asset is found to
be impaired, the amount recognized for impairmgmgual to the difference between the carryingevahd the asset's estimated fair value.
The fair value is
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (dtinued)

estimated based primarily upon estimated futuré fasvs (discounted at the Company's credit adfustk-free rate) or other reasonable
estimates of fair market value. Assets to be dispad are adjusted to the fair value less the twosell if less than the book value.

The Company recorded impairment chargdsdied in SG&A expense of approximately $2.7 milliar2012, $1.0 million in 2011 and
$1.7 million in 2010, to reduce the carrying vatifeertain of its stores' assets. Such action veasnéd necessary based on the Company's
evaluation that such amounts would not be recoVeadimarily due to insufficient sales or excessiests resulting in negative current and
projected future cash flows at these locations.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets thedr estimated useful lives unless such livesdemed indefinite. Goodwill and other
intangible assets are tested for impairment whditators of impairment are present. Quantitativpaiment tests for indefinite-lived
intangible assets are based on undiscounted aagh, fand if impaired, the associated assets mustilten down to fair value based on eit
discounted cash flows or appraised values.

In accordance with accounting standardgéadwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,entity has the option first to assess
qualitative factors to determine whether events@rmimstances indicate that it is more likely thmar that goodwill or an indefinite-lived
intangible asset is impaired. If after such assessm@mn entity concludes that the asset is not irmgathen the entity is not required to take
further action. However, if an entity concludesesthise, then it is required to determine the faiiue of the asset using a quantitative
impairment test.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indeérives are tested for impairment annually or enfsequently if indicators of impairment are
present and written down to fair value as requiNmlimpairment of intangible assets has been ifledtduring any of the periods presented.

The quantitative goodwill impairment testi two-step process that requires managementke judgments in determining what
assumptions to use in the calculation. The firgp sif the process consists of estimating the fiterof the Company's reporting unit base:
valuation techniques (including a discounted césh model using revenue and profit forecasts) amdparing that estimated fair value with
the recorded carrying value, which includes gooldWfithe estimated fair value is less than theydag value, a second step is performed to
compute the amount of the impairment by determimingimplied fair value" of goodwill. The determiien of the implied fair value of
goodwill would require the Company to allocate éstimated fair value of its reporting unit to itsats and liabilities. Any unallocated fair
value would represent the implied fair value of gwdl, which would be compared to its correspondaagrying value.

Other assets

Noncurrent Other assets consist primaffilgualifying prepaid expenses, debt issuance aulsish are amortized over the life of the
related obligations, deferred compensation obligesti and utility and security deposits.
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Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist ofdhewing:

February 1, February 3,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Compensation and benef $ 76,98, $ 76,98¢
Insurance 86,18¢ 78,23t
Taxes (other than taxes on incor 89,32¢ 107,95:
Other 104,93¢ 133,89¢

$ 357,43t $ 397,07

Other accrued expenses primarily inclugedirrent portion of liabilities for legal settlemis, freight expense, contingent rent expense,
utilities, derivatives, and common area and othaintenance charges.

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portibmisk for its workers' compensation, employee tteajeneral liability, property and
automobile claim exposures. Accordingly, provisians made for the Company's estimates of such. fi$lesundiscounted future claim costs
for the workers' compensation, general liabilityd dealth claim risks are derived using actuarieihods. To the extent that subsequent claim
costs vary from those estimates, future resultspefations will be affected. Ashley River Insura@msampany ("ARIC"), a South Carolina-
based wholly owned captive insurance subsidiath@fCompany, charges the operating subsidiary coi@p@remiums to insure the retained
workers' compensation and non-property generallitiaexposures. Pursuant to South Carolina inscearegulations, ARIC is required to
maintain certain levels of cash and cash equivsliesiated to its self-insured exposures. ARIC ailyansures no unrelated third-party risk.

The Company's policy is to record self-iagice reserves on an undiscounted basis, excepgderves assumed in a business
combination.

Operating leases and related liabilities

Rent expense is recognized over the tertheofease. The Company records minimum rentalresgoen a straight-line basis over the
base, non-cancelable lease term commencing orateeftht the Company takes physical possessidregiroperty from the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opgrib make necessary leasehold improvements atall istore fixtures. When a lease
contains a predetermined fixed escalation of th@mmim rent, the Company recognizes the relatedergmtnse on a straight-line basis and
records the difference between the recognizedIrerpense and the amounts payable under the lsateferred rent. Tenant allowances, to
the extent received, are recorded as deferredtineerent and are amortized as a reduction toegpénse over the term of the lease. Any
difference between the calculated expense andntioeiats actually paid are reflected as a liabilitith the current portion in Accrued
expenses and other and the long-term portion ireQidbilities in the consolidated balance shemts| totaled approximately $43.6 million
and $31.3 million at February 1, 2013 and Febr3ar3012, respectively.
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The Company recognizes contingent rentaéage when the achievement of specified salesttaage considered probable, in
accordance with applicable accounting standardsdotingent rent. The amount expensed but not asiof February 1, 2013 and Februar
2012 was approximately $7.7 million and $9.4 millioespectively, and is included in Accrued expsra®l other in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Other liabilities
Noncurrent Other liabilities consist of fledowing:

February 1, February 3,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Compensation and benef $ 18,40 $ 17,57(
Insurance 137,45 137,89:
Income tax related reserv 23,38: 41,13(
Other 46,16 32,55¢

$ 225,39¢ $ 229,14

Amounts reflected as "other" in the talidexee consist primarily of deferred rent and dernxatiabilities.

Fair value accounting

The Company utilizes accounting standapd$dir value, which include the definition of faialue, the framework for measuring fair
value, and disclosures about fair value measuresnEgatr value is a market-based measurement, nentitg-specific measurement.
Therefore, a fair value measurement should be mi@ted based on the assumptions that market patitspvould use in pricing the asset or
liability. As a basis for considering market papant assumptions in fair value measurementsy#dire accounting standards establish a fair
value hierarchy that distinguishes between mar&gigipant assumptions based on market data olotdiinen sources independent of the
reporting entity (observable inputs that are cfassiwithin Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and teporting entity's own assumptions about
market participant assumptions (unobservable inglassified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unest¢d) in active markets for identical assetsatilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than qumteds included in Level 1 that are directly adinectly observable for the asset or liability.
Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for simédasets and liabilities in active markets, as aglinputs that are observable for the asset ol
liability (other than quoted prices), such as iegtrates, foreign exchange rates, and yield cuhatsare observable at commonly quoted
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpatgte asset or liability, which are based on aityésown assumptions, as there is little, if
any, related market activity. In instances wheeedhtermination of the fair value measurement $gtan inputs from different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair valuerarchy within which the entire fair value measuemt falls is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measuremarits entirety. The Company's assessment of thgfigsignce of a particular input to the
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fair value measurement in its entirety requiregjuent and considers factors specific to the asdethility.

The valuation of the Company's derivativafcial instruments is determined using widelyegted valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected fasis of each derivative. This analysis reflects dontractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses obsdevaimarket-based inputs, including interest rateesir The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methogalbgetting the discounted future fixed cash paytador receipts) and the discounted
expected variable cash receipts (or payments)vahable cash receipts (or payments) are based ex@ectation of future interest rates
(forward curves) derived from observable markegriest rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuatidjustments (CVAS) to appropriately reflect bothatsn nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty's nonperformance riskénfalir value measurements. In adjusting the fdinevaf its derivative contracts for the eff
of nonperformance risk, the Company has considv@impact of netting and any applicable creditaamdements, such as collateral postil
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

In connection with accounting standardsféirvalue measurement, the Company has madecauating policy election to measure the
credit risk of its derivative financial instrumertbe&t are subject to master netting agreementsnan basis by counterparty portfolio. The
Company has determined that the majority of theiispised to value its derivatives fall within LeRebf the fair value hierarchy. However,
the CVAs associated with its derivatives utilizeveke3 inputs, such as estimates of current crgaéads to evaluate the likelihood of default
by itself and its counterparties. As of Februar2@13, the Company has assessed the significartbe ahpact of the CVAs on the overall
valuation of its derivative positions and has deiaed that the CVAs are not significant to the alleraluation of its derivatives. Based on
the Company's review of the CVAs by counterpartstfpbo, the Company has determined that the CVeesret significant to the overall
portfolio valuations, as the CVAs are deemed tinfraaterial in terms of basis points and are a eengll percentage of the aggregate
notional value. Although some of the CVAs as a petage of termination value appear to be more figgmnit, primary emphasis was placed
on a review of the CVA in basis points and the petage of the notional value. As a result, the Camyphas determined that its derivative
valuations in their entirety are classified in LeRef the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative finahitistruments in accordance with accounting stadsdfor derivative instruments and
hedging activities. All financial instrument positis taken by the Company are intended to be useditwe risk by hedging an underlying
economic exposure.

The Company records all derivatives onltilkance sheet at fair value. The accounting fongba in the fair value of derivatives depe
on the intended use of the derivative, whetheQbmpany has elected to designate a derivativehgdging relationship and apply hedge
accounting and whether the hedging relationshipshésfied the criteria necessary to apply hedgewtting. Derivatives designated and
qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to chang#wifiair value of an asset, liability, or firm coritment attributable to a particular risk, st
as interest rate risk, are considered fair valughs. Derivatives designated and qualifying asdgéef the exposure to variability in
expected future cash flows, or other types of faséed transactions, are considered cash
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flow hedges. Derivatives may also be designatdtedges of the foreign currency exposure of a netsitment in a foreign operation. Hedge
accounting generally provides for the matchinghef timing of gain or loss recognition on the hedgimstrument with the recognition of the
changes in the fair value of the hedged asseability that are attributable to the hedged risk ifair value hedge or the earnings effect of the
hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow h@dgeCompany may enter into derivative contrawds are intended to economically hedge
a certain portion of its risk, even though hedgepaoting does not apply or the Company electsmapply the hedge accounting standards.

The Company's derivative financial instrumsein the form of interest rate swaps at Febrda®013, are related to variable interest rate
risk exposures associated with the Company's leng-tlebt and were entered into in an effort to rgarthat risk. The counterparties to the
Company's derivative agreements are all majornaténal financial institutions. The Company cougfly monitors its position and the
credit ratings of its counterparties and does ntitgate nonperformance by the counterparties.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales intises at the time the customer takes possessimermhandise. All sales are net of discounts
and estimated returns and are presented net of éseessed by governmental authorities that aresiedpconcurrent with those sales. The
liability for retail merchandise returns is basedtbe Company's prior experience. The Company dsogain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card salesmeeeat the time of redemption. The liability foetift cards is established for the cash value
at the time of purchase. The liability for outstangdgift cards was approximately $3.6 million arRi$million at February 1, 2013 and
February 3, 2012, respectively, and is recordeicicrued expenses and other liabilities. Throughr&raly 1, 2013, the Company has not
recorded any breakage income related to its gift pepogram.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon perdogg, "first showing" or distribution, and are eefied in SG&A expenses net of earned
cooperative advertising amounts provided by venddrish are specific, incremental and otherwise ifiginb expenses related to the
promotion or sale of vendor products for dollar amts up to but not exceeding actual incrementabcésivertising costs were $61.7 millic
$50.4 million and $46.9 million in 2012, 2011 ar@ll P, respectively. These costs primarily includenpotional circulars, targeted circulars
supporting new stores, television and radio adsiedi in-store signage, and costs associated hatlsponsorships of certain automobile
racing activities. Vendor funding for cooperativdvartising offset reported expenses by $23.6 mi)l&20.8 million and $14.2 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes compensation exgdensbare-based compensation based on the faie wdlthe awards on the grant date.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuatind reduce expense ratably over the vesting pefiud.estimate may be adjusted
periodically based on the extent to which actudkiftures differ, or are expected to differ, fronetprior estimate. The forfeiture rate
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is the estimated percentage of options grantechtiga¢xpected to be forfeited or canceled befocerag fully vested. The Company bases
this estimate on historical experience or estimafdature trends, as applicable. An increase aftirfeiture rate will decrease compensation
expense.

The fair value of each option grant is safey estimated and amortized into compensatigeese on a straight-line basis between the
applicable grant date and each vesting date. Thep@oy has estimated the fair value of all stockoopawards as of the grant date by
applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricinduaion model. The application of this valuationdaebinvolves assumptions that are
judgmental and highly sensitive in the determinmatid compensation expen:

The Company calculates compensation expensmnvested restricted stock, share units amilai awards as the difference between
the market price of the underlying stock on thengdate and the purchase price, if any. Such expisngcognized on a straight-line basis for
graded awards or an accelerated basis for perfaren@anards over the period in which the recipiem&the awards.

Store pre-opening costs
Pre-opening costs related to new store iagerand the related construction periods are esgebas incurred.
Income taxes

Under the accounting standards for incoamed, the asset and liability method is used fanmding the future income tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Companyisolidated financial statements or incomeeaxns. Deferred income tax expense or
benefit is the net change during the year in then@any's deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

The Company includes income tax relateer@dt and penalties as a component of the provisitancome tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined usimgthodology which requires companies to assessiragime tax position taken using a two-
step process. A determination is first made ashether it is more likely than not that the positieii be sustained, based upon the technical
merits, upon examination by the taxing authoritiEthe tax position is expected to meet the mikely than not criteria, the benefit recorded
for the tax position equals the largest amountithgteater than 50% likely to be realized upoimadte settlement of the respective tax
position. Uncertain tax positions require deterrtiores and estimated liabilities to be made basepgrowisions of the tax law which may be
subject to change or varying interpretation. If @@mpany's determinations and estimates prove bodoeurate, the resulting adjustments
could be material to the Company's future finanaallts.

Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements rahated disclosures in conformity with accountprinciples generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates suehptsons that affect the reported amounts of ass®l liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date efcbnsolidated financial statements and the rep@nt@ounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods. Actual results could difiem those estimates.
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Accounting standards

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Stards Board (FASB) issued new accounting guidaelegimg to impairment testing for
indefinite-lived intangible assets, as discussegréater detail above under "Goodwill and otheanigible assets.” This guidance is effective
for annual and interim impairment tests for fisgaars beginning after September 15, 2012 and addption is permitted. The Company
adopted this guidance in the third quarter of 284& it did not have a material impact on its cosdéd financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accoustimgdards update which revises the manner in wéitlies present comprehensive income
in their financial statements. The new standardorea the presentation options in current guidanderaquires entities to report components
of comprehensive income in either a continuougstant of comprehensive income or separate but cuotige statements. The Company
adopted this guidance in 2012 in the form of sepdat consecutive statements, and it did not lkawveterial effect on its consolidated
financial statements.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of the 2011 a@@®amounts have been made to conform to the 2@&k2ptation.
2. Common stock transactions

On August 29, 2012, the Company's BoarDigéctors authorized a $500 million common stogburehase program, of which
$143.6 million remained available for repurchasefdsebruary 1, 2013. The repurchase authorizdtaamnno expiration date and allows
repurchases from time to time in the open markét privately negotiated transactions, which cauldude repurchases from Buck
Holdings, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership coltéd by KKR and Goldman Sachs and Co., or othkted parties if appropriate. The
timing and number of shares purchased will depemd wariety of factors, such as price, market dbonts, compliance with the covenants
and restrictions under our debt agreements and fatbers. Repurchases under the program may lieéufrom available cash or borrowings
under the Company's senior secured asset-basddingvoredit facility, which is discussed in furthdetail in Note 6.

On November 30, 2011, the Company's Bo&irectors authorized a $500 million common stoefurchase program, which was
completed during 2012 as discussed below. The cepse authorization had terms similar to the Aug04®2 authorization.

During the year ended February 1, 2013Cbmpany repurchased approximately 7.1 million shander the November 2011
authorization at a total cost of $315.0 millior;lurding approximately 6.8 million shares purchasech Buck Holdings, L.P. for an aggreg.
purchase price of $300.0 million, and approxima#®B million shares under the August 2012 authtinraat a total cost of $356.4 million,
including approximately 4.9 million shares purclthffiem Buck Holdings, L.P. for an aggregate purehaisce of $250.0 million. During the
year ended February 3, 2012, the Company repurdlagmoximately 4.9 million shares under the Noven#tD11 authorization from Buc
Holdings, L.P. at a total cost of $185.0 million.
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As of February 1, 2013 and February 3, 2@i2 balances of the Company's intangible assets as follows:

As of February 1, 201:

Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwiill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58' $ — $ 4,338,58!
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes ltolOyear $ 10691 $ 87,07« $ 19,84
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,70! — 1,199,70!
$ 1,306,61 $ 87,07: $ 1,219,54.
As of February 3, 2012
Remaining Accumulated
(In thousands) Life Amount Amortization Net
Goodwiill Indefinite  $ 4,338,58' $ — $ 4,338,58!
Other intangible asset
Leasehold interes ltollyear $ 122,16¢ $ 8541* $  36,75¢
Trade names and tradema Indefinite 1,199,20! — 1,199,20!

$ 1,321,36¢ $ 8541f $ 1,235,95

The Company recorded amortization expeelseéad to amortizable intangible assets for 200212and 2010 of $16.9 million,
$21.0 million and $27.4 million, respectively, (afiwhich is included in rent expense, with theepton of internally developed software
amortization of $1.7 million in 2010). Expecteddte cash flows associated with the Company's iniéegssets are not expected to be
materially affected by the Company's intent origbtb renew or extend the arrangements. The Cogipgoodwill balance is not expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

For intangible assets subject to amortirgtihe estimated aggregate amortization expemsgafth of the five succeeding fiscal years is
as follows: 2013—$11.9 million, 2014—3$5.8 millid2015—$0.9 million, 2016—%$0.3 million and 2017—S$@ndlion.

4. Earnings per share

Earnings per share is computed as followghpusands except per share data):

2012
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 952,66. 332,25: $§  2.87
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 2,21¢
Diluted earnings per sha $ 952,66. 334,46¢ $ 2.8t
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2011
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 766,68! 341,23 $ 2.2t
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 3,88:
Diluted earnings per sha $ 766,68! 345,11 ¢ 2.22
2010
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per she $ 627,85 341,04 $ 1.84
Effect of dilutive shar-based award 3,75
Diluted earnings per sha $ 627,85 344,80 $ 1.8Z

Basic earnings per share was computedviglidg net income by the weighted average numbehafes of common stock outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share wasrdehed based on the dilutive effect of share-baseards using the treasury stock method.

Options to purchase shares of common statkwere outstanding at the end of the respeptivimds, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings per share becaweseffect of exercising such options would be alatige, were 0.8 million, zero and
0.4 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

5. Income taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxessists of the following:

(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Current:
Federal $ 457,37( $ 385,27° $ 273,00!
Foreign 1,20¢ 1,44¢ 1,26¢
State 78,02¢ 56,27: 28,06:
536,60: 442 ,99¢ 302,33t
Deferred:
Federal 9,73¢ 8,31: 42,024
State (1,606 7,29: 12,75¢

8,12¢ 15,60¢ 54,77¢
$ 544,73. $ 458,60: $ 357,11!
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A reconciliation between actual income taaad amounts computed by applying the federaltstgtrate to income before income taxes
is summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
U.S. federal statutory rate on

earnings before income tax $ 524,08t 35.(% $ 428,85: 35.% $ 344,74( 35.(%
State income taxes, net of feder

income tax benefi 52,71 3.t 42,77+ 3.t 26,87" 2.7
Jobs credits, net of federal incor

taxes (16,067 (1.1) (15,159 (1.2 (8,84Y (0.9
Increase (decrease) in valuation

allowances (3,050 (0.2 (2,202 (0.2 (2,009 (0.3

Income tax related interest expe

(benefit), net of federal incom

taxes (47€) — (1213) — (5,009 (0.5
Reduction in income tax reserve

due to favorable examination

resolutions (13,67¢) (0.9 —
Other, ne’ 1,19t 0.1 4,45¢ 0.2 35C 0.1

$ 544,73. 36.4% $ 458,60 37.4% $ 357,11' 36.2%

The 2012 effective tax rate was an expefs$®.4%. This expense was greater than the fedextltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totiative tax rate. The 2012 effective tax rate o486 was lower than the 2011 rate of 37.4%
due to the favorable resolution of a federal incaaxeexamination during 2012.

The 2011 effective tax rate was an expenssd.4%. This expense was greater than the fedttltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the totdaive tax rate. The 2011 effective rate was gnethitan the 2010 rate of 36.3% primarily due
to the effective resolution of various examinatibiyshe taxing authorities in 2010 that did nota@ar, to the same extent, in 2011. These
factors resulted in rate increases in 2011, as eoedpto 2010, associated with state income taxe@sn@ome tax related interest expense.
Increases in federal jobs related tax credits, aripndue to the Hire Act's Retention Credit, reeld¢he effective rate in 2011 as compared to
2010. The Retention Credit applies only to 2011.

The 2010 effective tax rate was an expensé.3%. This expense was greater than the fedttltory tax rate of 35% due primarily to
the inclusion of state income taxes in the tottdative tax rate.
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Deferred taxes reflect the effects of terappdifferences between carrying amounts of asseddiabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax pesp8ggnificant components of the Company's dedear assets and liabilities are as
follows:

February 1, February 3,

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Deferred compensation exper $ 9,27¢ $ 7,851
Accrued expenses and ott 5,72 6,73t
Accrued ren 15,45( 11,12¢
Accrued insuranc 72,44 70,18(
Accrued bonuse 15,39¢ 16,68¢
Interest rate hedge 1,88: 4,47¢
Tax benefit of income tax and interest reserves
related to uncertain tax positio 2,69¢ 2,69(
Other 13,91« 16,01(
State tax net operating loss carry forwards, net «
federal tax 64E 33
State tax credit carry forwards, net of federal 8,92¢ 10,62¢
146,35 146,41
Less valuation allowanct (2,830 (4,88))
Total deferred tax asse 144,52 141,53t
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (294,20  (287,44)
Inventories (67,24¢) (49,345
Trademarks (435,529  (435,61)
Amortizable asset (6,809 (13,239
Bonus related tax method char (6,539 (13,079
Other (4,499¢) (3,539
Total deferred tax liabilitie (814,82() (802,25
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (670,29) $ (660,71%)

Net deferred tax liabilities are reflectparately on the consolidated balance sheetsi@ntand noncurrent deferred income taxes
following table summarizes net deferred tax lidigi as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets

February 1, February 3,

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Current deferred income tax liabilities, 1 $ (2322) $ (3,729
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, | (647,07()  (656,99¢)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (670,29) $ (660,719
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The Company has state net operating lasg frmwards as of February 1, 2013 that total agpnately $7.3 million which will expire in
2028. The Company also has state tax credit carwydrds of approximately $14.0 million that willgxe beginning in 2021 through 2023.

The valuation allowance has been providedtate tax credit carry forwards and federaltedjpsses. The 2012, 2011, and 2010
decreases of $3.1 million, $2.2 million and $1.0iom, respectively, were recorded as a reductiom¢ome tax expense. Based upon
expected future income, management believes tiatribre likely than not that the results of opers will generate sufficient taxable
income to realize the deferred tax assets afténgigonsideration to the valuation allowance.

The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") hampleted its examination of the Company's federabine tax returns for fiscal years 2006,
2007, and 2008. As a result, the 2008 and eadieye¢ars are not open for examination by the IR®. RS, at its discretion, may choose to
examine the Company's 2009, 2010, or 2011 fiscal yeome tax filings. The Company has variousestatome tax examinations that are
currently in progress. Generally, the Company's928@d later tax years remain open for examinatjothb various state taxing authorities.

As of February 1, 2013, accruals for uraiartax benefits, interest expense related to irctares and potential income tax penalties
were $22.2 million, $2.3 million and $0.4 milliorgspectively, for a total of $24.9 million. Of trasnount, $1.5 million and $23.4 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenaad other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespestively, in the consolidated balance sheet.

As of February 3, 2012, accruals for uraiartax benefits, interest expense related to irctames and potential income tax penalties
were $42.0 million, $1.2 million and $0.6 milliorespectively, for a total of $43.8 million. Of thasnount, $0.3 million and $41.1 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenaad other and in noncurrent Other liabilitiespetively, in the consolidated balance sheet
with the remaining $2.4 million reducing deferred issets related to net operating loss carry falsva

The Company believes that it is reasonpbbsible that the reserve for uncertain tax passtimay be reduced by approximately
$15.4 million in the coming twelve months princigas a result of the expiration of the statutéiraftations. Also, as of February 1, 2013,
approximately $22.2 million of the uncertain tasppions would impact the Company's effective incdmerate if the Company were to
recognize the tax benefit for these positions.

The amounts associated with uncertain &itions included in income tax expense consista®following:

(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Income tax expense (bene $ (16,119 $ 97 $ (12,000
Income tax related interest expense (ben 344 96¢ (5,800
Income tax related penalty expense (ben (200 63 (700)
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A reconciliation of the uncertain income fmsitions from January 29, 2010 through Febrda3013 is as follows:

(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Beginning balanc $ 42,01t $ 26,42¢ $ 67,63¢
Increases—tax positions taken in the curr

year 2,11¢ 12t 12t
Increase—tax positions taken in prior yee 1,14¢ 15,84( —
Decrease—tax positions taken in prior ye: (22,669 — (36,979)
Statute expiration (16€) (37¢€) (1,570
Settlement: (209) — (2,789
Ending balanc: $ 22,237 $ 42,018 $ 26,42¢

6. Current and long-term obligations

Current and long-term obligations consfdhe following:

February 1, February 3,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Senior secured term loan facilit

Maturity July 6, 201« $ 1,083,801 $ 1,963,501

Maturity July 6, 201} 879,70( —
ABL Facility, maturity July 6, 2014 and July 6,

2013, respectivel 286,50( 184,70!
41/ 8% Senior Notes due July 15, 2017 500,00( —
117/8%/12°/ 8% Senior Subordinated Notes du

July 15, 2017 — 450,69
Capital lease obligatior 7,73 5,08¢
Tax increment financing due February 1, 2 14,49t 14,49t

2,772,22i 2,618,48
Less: current portio (892) (590
Long-term portion $ 2,771,331 $ 2,617,89

As of February 1, 2013 the Company hasosesgicured credit agreements (the "Credit Faalifivhich provide total financing of
$3.16 billion, consisting of a senior secured téen facility (“Term Loan Facility"), and a senisecured asset-based revolving credit facility
("ABL Facility").

On March 15, 2012, the ABL Facility was amded and restated. The maturity date was extengledybar to July 6, 2014 and the total
commitment was increased to $1.2 billion (of whighto $350.0 million is available for letters o&dit), subject to borrowing base
availability. The Company capitalized $2.7 milliohdebt issue costs, and incurred a pretax lo$4. @& million for the write off of a portion
existing debt issue costs associated with the ament which is reflected in Other (income) expeinsthe consolidated statement of income
for the year ended February 1, 2013.

On March 30, 2012, the Term Loan Faciligsvamended and restated. Pursuant to the amendheentaturity date for a portion
($879.7 million) of the Term Loan Facility was emtked from July 6, 2014 to July 6, 2017. The applieanargin for borrowings under the
Term Loan Facility
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remains unchanged. The Company capitalized $5lmiyf debt issue costs associated with the amemndm

On October 9, 2012, the Credit Facilitieavfurther amended to add additional capacityiferCompany to repurchase, redeem or
otherwise acquire shares of its capital stocktoexceed $250.0 million. The Company incurredeade$1.7 million associated with these
amendments which is included in Other (income) agpen the consolidated statement of income foy#a® ended February 1, 2013. The
Company was reimbursed for these fees as furtseusised in Note 12.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bererest at a rate equal to an applicable marlyis, @t the Company's option, either (a) LIB
or (b) a base rate (which is usually equal to tfvae rate). The applicable margin for borrowingo&&ebruary 1, 2013 and February 3, 2012
was (i) under the Term Loan, 2.75% for LIBOR boriogs and 1.75% for base-rate borrowings and (igeurthe ABL Facility, 1.50% for
LIBOR borrowings and 0.50% for base-rate borrowirgsFebruary 3, 2012, prior to the amendment dised above, the ABL Facility also
had a "last out" tranche of $101.0 million for whithe applicable margin was 2.25% for LIBOR bornmogg and 1.25% for base rate
borrowings. The applicable margins for borrowingsler the ABL Facility are subject to adjustmenthequarter based on average daily
excess availability under the ABL Facility. The Quamny also must pay customary letter of credit féég. interest rate for borrowings under
the Term Loan Facility was 3.0% and 3.1% (withoutrgy effect to the interest rate swaps discusaeddte 8), as of February 1, 2013 and
February 3, 2012, respectively.

The senior secured credit agreement fofrdren Loan Facility requires the Company to prepatstanding term loans, subject to certain
exceptions, with percentages of excess cash flowggeds of non-ordinary course asset sales orsitigpts of property, and proceeds of
incurrences of certain debt. In addition, the seséxured credit agreement for the ABL Facilityuiegs the Company to prepay the ABL
Facility, subject to certain exceptions, with preds of non-ordinary course asset sales or dispositf property and any borrowings in
excess of the then current borrowing base. The Teram Facility can be prepaid in whole or in pdraay time. No prepayments have been
required under the prepayment provisions listedrattbrough February 1, 2013.

All obligations under the Credit Facilitiase unconditionally guaranteed by substantiallpfaihe Company's existing and future
domestic subsidiaries (excluding certain immatesiddsidiaries and certain subsidiaries designatgddoCompany under the Credit Facilities
as "unrestricted subsidiaries").

All obligations and guarantees of thosegattions under the Term Loan Facility are secungdsbbject to certain exceptions, a second-
priority security interest in all existing and af@cquired inventory and accounts receivable;si firiority security interest in substantially all
of the Company's and the guarantors' tangible mtathgible assets (other than the inventory anduatsaeceivable collateral); and a first-
priority pledge of the capital stock held by then@@mny. All obligations under the ABL Facility arecsired by all existing and after-acquired
inventory and accounts receivable, subject to Teeaceptions.

The Credit Facilities contain certain coaets, including, among other things, covenantslitmtt the Company's ability to incur
additional indebtedness, sell assets, incur adhdititens, pay dividends, make investments or asitijoms, or repay certain indebtedness.
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As of February 1, 2013 and February 3, 2@i2 respective letter of credit amounts relatetthé ABL Facility were $40.1 million and
$38.4 million, and borrowing availability under tA8L Facility was $873.4 million and $807.9 milliprespectively.

On July 12, 2012, the Company issued $500ln aggregate principal amount of 4.125% semiotes due 2017 (the "Senior Notes")
which mature on July 15, 2017, pursuant to an inderdated as of July 12, 2012 (the "Senior IndefijuThe Company capitalized
$7.3 million of debt issue costs associated withSlenior Notes.

Interest on the Senior Notes is payableash on January 15 and July 15 of each year, coningean January 15, 2013. The Senior
Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed @efior unsecured basis by each of the existindwnde direct or indirect domesit
subsidiaries that guarantee the obligations urideCredit Facilities discussed above.

The Company may redeem some or all of #r@ds Notes at any time at redemption prices desedror set forth in the Senior Indenture.
The Company also may seek, from time to time, tioeraome or all of the Senior Notes through casitipases in the open market, in
privately negotiated transactions or otherwise hSepurchases, if any, will depend on prevailingkaaconditions, the Company's liquidity
requirements, contractual restrictions and othetofa. The amounts involved may be material.

Upon the occurrence of a change of cotiggering event, which is defined in the Seniaddnture, each holder of the Senior Notes has
the right to require the Company to repurchase somadl of such holder's Senior Notes at a purclpaiee in cash equal to 101% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unp#igreést, if any, to the repurchase date.

The Senior Indenture contains covenantgifigy among other things, the ability of the Compand its restricted subsidiaries to (suk
to certain exceptions): consolidate, merge, seatitberwise dispose of all or substantially alllod Company's assets; and incur or guarantee
indebtedness secured by liens on any shares aofgvstdck of significant subsidiaries.

The Senior Indenture also provides for ¢vefi default which, if any of them occurs, woulgkmit or require the principal of and accri
interest on the Senior Notes to become or to bladEtdue and payable.

On July 15, 2012, the Company redeemeeitiiee $450.7 million outstanding aggregate priatgmount of its 11.875%/12.625%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2017 (the "SenioofSiifated Notes") at a premium. The pretax losth@ntransaction of $29.0 million is
reflected in Other (income) expense in the conatdid statement of income for the year ended Fepy&013. The Company funded the
redemption price for the Senior Subordinated Nuti#is proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes

In April and July 2011, the Company repastd or redeemed all $864.3 million outstandingeggte principal amount of its 10.625%
senior notes due 2015 at a premium. The Compardefiithe redemption price for the senior notes di& 2vith cash on hand and
borrowings under the ABL Facility. The 2011 redeimptand repurchase resulted in pretax lossesngt&60.3 million, which is reflected in
Other (income) expense in the consolidated statenféencome for the year ended February 3, 2012.
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Scheduled debt maturities, including cdpéase obligations, for the Company's fiscal yédiated below are as follows (in thousands):
2013—$892; 2014—%$1,371,266; 2015—%$1,158; 2016—t,3017—%$1,380,990; thereafter—$16,543.

7. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the Compaagsets and liabilities measured at fair value mtarring basis as of February 1, 2013,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierangfithin which those measurements fall.

Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets Significant
for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable Balance at
Liabilities Inputs Inputs February 1,
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2013
Assets:
Trading securities(e $ 5,58t $ — 9 — % 5,58¢
Liabilities:
Long-term obligations(b 2,780,56: 22,22¢ — 2,802,79
Derivative financial instruments( — 4,82 — 4,82
Deferred compensation( 22,68¢ — — 22,68¢

(a) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balastwet as Prepaid expenses and other current a6$dt285 and Other
assets, net of $1,301.

(b) Reflected at book value in the consolidatedize sheet as Current portion of long-term obioget of $892 and Long-
term obligations of $2,771,336.

(c) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balasteet as noncurrent Other liabilities.

(d) Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balastwet as Accrued expenses and other currenttiebidbf $4,285 and
noncurrent Other liabilities of $18,4C

The carrying amounts reflected in the ctidated balance sheets for cash, cash equivakmst-term investments, receivables and
payables approximate their respective fair valliae. Company does not have any fair value measuitsmeimg significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) as of February 1, 2013.

8. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into certain finaneiatriument positions, all of which are intended¢aused to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure.

Risk management objective of using derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risksiragifrom both its business operations and econeomditions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of busimed®perational risks through management of its basiness activities. The Company
manages economic
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risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and citeisk, primarily by managing the amount, souraasg duration of its debt funding and the use
of derivative financial instruments. Specificaltiie Company enters into derivative financial instemts to manage exposures that arise from
business activities that result in the receiptayment of future known and uncertain cash amotimsyalue of which are determined
primarily by interest rates. The Company's derixafinancial instruments are used to manage diffa¥s in the amount, timing, and duration
of the Company's known or expected cash receiptstatkknown or expected cash payments principaligted to the Company's borrowings.

The Company is exposed to certain risksrggifrom uncertainties of future market valuessealby the fluctuation in the prices of
commodities. From time to time the Company mayreinte derivative financial instruments to protagainst future price changes related to
these commodity prices.

Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

The Company's objectives in using interatd derivatives are to add stability to interegtesse and to manage its exposure to interest
rate changes. To accomplish this objective, the @y primarily uses interest rate swaps as pats afiterest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hédgalse the receipt of variable-rate amounts frosoanterparty in exchange for the
Company making fixed-rate payments over the lifthefagreements without exchange of the underlyaigpnal amount.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that qualgfycash flow hedges is recorded in
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (@Bmred to as "OCI") and is subsequently recl@sbkinto earnings in the period that the
hedged forecasted transaction affects earningseTiansactions represent the only amounts refléstAccumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) in the consolidated statements afstedders' equity. During the years ended Febrtia®013, February 3, 2012 and
January 28, 2011, such derivatives were used tgentied variable cash flows associated with existamipble-rate debt. The ineffective
portion of the change in fair value of the derivas is recognized directly in earnings.

As of February 1, 2013, the Company hadelinterest rate swaps with a combined notionalevaf $875 million that were designated
as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. Amotaysrted in Accumulated other comprehensive inc@ioss) related to derivatives will be
reclassified to interest expense as interest patgra@a made on the Company's variable-rate debin@the next 52-week period, the
Company estimates that an additional $3.1 millidihlve reclassified as an increase to interest egedor all of its interest rate swaps.

Non-designated hedges of commodity risk

Derivatives not designated as hedges drspazulative and are used to manage the Compaxpesure to commodity price risk but do
not meet strict hedge accounting requirements. @&gm the fair value of derivatives not designateldedging relationships are recorded
directly in earnings. As of February 1, 2013, the®any had no such non-designated hedges.
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The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments a#i as their classification on the consolide
balance sheets as of February 1, 2013 and Feh3uani2:

February 1, February 3,

(in thousands) 2013 2012
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instrumi

Interest rate swaps classified in current lialgtitas

Accrued expenses and other $ — $ 10,82
Interest rate swaps classified in noncurrent litied
as Other liabilities $ 482 % —

The tables below present the fae-effect of the Company's derivative financiatimments as reflected in the consolidated statenod
comprehensive income and shareholders' equitypliable:

(in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationsk

Loss related to effective portion of derivativeagnized in

OCl $ 9,62¢ $ 3,83 $ 19,71
Loss related to effective portion of derivativelessified fron

Accumulated OCI to Interest exper $ 13,327 $ 28,631 $ 42,99
(Gain) loss related to ineffective portion of dattive

recognized in Other (income) expel $ (239) $ 31z $  52¢

Credit-risk-related contingent features

The Company has agreements with all dhterest rate swap counterparties that contairoaigion providing that the Company could
be declared in default on its derivative obligasidirepayment of the underlying indebtedness cekerated by the lender due to the
Company's default on such indebtedness.

As of February 1, 2013, the fair valuerdérest rate swaps in a net liability position, ethincludes accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to tteegeements, was $5.0 million. If the Company hadthed any of these provisions at
February 1, 2013, it could have been required &1 fudl collateral or settle its obligations undke agreements at an estimated termination
value of $5.0 million. As of February 1, 2013, tbempany had not breached any of these provisiopssted any collateral related to these
agreements.

9. Commitments and contingencies
Leases

As of February 1, 2013, the Company wasrodtad under operating lease agreements for mdsd oftail stores. Many of the
Company's stores are subject to build-to-suit gearents with landlords which typically carry a paiy lease term of 10-15 years with
multiple renewal options. The Company also hasesteubject to shortéerm leases and many of these leases have renpti@i® Certain ¢
the Company's leased stores have provisions fdingamnt rentals based upon a specified percentbdefimed sales volume.
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The land and buildings of the Company's IJsulton, Missouri and Indianola, Mississippi atebject to operating lease agreements
the leased Ardmore, Oklahoma DC is subject to anfiing arrangement. The entities involved in th@enship structure underlying these
leases meet the accounting definition of a Varidtierest Entity ("VIE"). The Company is not thérpary beneficiary of these VIEs and,
accordingly, has not included these entities irdssolidated financial statements. Certain leasagain restrictive covenants. As of
February 1, 2013, the Company is not aware of aaterial violations of such covenants.

In January 1999, the Company sold its D&ated in Ardmore, Oklahoma for cash and concunrgtht the sale transaction, the Company
leased the property back for a period of 23 yeHus. transaction is accounted for as a financinggabbn rather than a sale as a result of,
among other things, the lessor's ability to putgteperty back to the Company under certain cir¢ances. The property and equipment,
along with the related lease obligation associatigld this transaction are recorded in the constdiddoalance sheets. In August 2007, the
Company purchased a secured promissory note (tfteridre Note") from an unrelated third party witfaae value of $34.3 million at the
date of purchase which approximated the remairimanting obligation. The Ardmore Note representst desued by the third party entity
from which the Company leases the Ardmore DC ardefore the Company holds the debt instrument jpémtato its lease financing
obligation. Because a legal right of offset exigtge, Company is accounting for the Ardmore Nota asduction of its outstanding financing
obligation in its consolidated balance sheets.

Future minimum payments as of FebruaryOl13Xor operating leases are as follows:

(In thousands)

2013 $ 611,59
2014 568,02
2015 509,68«
2016 452,75t
2017 399,70¢
Thereaftel 1,993,44
Total minimum payment $ 4,535,211

Total minimum payments for capital leasesfBFebruary 1, 2013 were $10.1 million, with agemt value of $7.7 million at an effective
interest rate of approximately 6.2% at FebruarQiL3. The gross amount of property and equipmeatrded under capital leases and
financing obligations at February 1, 2013 and dir&ary 3, 2012, was $29.8 million and $29.0 milliegspectively. Accumulated
depreciation on property and equipment under ddp#ses and financing obligations at February0l,32and February 3, 2012, was
$6.9 million and $7.3 million, respectively.
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Rent expense under all operating leasas fellows:

(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Minimum rentals(a $ 599,13t $ 525,48t $ 471,40:
Contingent rental 15,15( 16,85¢ 17,88:

$ 614,28{ $ 542,34 $ 489,28:

(&) Excludes amortization of leasehold interests of. $h6illion, $21.0 million and $25.7 million includen rent
expense for the years ended February 1, 2013, &gb8y 2012, and January 28, 2011, respecti

Legal proceedings

On August 7, 2006, a lawsuit entitlégnthia Richter, et al. v. Dolgencorp, Inc., etwaas filed in the United States District Court fhet
Northern District of Alabama (Case No. 7-cv-01537-LSC) ("Richter") in which the plaintifflages that she and other current and former
Dollar General store managers were improperly fladsas exempt executive employees under thelldior Standards Act ("FLSA") and
seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidated damagebsattorneys' fees and costs. On August 15, 2B8Richterplaintiff filed a motion in
which she asked the court to certify a nationwilds< of current and former store managers. The @agnppposed the plaintiff's motion. On
March 23, 2007, the court conditionally certifiedationwide class. On December 2, 2009, noticemaited to over 28,000 current or former
Dollar General store managers. Approximately 3,@8d/iduals opted into the lawsuit, approximate|@d0 of whom have been dismissed
various reasons, including failure to cooperatdigcovery.

On April 2, 2012, the Company moved to dgfgethe class. The plaintiff's response to thattion was filed on May 9, 2012.

On October 22, 2012, the court entered embtandum Opinion granting the Company's decertiicamotion. On December 19, 2012,
the court entered an Order decertifying the maier stating that a separate Order would be entegedding the opt-in plaintiffs' rights and
Cynthia Richter's individual claims. To date, tloeid has not entered such an Order.

The parties agreed to mediate the matbek tlze court informally stayed the action pendimg tesults of the mediation. A mediation was
conducted on January 11, 2013, at which time thggsavere unable to reach an agreement. The patiticipate that a second mediation
be conducted in April 2013. If the parties ultimgtare unable to resolve the matter, plaintiff reticated her intention to appeal the
decertification to the United States Court of Adpdar the Eleventh Circuit.

The Company believes that its store marsager and have been properly classified as exempibgees under the FLSA and that the
Richteraction is not appropriate for collective actioratraent. The Company has obtained summary judgmestme, although not all, of its
pending individual or single-plaintiff store manag&emption cases in which it has filed such a amoti

However, at this time, it is not possitdeptedict whetheRichterultimately will be permitted to proceed collectiyebnd no assurances
can be given that the Company will be successfitbidefense of the action on the merits or othegwsimilarly, at this time the Company
cannot estimate either the
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size of any potential class or the value of théntdaasserted iRichter. For these reasons, the Company is unable toastiamy potential lo
or range of loss in the matter; however, if the @any is not successful in its defense effortsyéiselution ofRichtercould have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial statesreia whole. The Company will continue to vigolpdefend its position in thRichter
matter.

On March 7, 2006, a complaint was filedha United States District Court for the Northeristbict of Alabama (Janet Calvert v.
Dolgencorp, Inc, Case No. 2:06-cv-00465-VEH ("Calvert")), in whitte plaintiff, a former store manager, alleged #te was paid less
than male store managers because of her sex,latigioof the Equal Pay Act and Title VII of theviRights Act of 1964, as amended
("Title VII") (now captioned Wanda Womack, et al. v. Dolgencorp, I€ase No. 2:06-cv-00465-VEH). The complaint subsetipevas
amended to include additional plaintiffs, who addlege to have been paid less than males becaibkeio§ex, and to add allegations that the
Company's compensation practices disparately infpatéles. Under the amended complaint, plaintifisght to proceed collectively under
the Equal Pay Act and as a class under Title Wd|, eequested back wages, injunctive and declaragtisf, liquidated damages, punitive
damages and attorneys' fees and costs.

On July 9, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a rawt in which they asked the court to approve teaasce of notice to a class of current and
former female store managers under the Equal PayTAe Company opposed plaintiffs' motion. On Notkem30, 2007, the court
conditionally certified a nationwide class of feemunder the Equal Pay Act who worked for Dollan&al as store managers between
November 30, 2004 and November 30, 2007. The neticeissued on January 11, 2008, and persons tohmnotice was sent we
required to opt into the suit by March 11, 2008 pApximately 2,100 individuals opted into the lavisui

On April 19, 2010, the plaintiffs moved fdass certification relating to their Title Vllaims. The Company filed its response to the
certification motion in June 2010. The Company'siamoto decertify the Equal Pay Act class was deaie premature.

The parties agreed to mediate, and thet stayed the action pending the results of the atiuii. The mediation occurred in March and
April, 2011, at which time the Company reached gmeement in principle to settle the matter on biebfathe entire putative class. The
proposed settlement, which received final apprénaah the court on July 23, 2012, provides for botbnetary and equitable relief. Under the
approved terms, $3.25 million was paid for plafstifegal fees and costs and $15.5 million was pa@a fund for the class members that
be apportioned and paid out to individual membless(certain administrative expenses and an addltik8 million in attorneys' fees
approved by the court on October 24, 2012). Otdited $18.75 million, the Company's Employment Bcas Liability Insurance ("EPLI")
carrier paid approximately $15.9 million in thesfiquarter of 2012 to a third party claims admmaisir to disburse the funds, per the
settlement terms, to claimants and counsel in decme with the court's orders, which represented#iance remaining of the $20 million
EPLI policy covering the claims. The Company pagigraximately $2.8 million to the third party claimdministrator. In addition, the
Company agreed to make, and, effective April 1,20ths made, certain adjustments to its pay setitigies and procedures for new store
managers. Because it deemed settlement probablestinthble, the Company accrued for the net setti¢ias well as for certain additional
anticipated fees related thereto during the fitgtrtgr of 2011, and concurrently recorded a retdévaf approximately $15.9 million from its
EPLI carrier. Due to the
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payments described above, the accrual and receivade each relieved during the first quarter df20

On April 9, 2012, the Company was servetthailawsuit filed in the United States Districtuofor the Eastern District of Virginia
entitledJonathan Marcum v. Dolgencorp. In€ivil Action No. 3:12-cv-00108-JRS) in which thiamtiffs, one of whose conditional offer of
employment was rescinded, allege that certainefXbmpany's background check procedures violatedheCredit Reporting Act ("FCRA"
Plaintiff Marcum also alleges defamation. Accordioghe complaint and subsequently filed first antended complaints, the plaintiff seeks
to represent a putative class of applicants in eotion with his FCRA claims. The Company filedrigsponse to the original complaint in
June 2012 and moved to dismiss certain allegationtained in the amended complaint in November 20hat motion remains pending. T
plaintiff's certification motion is currently due be filed on or before April 5, 2013.

The parties agreed to mediate, and mediatis conducted on January 15, 2013. Although theiation was unsuccessful, the parties
have continued informally to discuss potential heson of this matter. The Company's Employmentccas Liability Insurance ("EPLI")
carrier has been placed on notice of this mattdmanticipated in the mediation and the informatlement discussions. The EPLI Policy
covering this matter has a $2 million self-insuretention.

At this time, it is not possible to predighether the court ultimately will permit the actito proceed as a class under the FCRA.
Although the Company intends to vigorously defdmelaction, no assurances can be given that ib@iuccessful in the defense on the
merits or otherwise. At this stage in the procegslinhe Company cannot estimate either the siaaypotential class or the value of the
claims raised by the plaintiff. Based on settlentBgstussions and given the Company's EPLI covethgezompany believes that it is likely
to expend the balance of its self-insured retenticgettlement of this litigation or otherwise attigrefore, has accrued $1.8 million, an
amount that is immaterial to the Company's findrat@ements taken as a whole.

In September 2011, the Chicago Regionak®fif the United States Equal Employment Oppotyu@ommission ("EEOC" or
"Commission") notified the Company of a cause fingdielated to the Company's criminal backgroundklpelicy. The cause finding alleges
that Dollar General's criminal background checkgyolwhich excludes from employment individuals lwitertain criminal convictions for
specified periods, has a disparate impact on Afriéeerican candidates and employees in violatiomité VIl of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, as amended.

The Company and the EEOC engaged in thetstdy required conciliation process, and desfite Company's good faith efforts to
resolve the matter, the Commission notified the gany on July 26, 2012 of its view that conciliatived failed. Based on the Commission's
course of conduct, the Company believes that tibgamay ensue; however, no suit has been filathte.

The Company believes that its criminal lgaokind check process is both lawful and necessaaystfe environment for its employees
and customers and the protection of its assetslametholders' investments. The Company also dddsetieve that this matter would be
amenable to class or similar treatment; howeverabse at this time the Company cannot estimatetermine the form that any ultimate
litigation would take, the size of any putativessar the damages or other recoveries that woustbibeght, it cannot estimate the potential
exposure. If the matter were to proceed succegsfull
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as a class or similar action, it could have a ntanpact on the Company's financial statemenis ahole.

On May 20, 2011, a lawsuit entitdnn-Dixie Stores, Inc., et al. v. Dolgencorp, LW@s filed in the United States District Court fbe
Southern District of Florida (Case No. 9:11-cv-8040MM) ("Winn-Dixie") in which the plaintiffs allegd that the sale of food and other
items in approximately 55 of the Company's stoegash of which allegedly is or was at some timeamaded in a shopping center with one of
plaintiffs’ stores, violates restrictive covenathist plaintiffs contend are binding on the occupanitthe shopping centers. Plaintiffs sought
damages and an injunction limiting the sale of faad other items in those stores. Although pldmtiid not make a demand for any specific
amount of damages, documents prepared and prothygaldintiffs during discovery suggested that piiffiy would seek as much as
$47 million although the court limited their abyjlito prove such damages. The Company vigorouskmiiefd th&Vinn-Dixiematter and
viewed that sum as wholly without basis and unsuepglaby the law and the facts. The various leaseslved in the matter are unique in their
terms and/or the factual circumstances surrounttiam, and, in some cases, the stores named byifféa@me not now and have never been
co-located with plaintiffs' stores. The court geththe Company's motion challenging the admisgihili plaintiffs' damages expert,
precluding the expert from testifying. The case s@ssolidated with similar cases against Big Lotd Bollar Tree, and a non-jury trial
commenced on May 14, 2012 and presentation of ee@&eoncluded on May 22, 2012. The court issueatd@r on August 10, 2012 in
which it (i) dismissed all claims for damages, €ii3missed claims for injunctive relief for all taur stores, and (iii) directed the Company to
report to the court on its compliance with resivietcovenants at the four stores for which it did dismiss the claims for injunctive relief. 1
Company believes that the ruling will have no miatémpact on the Company's financial statementstioerwise. Plaintiffs filed a notice of
appeal of the court's decision on August 28, 2(fltAe court's ruling is overturned on appeal, imole or in part, no assurances can be given
that the Company will be successful in its ultimdédéense of the action on the merits or otherwfgbde Company is not successful in its
defense, the outcome could have a material adeffeset on the Company's financial statements abaev

In 2008, the Company terminated an intemast swap as a result of the counterparty's datadar of bankruptcy and made a cash
payment of $7.6 million to settle the swap. On Mdy 2010, the Company received a demand from thetegparty for an additional paym:
of approximately $19 million plus interest. In Ap2011, the Company reached a settlement with deterparty under which the Company
paid an additional $9.85 million in exchange fduthrelease. The Company accrued the settlemeptuairelong with additional expected
fees and costs related thereto in the first quaft@011. The settlement was finalized and the paytrwas made in May 2011.

From time to time, the Company is a pastydrious other legal actions involving claims demtal to the conduct of its business,
including actions by employees, consumers, sugplgvernment agencies, or others through privetterss, class actions, administrative
proceedings, regulatory actions or other litigatioeluding without limitation under federal anét& employment laws and wage and hour
laws. The Company believes, based upon informatimrently available, that such other litigation atams, both individually and in the
aggregate, will be resolved without a material aseeffect on the Company's financial statemengswalsole. However, litigation involves an
element of uncertainty. Future developments coalgse these actions or claims to have a materigraeheffect on the Company's results of
operations, cash flows, or financial position. tididion,
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certain of these lawsuits, if decided adverseltheoCompany or settled by the Company, may resuiability material to the Company's
financial position or may negatively affect opemgtresults if changes to the Company's businessatipe are required.

10. Benefit plans

The Dollar General Corporation 401(k) Sggimand Retirement Plan, which became effectiveaondry 1, 1998, is a safe harbor defined
contribution plan and is subject to the Employeé&rBment and Income Security Act ("ERISA").

A participant's right to claim a distriborti of his or her account balance is dependent®plém, ERISA guidelines and Internal Revenue
Service regulations. All active participants arkyfuested in all contributions to the 401(k) pldburing 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company
expensed approximately $11.9 million, $10.9 millaomd $9.5 million, respectively, for matching cdmttions.

The Company also has a nonqualified suppfeat retirement plan ("SERP") and compensatioerdaif plan ("CDP"), known as the
Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan, for aggjroup of management and other key employeesCbmpany incurred
compensation expense for these plans of approxiyrteied million, $1.7 million and $1.7 million inGA2, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The CDP/SERP Plan assets are investecdtouats selected by the Company's Compensation Civeenair its delegate. These
investments are classified as trading securitiélsth@ associated deferred compensation liabilitgfilected in the consolidated balance sheets
as further discussed in Note 7.

11. Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based pagnreaccordance with applicable accounting stadsjamder which the fair value of each
award is separately estimated and amortized imttpemsation expense over the service period. Thedhie of the Company's stock option
grants are estimated on the grant date using hekBbcholes-Merton valuation model. Forfeituresemtimated at the time of valuation and
reduce expense ratably over the vesting period.apipéication of this valuation model involves asgtions that are judgmental and highly
sensitive in the determination of compensation expe

On July 6, 2007, the Company's Board oéEtinrs adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Kmployees, which plan was
subsequently amended (as so amended, the "Pldre)PIan provides for the granting of stock opti@tieck appreciation rights, and other
stock-based awards or dividend equivalent rightetoemployees, directors, consultants or othesqrex having a service relationship with
the Company, its subsidiaries and certain of fiiaes. The number of shares of Company commoaoksauthorized for grant under the Plan
is 31,142,858. As of February 1, 2013, 20,140,Z49.10h shares are available for future grants.

Under the Plan, the Company has granteidrpthat vest solely upon the continued employroéitte recipient ("Time Options"),
options that vest upon the achievement of predéteirannual or cumulative financial-based targ#giformance Options") and other
awards. Time and Performance stock options gegeraiit ratably on an annual basis over a five-peaiod, with limited exceptions, while
other awards vest over varying time periods.
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Assuming specified financial targets ard, e Performance Options vest as of the Compdisgal year end, and as a result the initial
and final tranche of each Performance Option greay be prorated based upon the date of grantelevbnt the performance target is not
achieved in any given annual performance periagl Psarformance Options for that period may stillsaguently vest, provided that a
cumulative performance target is achieved. Vestindpe Time Options and Performance Options is siggect to acceleration in the even
an earlier change in control or certain public bffgs of the Company's common stock. Each of tgsiens, whether Time Options or
Performance Options, have a contractual term gfebds and an exercise price equal to the fair vaftlee underlying common stock on the
date of grant.

The weighted average for key assumptiors s determining the fair value of all optionsmped in the years ended February 1, 2013,
February 3, 2012, and January 28, 2011, and a sanohthe methodology applied to develop each aggiom, are as follows:

February 1, February 3, January 28,

2013 2012 2011
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatilit 26.8% 38.7% 39.1%
Weighted average ri-free interest rat 1.5% 2.2% 2.8%
Expected term of options (yea 6.3 6.8 7.C

Expected dividend yield—This is an estimaftéhe expected dividend yield on the CompanyslstThe Company is subject to
limitations on the payment of dividends under itedit Facilities as further discussed in Note 6.iAerease in the dividend yield will
decrease compensation expense.

Expected stock price volatility—This is @asure of the amount by which the price of the Camg|s common stock has fluctuated or is
expected to fluctuate. For awards issued undePldue through October 2011, the expected volaslitiere based upon the historical
volatilities of a peer group of four companies. Begng in November 2011, the expected volatilifiesawards are based on the historical
volatility of the Company's publicly traded commstock. An increase in the expected volatility witrease compensation expense.

Weighted average risk-free interest rateis Ththe U.S. Treasury rate for the week of trenghaving a term approximating the
expected life of the option. An increase in th&-fige interest rate will increase compensatioreesg.

Expected term of options—This is the pewddime over which the options granted are expktdteremain outstanding. The Company
has estimated the expected term as the mid-poiwelea the vesting date and the contractual tertheobption. An increase in the expected
term will increase compensation expense.

Both the Time Options and the Performanpédds are subject to various provisions set forth management stockholder's agreement
entered into with each option holder by which tlerpany may require the employee, upon terminatmeell to the Company any vested
options or shares received upon exercise of thee ptions or Performance Options at amounts tlfier diased upon the reason for the
termination. In particular, in the event that timepdoyee resigns "without good reason” (as defimetthé management stockholder's
agreement), then any options whether or not thencesable are forfeited and any shares received pgor exercise of such options are
callable at the
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Company's option at an amount equal to the leddairosalue or the amount paid for the shares,(the exercise price). In such cases,
because the employee would not benefit in any shgpeeciation over the exercise price, for accagnpiurposes such options are not
considered vested until the expiration of the Caomyfsacall option, which is generally five years sefpuent to the date of grant. Accordingly,
all references to the vesting provisions or vestatus of the options discussed in this note gifexeto the vesting pursuant to these
accounting provisions and may differ from descdps of the vesting status of the Time Options agrddPmance Options located elsewhere
in this report or the Company's other SEC filings.

A summary of Time Options activity durirftetyear ended February 1, 2013 is as follows:

Remaining
Average Contractual
Options Exercise Term Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Price in Years Value
Balance, February 3, 20: 4,258,58: $10.5¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec (2,861,68) 8.97
Cancelec (46,25¢ 16.1C
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,350,64: $13.6¢ 5.€ $44,017
Exercisable at February 1, 20 723,33! $11.42 5.4 $25,21¢

The weighted average grant date fair vaftieime Options granted during 2011 and 2010 w&4kland $12.61, respectively. The
intrinsic value of Time Options exercised durind 202011 and 2010 was $117.3 million, $41.4 millkord $5.5 million, respectively.

A summary of Performance Options activityidg the year ended February 1, 2013 is as fotlows

Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual

Options Termin Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Price Years Value
Balance, February 3, 20: 3,968,23 $10.7¢
Grantec — —
Exercisec (2,661,90) 9.1Z
Cancelec (41,509 16.8i
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,264,821 $13.9¢ 6.C $40,87¢
Exercisable at February 1, 20 916,22 $12.61 5.€ $30,85(

The weighted average grant date fair vafueerformance Options granted during 2011 and 20649$13.47 and $12.61, respectively.
The intrinsic value of Performance Options exextidering 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $106.4 milliori,.84million and $14.7 million,
respectively.

The Company currently believes that théquarance targets related to the unvested Perforen@ptions will be achieved. If such goals
are not met, and there is no change in controedai public offerings of the Company's commortktehich would result in the accelerat
of vesting of the
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Performance Options, future compensation costinglad unvested Performance Options will not begmized.

Other options include awards granted toleyges and members of the board of directors andrgdy vest solely upon the continued
employment or board service of the recipient ovpedod of four years for employees and three yfarboard members. A summary of ot
stock option activity during the year ended Fehbyuar2013 is as follows:

Remaining
Average Contractual
Options Exercise  Termin Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Price Years Value
Balance, February 3, 20: 217,13 $29.0¢
Grantec 1,063,30. 45.4¢
Exercisec (8,537 13.3¢
Cancelec (60,137 45.1¢
Balance, February 1, 20: 1,211,77. $42.77 8.6 $4,41¢
Exercisable at February 1, 20 142,02t $28.7¢ 7.2 $2,48¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafuether options granted was $13.54 and $13.1dW®012 and 2011, respectively. No other
options were granted in 2010. The intrinsic valfietber options exercised during 2012, 2011 and20@4s $0.3 million, $1.6 million and
$15.5 million, respectively.

From time to time, the Company has isstnedesunit awards including restricted stock unitd,@eginning in 2012, performance stock
units. All nonvested performance stock unit andrieied stock unit awards granted in the periogsented had a purchase price of zero. The
nonvested performance share unit and restricted stoit awards granted under the plan generally nagably over a three-year period, and,
with limited exceptions, are automatically convdrieto shares of common stock on the vesting date.

The number of performance stock unit awéssiged is based upon the Company's annual firlgreitormance as specified in the award
agreement. A summary of performance stock unit dwaativity during the year ended February 1, 2@&1&si follows:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, February 3, 20: —
Grantec 171,49
Converted to common stor —
Cancelec (8,809
Balance, February 1, 20: 162,68{ $ 7,52¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafyserformance stock units granted was $45.25 du2i2. No performance stock units were
granted during 2011 or 2010.
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A summary of restricted stock unit awartvétty during the year ended February 1, 2013 iotlews:

Units Intrinsic
(Intrinsic value amounts reflected in thousands Issued Value
Balance, February 3, 20: 13,02
Grantec 305,61
Converted to common stor (4,877%)
Cancelec (24,84)
Balance, February 1, 20: 288,92 $ 13,37:

The weighted average grant date fair vafuestricted stock units granted was $45.33 argi1¥3during 2012 and 2011, respectively.
restricted stock units were granted in 2010.

In March 2012, the Company issued a perforeebased award of 326,037 shares of restricted stwitk Chairman and Chief Executi
Officer. This restricted stock award had a faineabn the grant date of $45.25 per share and &gseqrice of zero, and may vest in the
future if certain specified earnings per sharededor fiscal years 2014 and 2015 are achieved.Gampany will not begin recognizing
compensation cost for these awards until the fypereods that the awards relate to, and then drtheiCompany believes that the
performance targets related to the unvested resdrstock will be achieved. As a result, this awiandot included in the unrecognized
compensation cost award disclosure which follows.

At February 1, 2013, the total unrecognizethpensation cost related to nonvested stock-bmsadis was $27.7 million with an
expected weighted average expense recognitioncpefit.7 years.

In October 2007, the Company's Board o&Etiors adopted an Equity Appreciation Rights Phawrich plan was later amended and
restated (as amended and restated, the "Right¥) Pldre Rights Plan provides for the granting ofiégappreciation rights to nonexecutive
managerial employees. During 2011, 818,847 equipyeciation rights were granted, 768,561 of sughts vested, primarily in conjunction
with the Company's December 2011 stock offering23@86 of such rights were cancelled. No suchtsighe outstanding as of February 1,
2013.
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The fair value method of accounting forrehlbbased awards resulted in share-based compensapense (a component of SG&A
expenses) and a corresponding reduction in netriedzefore income taxes as follows:

Equi
Stock Performance Restricted Apprgcigltion

(In thousands) Options Stock Units Stock Units Rights Total
Year ended February 1, 20

Pre-tax $ 14,07t $ 4,08: $ 3,50¢ $ — $ 21,66

Net of tax $ 857¢ $ 2,481 $ 2,13t $ — $ 13,20(
Year ended February 3, 20

Pre-tax $ 15,12 $ — $ 12¢ ¢ 8,731 $ 23,98:

Net of tax $ 920¢ $ — % 79 % 5317 $ 14,60¢

Year ended January 28, 2C
Pre-tax $ 12,72: $ —
Net of tax $ 7,758 $ —

83 $ 17,36¢ $ 30,17:
51 $ 10,587 $ 18,39:

8 &BH

12. Related party transactions

From time to time the Company may conduifiess with related parties including KKR and @Guodah, Sachs and Co., and references
herein to these entities include their affiliaté&KR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. indirectly own a diigaint portion of the Company's common
stock. Two of KKR's members and a managing direat@oldman, Sachs & Co. serve on the Company'sdBafDirectors.

KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. (among otmities) are or may be lenders, agents or arrangatsr the Company's Term Loan
Facility and ABL Facility discussed in further di¢ia Note 6. The Company made interest paymenggpgioximately $62.0 million,
$66.4 million and $53.4 million on the Term LoarcHigy, and $6.0 million, $2.8 million and zero dme ABL Facility, during 2012, 2011 a
2010, respectively. In connection with the Marci2@mendment to the Term Loan Facility, KKR recdi$@.4 million. In connection with
the March 2012 ABL Facility and Term Loan Faciléggnendments, Goldman, Sachs & Co. received $0.iom#ind $0.4 million,
respectively.

On October 9, 2012, the Term Loan and ABLilties were further amended to add additionglcity for the Company to repurchase,
redeem or otherwise acquire shares of its cagitaksnot to exceed $250.0 million. The Companyimed a fee of $1.7 million associated
with these amendments, which was reimbursed t€trepany by Buck Holdings, L.P. (which is controllegd KKR and Goldman
Sachs & Co.) and such reimbursement was recordacdagital contribution during 2012.

As joint book-running managers in connattiath the issuance of the Senior Notes, KKR anttidan Sachs & Co. received an
equivalent share of approximately $2.3 million dgr2012.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. was a counterpargntamortizing interest rate swap which matureduby 31, 2012. The swap was entered
in connection with the Term Loan Facility. The Canp paid Goldman, Sachs & Co. approximately $26anj $13.9 million and
$12.9 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivplyrsuant to this interest rate swap.
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The Company repurchased common stock heBluick Holdings, L.P during 2012 as further disagsi Note 2.
13. Segment reporting

The Company manages its business on the diasne reportable segment. See Note 1 for 4 theigcription of the Company's business.
As of February 1, 2013, all of the Company's openatwere located within the United States withakeeption of a Hong Kong subsidiary,
and a liaison office in India, the collective assatd revenues of which are not material. TheWolig net sales data is presented in
accordance with accounting standards related tbodisres about segments of an enterprise.

(In thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Classes of similar product
Consumable $ 11,844,84 $ 10,833,73 $ 9,332,111
Seasona 2,172,39! 2,051,09 1,887,91
Home product: 1,061,57. 1,005,21 917,63t
Apparel 943,31( 917,13t 897,32¢
Net sales $ 16,022,120 $ 14,807,18 $ 13,035,00

14. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

The following is selected unaudited qudyténancial data for the fiscal years ended Febrda 2013 and February 3, 2012. Each
quarterly period listed below was a 13-week acdogrnperiod, with the exception of the fourth quai&2011, which was a 14-week
accounting period. The sum of the four quartersafor given year may not equal annual totals dueuading.

First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2012:
Net sales $ 3,901,200 $ 3,948,65' $ 3,964,64 $ 4,207,62.
Gross profit 1,228,25! 1,263,22. 1,226,12. 1,367,79
Operating profit 384,32: 387,21« 361,38¢ 522,34¢
Net income 213,41! 214,14 207,68! 317,42.
Basic earnings per

share 0.6 0.6 0.62 0.97
Diluted earnings per

share 0.65 0.64 0.62 0.97

First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2011:
Net sales $ 3,451,69 $ 3,575,19- $ 3,595,22. $ 4,185,07.
Gross profit 1,087,39 1,148,34; 1,115,80; 1,346,36!
Operating profit 321,61 350,02¢ 310,91 508,24(
Net income 156,96 146,04 171,16 292,51(
Basic earnings per

share 0.4¢ 0.4z 0.5C 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per

share 0.4t 0.4z 0.5C 0.8t
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As discussed in Note 6, in the second gquaft2012, the Company repurchased $450.7 mipiamcipal amount of its outstanding sen
subordinated notes due 2017, resulting in a pressof $29.0 million ($17.7 million net of tax, $0.05 per diluted share) which was
recognized as Other (income) expense.

As discussed in Note 6, in the first quaofe2011, the Company repurchased $25.0 milliangiwal amount of its outstanding senior
notes due 2015, resulting in a pretax loss of §ilon ($1.3 million net of tax, or less than $@.per diluted share) which was recognized as
Other (income) expense.

As discussed in Note 6, in the second guaft2011, the Company repurchased $839.3 mipiamcipal amount of its outstanding ser
notes due 2015, resulting in a pretax loss of $68lllon ($35.4 million net of tax, or $0.10 perduted share) which was recognized as Other
(income) expense.

As discussed in Note 11, in the fourth ¢eranf 2011 the Company incurred share-based cosagpien expenses included in SG&A of
$8.6 million ($5.3 million net of tax, or $0.02 pdituted share) for the accelerated vesting ofadershare-based awards in conjunction with a
secondary offering of the Company's common stock.

15. Subsequent event

On March 19, 2013, the Company's Boardioédors authorized a $500 million increase incbenmon stock repurchase program
discussed in Note 2. The repurchase authorizagsmb expiration date and allows repurchases fimm to time in the open market or in
privately negotiated transactions, which could e repurchases from Buck Holdings, L.P. or otbkated parties if appropriate. The timing
and number of shares purchased depends on a vafitytors, such as price, market conditions aheérdfactors. Repurchases under the
program may be funded from available cash or barmgsvunder the ABL Facility discussed in Note 6.
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Certain of the Company's subsidiaries (€hearantors") have fully and unconditionally guassd on a joint and several basis the
Company's obligations under certain outstanding dbligations. Each of the Guarantors is a dire¢hdirect wholly-owned subsidiary of tt
Company. The following consolidating schedules @négondensed financial information on a combinasid) in thousands.

February 1, 2013

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET:
ASSETS
Current asset
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 1,75¢ $ 117,18t $ 21,86 $ —  $ 140,804
Merchandise
inventories — 2,397,17 — — 2,397,17!
Income taxes
receivable — — — — —
Deferred income
taxes 4,61¢€ — 24,01¢ (28,637 —
Prepaid expenses
and other currer
asset: 654,78 5,773,98 5,711 (6,295,35) 139,12¢
Total current asse 661,16: 8,288,35! 51,59: (6,323,99) 2,677,11.
Net property ant
equipment 126,19: 1,962,37! 9¢ — 2,088,66!
Goodwill 4,338,58! — — — 4,338,58!
Other intangible
assets, ne 1,199,701 19,84: — — 1,219,54.
Deferred income
taxes — — 49,097 (49,09 —
Other assets, n 8,075,561 15,10¢ 361,99¢ (8,408,89i) 43,77:
Total asset $ 14,401,20 $ 10,285,67 $ 462,78t $ (14,781,97) $ 10,367,68
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of
long-term
obligations $ 60C $ 29z % — 3 — $ 892
Accounts payabl 5,780,92 1,716,37 51,14¢ (6,286,83) 1,261,60
Accrued expenses
and othel 44,62: 252,31( 69,03( (8,527 357,43t
Income taxes
payable 51,697 5,411 38,27¢ — 95,387
Deferred income
taxes — 51,85¢ — (28,637 23,22%
Total current
liabilities 5,877,84: 2,026,23 158,45 (6,323,990 1,738,54
Long-term obligation 3,066,21. 3,687,96' — (3,982,84) 2,771,331
Deferred income
taxes 429,25 266,91 — (49,09 647,07(
Other liabilities 42 56¢ 42,34¢ 140,48! — 225,39¢
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stoc — — — — —
Common stocl 286,18! 23,85t 10C (23,95%) 286,18!
Additional paid-in
capital 2,991,35 560,77¢ 19,90( (580,679 2,991,35
Retained earninc 1,710,73 3,677,56 143,84« (3,821,41) 1,710,73.
Accumulated othe
comprehensive
loss (2,93¢) — — — (2,939
Total shareholders
equity 4,985,33I 4,262,20 163,84« (4,426,04) 4,985,33I
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equi  $ 14,401,20 $ 10,285,67 $ 462,78t $ (14,781,97) $ 10,367,68
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February 3, 2012

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET:
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash
equivalents $ 1,842 $ 102,62° $ 21,65¢ $ — 3 126,12¢
Merchandise
inventories — 2,009,20 — — 2,009,201
Deferred income
taxes 10,07¢ — 21,72¢ (31,809 —
Prepaid expenses
and other currer
asset: 551,45 4,685,26: 5,76¢ (5,102,741 139,74.
Total current asse 563,37¢ 6,797,09 49,15: (5,134,55) 2,275,07:
Net property ant
equipment 113,66: 1,681,07. 227 — 1,794,961
Goodwill 4,338,58! — — — 4,338,58!
Other intangible
assets, ne 1,199,201 36,75¢ — — 1,235,95
Deferred income
taxes — — 49,53: (49,53) —
Other assets, n 6,575,57. 13,26( 323,73t (6,868,62) 43,94
Total asset $ 12,790,40 $ 8,528,18 $ 422,64t % (12,052,71) $ 9,688,52!
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of
long-term
obligations $ — $ 59C $ — $ — $ 59C
Accounts payabl 4,654,23 1,451,27 52,36: (5,093,78) 1,064,08
Accrued expenses
and othel 79,01( 264,57! 62,44; (8,957 397,07!
Income taxes
payable 12,97 5,01 26,44 — 44,42¢
Deferred income
taxes — 35,52¢ — (31,807 3,722
Total current
liabilities 4,746,21! 1,756,98 141,25. (5,134,55) 1,509,90:
Long-term obligation 2,879,47! 3,340,07: — (3,601,65) 2,617,89:
Deferred income
taxes 435,79: 270,73t — (49,53) 656,99¢
Other liabilities 54,33¢ 33,15¢ 141,65 — 229,14¢
Shareholders' equit
Preferred stoc — — — — —
Common stocl 295,82¢ 23,85t 10C (23,95%) 295,82¢
Additional paid-in
capital 2,967,02' 431,25: 19,90( (451,15) 2,967,02
Retained earninc 1,416,91 2,672,12: 119,73 (2,791,86i) 1,416,91:
Accumulated othe
comprehensive
loss (5,19)) — — — (5,19))
Total shareholders
equity 4,674,58: 3,127,23 139,73 (3,266,96) 4,674,58.
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equi  $ 12,790,40 $ 8,528,18 $ 422,64t % (212,052,71) $ 9,688,52(
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended February 1, 201

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
CORPORATION ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS
OF
INCOME:
Net sales $ 347,08¢ $ 16,022,12 $ 98,90( $ (445,989 $ 16,022,12
Cost of goods
sold — 10,936,72 — — 10,936,72
Gross profit 347,08¢ 5,085,40: 98,90( (445,989 5,085,40.
Selling, general
and
administrative
expense: 315,53t 3,478,45! 82,12( (445,989 3,430,12!
Operating profit 31,55 1,606,94. 16,78( — 1,655,271
Interest incom (41,379 (42,66%) (18,707 102,75( —
Interest expens 190,17: 40,46¢ 36 (102,75() 127,92t
Other (income)
expense 29,95¢ — — — 29,95¢
Income (loss)
before income
taxes (147,199 1,609,14 35,441 — 1,497,39.
Income tax
expense
(benefit) (70,30¢) 603,69¢ 11,34( — 544,73.
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, net
of taxes 1,029,55. — — (1,029,55) —
Net income $ 952,66. $ 1,005,444 $ 24,107 $ (1,029,55) $ 952,66
Comprehensive
income $ 954,91' $ 1,005,44. $ 24,107 $ (1,029,55) $ 954,91!
For the year ended February 3, 201
DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
CORPORATION ~ SUBSIDIARIES ~ SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS
OF
INCOME:
Net sales $ 338,90 $ 14,807,18 $ 84,94( $ (423,84) $ 14,807,18
Cost of goods
sold — 10,109,27. — — 10,109,27
Gross profit 338,90: 4,697,911 84,94( (423,84) 4,697,911
Selling, general
and
administrative
expense: 308,09: 3,242,271 80,57¢ (423,84)) 3,207,101
Operating profit 30,80¢ 1,455,63. 4,361 — 1,490,80.
Interest incom (39,526) (21,959 (20,929 82,40 —
Interest expens 246,90! 40,36: 37 (82,409 204,90(
Other (income)
expense 60,61¢ — — — 60,61°¢

Income (loss)
before income



taxes

Income tax
expense
(benefit)

Equity in
subsidiaries’
earnings, net
of taxes

Net income

Comprehensive
income

(237,18)  1,437,22 25,24¢ — 1,225,28
(84,819 536,19 7,22¢ = 458,60
919,05 — — (919,05 —
$ 76668 $  901,03; $ 18,01¢ $§  (919,05) $ 766,68
$ 781,79 $ 901,03 $ 18,01¢ $  (919,05) $ 781,79(
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STATEMENTS
OF
INCOME:

Net sales

Cost of goods
sold

Gross profit
Selling, general
and
administrative
expense:
Operating profit
Interest incom:
Interest expens
Other (income)
expense

Income (loss)
before income
taxes

Income tax
expense
(benefit)

Equity in
subsidiaries’
earnings, net
of taxes

Net income

Comprehensive
income

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended January 28, 201

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED

CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
$ 311,28 $ 13,03500 $ 84,87¢ $ (396,159 $ 13,035,00
— 8,858,44. — | 8,858,44.
311,28 4,176,55 84,87¢ (396,15¢) 4,176,55
283,06 2,948,341 67,23¢ (396,15¢) 2,902,49
28,21 1,228,211 17,64: — 1,274,06.
(44,67 (7,025) (19,986 71,68¢ —
300,93 44,72: 23 (71,68%) 273,99
15,10: — — — 15,10:
(243,14)  1,190,51; 37,60 — 984,97.
(102,449 447 ,88: 11,68: — 357,11
768,55t — — (768,55() —
$ 627,85 $ 74263 $ 2592 § (768,550 $ 627,85
$ 641,72 $ 742,63 $ 25,92¢ $ (768,55 $ 641,72
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended February 1, 201

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating activities
Net income $ 952,66: $ 1,005,44. $ 24,107 $ (1,029,55) $ 952,66:
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cast
from operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization 31,38 271,36 15¢ — 302,91:
Deferred income
taxes (13,256 12,50 (1,859 — (2,60%)
Tax benefit of stoc
options (87,757) — — — (87,757)
Loss on debt
retirement, ne 30,62( — — — 30,62(
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol 21,66 — — — 21,66+
Other noncash
gains and losse (2,359 9,12¢ — — 6,77¢
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne (1,029,55) — — 1,029,55! —
Change in
operating assets
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories — (391,409 — — (391,409
Prepaid expens
and other
current assel 22,81« (18,110 84¢ — 5,557
Accounts
payable 46,38¢ 148,87: (1,229 — 194,03!
Accrued
expenses anc
other liabilities (39,729 (2,429 5,411 — (36,74)
Income taxe: 126,47 39¢ 11,83¢ — 138,71:
Other (502) (2,460 (110) — (3,07)

Net cash provided b

(used in) operating

activities 58,86¢ 1,033,30! 39,17¢ — 1,131,35:
Cash flows from

investing activities
Purchases of proper

and equipmer (29,099 (542,47)) (31) — (571,599
Proceeds from sales

of property and

equipment 167 1,59 — — 1,76(

Net cash provided b

(used in) investing

activities (28,927 (540,879 (31) — (569,83f)
Cash flows from

financing activities
Issuance of long-tert

obligations 500,00( — — — 500,00(
Repayments of long:
term obligation: (477,66) (590 — — (478,25

Borrowings under

revolving credit

facility 2,286,701 — — — 2,286,701
Repayments of

borrowings under

revolving credit

facility (2,184,90i) — — — (2,184,901
Debt issuance cos (15,279 — — — (15,279
Repurchase of

common stocl (671,459 — — — (671,459

Other equity
transactions, net o
employee taxes
paid (71,399 — — — (71,399



Tax benefit of stock
options

Changes in
intercompany note
balances, ne

Net cash provided kb
(used in) financing
activities

Net increast
(decrease) in cast
and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents, end o
year

87,75: — — 87,75:
516,21 (477,28) (38,93 =
(30,026 (477.87) (38,93 (546,83)
(85 14,55¢ 20¢ 14,68:
1,842 102,62 21,65 126,12
1,75¢ $ 117,18 21,86¢ $ 140,80
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended February 3, 201.

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating activities
Net income $ 766,68: $ 901,03 $ 18,01¢ $ (919,05) $ 766,68!
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cast
from operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization 31,79: 243,48! 13C — 275,40¢
Deferred income
taxes 1,64¢ 25,32¢ (16,74%) — 10,23:
Tax benefit of stoc
options (33,109 — — — (33,109
Loss on debt
retirement, ne 60,30: — — — 60,30
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol 15,25( — — — 15,25(
Other noncash
gains and losse 653 53,537 — — 54,19(
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne (919,05) — — 919,05: —
Change in
operating assets
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories — (291,49) — — (291,49)
Prepaid expens
and other
current assel (19,367 (12,677) (2,5272) — (34,559
Accounts
payable (17,679 120,60 1,51 — 104,44.
Accrued
expenses anc
other liabilities 20,79¢ 45,01 5,94¢ — 71,76%
Income taxe: 47,68 (8,239 12,10: — 51,55(
Other 3 (121) (71) — (195)
Net cash provided b
(used in) operating
activities (44,387 1,076,48 18,37¢ — 1,050,48!
Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of proper

and equipmer (30,409 (484,38Y) (7€) — (514,86)
Proceeds from sales

of property and

equipment 33 99:¢ — — 1,02¢

Net cash provided b

(used in) investing

activities (80,370() (483,39) (70) — (513,83)
Cash flows from

financing activities
Repayments of long:

term obligation: (910,67) (1,279 — — (911,95)
Borrowings under

revolving credit

facility 1,157,801 — — — 1,157,801
Repayments of

borrowings under

revolving credit

facility (973,100 — — — (973,100
Repurchase of

common stocl (186,59 — — — (186,59)
Other equity

transactions, net o
employee taxes
paid (27,219 — — — (27,219



Tax benefit of stock
options

Changes in
intercompany note
balances, ne

Net cash provided kb
(used in) financing
activities

Net increast
(decrease) in cast
and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents,
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents, end o
year

33,10: — — 33,10:
871,74 (853,59) (18,147 =
(34,949 (854,869 (18,147 (907,96
(109,70) (261,77) 15¢ (371,329
111,54t 364,40 21,49’ 497 44¢
1,84 $ 102,627 $ 21,65 $ 126,12(
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

16. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended January 28, 201

DOLLAR CONSOLIDATED
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIES  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS:
Cash flows from
operating activities
Net income $ 627,85 $ 742,63 $ 25,92F $ (768,55 $ 627,85
Adjustments to
reconcile net
income to net cast
from operating
activities:
Depreciation and
amortization 33,01¢ 221,85: 61 — 254,92
Deferred income
taxes 17,810 47,71¢ (14,55)) — 50,98t
Tax benefit of stoc
options (13,90%) — — — (23,90%)
Loss on debt
retirement, ne 14,57¢ — — — 14,57¢
Noncash share-
based
compensatiol 15,95¢ — — — 15,95¢
Other noncash
gains and losse 1,39t 12,15¢ — — 13,54¢
Equity in
subsidiaries'
earnings, ne (768,55¢) — — 768,55¢ —
Change in
operating assets
and liabilities:
Merchandise
inventories — (251,809 — — (251,809
Prepaid expens
and other
current assel (1,64¢€) (3,649 (4,869 — (10,157
Accounts
payable (5,44¢) 124,12( 4,75( — 123,42-
Accrued
expenses anc
other liabilities (28,447 (12,410 (1,576 — (42,429
Income taxe: 18,13¢ 14,89: 9,87¢ — 42,90:
Other 81€ (2,009) 2 — (1,199
Net cash provided b
(used in) operating
activities (88,427 893,49 19,61« — 824,68:
Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of proper

and equipmer (22,83() (397,32) (243) — (420,39))
Proceeds from sales

of property and

equipment — 1,44¢ — — 1,44¢

Net cash provided b

(used in) investing

activities (22,830) (395,879 (243) — (418,94)
Cash flows from

financing activities
Repayments of long:

term obligation: (129,21)) (1,969 — — (131,18()
Other equity

transactions, net o

employee taxes

paid (13,097 — — — (13,097
Tax benefit of stock

options 13,90¢ — — — 13,90¢
Changes in

intercompany note

balances, ne 253,58¢ (234,25) (19,329 — —

Net cash provided b
(used in) financing
activities 125,18: (236,22() (19,329 — (130,36)

Net increast




(decrease) in cash a

cash equivalent 13,92¢ 261,40: 42 — 275,37(
Cash and cash

equivalents,

beginning of yea 97,62( 103,00: 21,45 — 222,07t

Cash and cash
equivalents, end o
year $ 111,54 $ 364,40 $ 21,49° $ — % 497,44¢

97




ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(@) Disclosure Controls and Procedures.Under the supervision and with the participatidd our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, we conducted an evaluation of our disgtescontrols and procedures, as such te
defined under Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promelainder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, anded (the "Exchange Act"). Based
on this evaluation, our principal executive offiegrd our principal financial officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures \
effective as of the end of the period covered ligy iibport.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Colnver Financial Reporting. Our management prepared and is responsibtbd
consolidated financial statements and all relaiteahtial information contained in this report. Thesponsibility includes establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15dfLEader the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed tovpde reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilifinancial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes ooatance with United States generally accepteduatow principles.

To comply with the requirements of Sect@d of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, managemesigded and implemented a structured
and comprehensive assessment process to evalaafdbtiveness of its internal control over finahceporting. Such assessment was based
on criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway
Commission. Because of its inherent limitationsystem of internal control over financial reportican provide only reasonable assurance
and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Manageregularly monitors our internal control ovieiahcial reporting, and actions are
taken to correct any deficiencies as they are ifiedit Based on its assessment, management hakidedahat our internal control over
financial reporting is effective as of Februan2013.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registipublic accounting firm that audited our consatiédi financial statements, has issued an
attestation report on management's assessment oftetnal control over financial reporting. Sudteatation report is contained below.
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(c) Attestation Report of Independent Regist&uwellic Accounting Firm.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited Dollar General Corporatind subsidiaries' internal control over financegarting as of February 1, 2013, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirga@izations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Dollar General @oation and subsidiaries' management is responfgiblaaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assesnt of the effectiveness of internal control direncial reporting included in the
accompanying Management's Annual Report on Int&Zoatrol Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipils to express an opinion on the
company's internal control over financial reportbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegtéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioa reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshef assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeipnrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (Bjige reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company&etsthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the poligeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Dollar General Corporat@amd subsidiaries maintained, in all material respexffective internal control over financial
reporting as of February 1, 2013, based on the C&r@ia.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Dollar General Gatjpm and subsidiaries as of February 1, 2013Faituary 3, 2012, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehenso@ir, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for eétie three years in the period ended
February 1, 2013 of Dollar General Corporation ansidiaries and our report dated March 25, 20p8smsed an unqualified opinion
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse
March 25, 2013
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(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financiaporting. There have been no changes during the quantiedeFebruary 1, 2013
our internal control over financial reporting (asfided in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that haveemally affected, or are reasonably likely
to materially affect, our internal control overdincial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

(@) Information Regarding Directors and Execat®fficers. The information required by this Item 10 regagdour directors and
director nominees is contained under the capti¥visd'are the nominees this year," "What are the ¢paeids of this year's nominees," "Are
there any familial relationships between any ofibeninees," "How are directors identified and noawénl,” and "What particular experience,
qualifications, attributes or skills led the BoaftDirectors to conclude that each nominee shoaitdesas a director of Dollar General," all
under the heading "Proposal 1: Election of Dirextam our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed &ur Annual Meeting of Shareholders to
be held on May 29, 2013 (the "2013 Proxy Statemewtiich information under such captions is incagted herein by reference.
Information required by this Item 10 regarding eMecutive officers is contained in Part | of thi@ 10-K under the caption "Executive
Officers of the Registrant," which information umdeich caption is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Excleaiset.  Information required by this Item 10 regagicompliance with Section 16
(a) of the Exchange Act is contained under theioapSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportingn@pliance” in the 2013 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captidanésrporated herein by reference.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and EthicdVe have adopted a Code of Business ConducEtncs that applies to all of our
employees, officers and Board members. This Cogested on our Internet website at www.dollargelnesen. If we choose to no longer p
such Code, we will provide a free copy to any pengpon written request to Dollar General Corporgticdo Investor Relations Department,
100 Mission Ridge, Goodlettsville, TN 37072. Wesimdl to provide any required disclosure of an amemdnio or waiver from the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to oncjpal executive officer, principal financial oféic, principal accounting officer or
controller, or persons performing similar functipoa our Internet website located at www.dollargaheom promptly following the
amendment or waiver. We may elect to disclose anlf amendment or waiver in a report on Fork Bled with the SEC either in addition
or in lieu of the website disclosure. The inforroatcontained on or connected to our Internet welisinot incorporated by reference into this
Form 10-K and should not be considered part ofdhigny other report that we file with or furnighthe SEC.

(d) Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate &lves. There have been no material changes to thegues by which security
holders may recommend nominees to the registi@otisd of Directors.

(e) Audit Committee Information. Information required by this Item 10 regardmg audit committee and our audit committee
financial experts is contained under the capti@srporate GovernanceBees the Board have standing Audit, Compensatidni\aminating
Committees" and "—Does Dollar General have an aaditmittee financial expert serving on its Auditr@uittee” in the 2013 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captionisderporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 1gaeding director and executive officer compensatiba Compensation Committee Report,
risks arising from our compensation policies anacpces for employees, and compensation committeeldcks and insider participation is
contained under the captions "Director Compensatond "Executive Compensation” in the 2013 Proxat&3hent, which information under
such captions is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Equity Compensation Plan Information.The following table sets forth information albsecurities authorized for issuance under
our compensation plans (including individual congagion arrangements) as of February 1, 2013:

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

Number of securities issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan category () (b) ()]
Equity compensation plans appro»
by security holders(1 4,278,85 $ 22.9¢ 20,140,24
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde — — —
Total(1) 4,278,85 $ 22.9¢ 20,140,24

(1) Column (a) consists of shares of common stock dsugpon exercise of outstanding options and ugstivg and
payment of share units under the Amended and Rels207 Stock Incentive Plan. Share units areeskfitir shares of
common stock on a one-for-one basis and have noisgerice. Accordingly, those units have beerused for
purposes of computing the weighted-average exeptise in column (b). Column (c) consists of shaeserved for
issuance pursuant to the Amended and Restated¥00K Incentive Plan, whether in the form of staelstricted stock,
share units, or other sh-based awards or upon the exercise of an optioiglat.

(b) Other Information. The information required by this Item 12 regagdsecurity ownership of certain beneficial ownansl our

management is contained under the caption "SedDxitgership” in the 2013 Proxy Statement, which rimfation under such caption is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 18aeding certain relationships and related transastis contained under the caption

"Transactions with Management and Others" in thE3ZRroxy Statement, which information under sugdtioa is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required by this Item 18aeding director independence is contained undec#éption "Director Independence” in the
2013 Proxy Statement, which information under stagbtion is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 1gaeding fees we paid to our principal accountautthie pre-approval policies and procedures
established by the Audit Committee of our Boardokctors is contained under the caption "Fees Rafliditors" in the 2013 Proxy
Statement, which information under such captiandsrporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(a) Report of Independent Registered Public Accourtfimgm
Consolidated Balance She:
Consolidated Statements of Inco
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Et
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flt
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

(b) All schedules for which provision is made in thekgable accounting regulations of the SEC are
required under the related instructions, are inagple or the information is included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and, therefaes bheen omittec

(c) Exhibits: See Exhibit Index immediately followiniget sighature pages hereto, which Exhibit Ind¢
incorporated by reference as if fully set forthdier

103




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report t
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

Date: March 25, 2013 By: /s/ RICHARD W. DREILING

Richard W. Dreiling,
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

We, the undersigned directors and officdithe registrant, hereby severally constitute RidhW. Dreiling and David M. Tehle, and e
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys witili power to them and each of them to sign forarg] in our names in the capacities
indicated below, any and all amendments to thisushReport on Form 10-K filed with the Securitiegld&Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidgrelow by the following persons on bel
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ RICHARD W. DREILING Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer) March 25, 2013

RICHARD W. DREILING

/s/ DAVID M. TEHLE Executive Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial ~ March 25, 2013
DAVID M. TEHLE and Accounting Officer
/sl RAJ AGRAWAL
Director March 25, 2013
RAJ AGRAWAL
/sl WARREN F. BRYANT
Director March 25, 2013
WARREN F. BRYANT
/sl MICHAEL M. CALBERT
Director March 25, 2013
MICHAEL M. CALBERT
/sl SANDRA B. COCHRAN
Director March 25, 2013
SANDRA B. COCHRAN
104
Name Title Date
/s/ PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL
Director March 25, 2013
PATRICIA FILI-KRUSHEL
/s/ ADRIAN JONES
Director March 25, 2013

ADRIAN JONES

/s/ WILLIAM C. RHODES, llI Director March 25, 2013




WILLIAM C. RHODES, Il

I/s/ DAVID B. RICKARD

Director March 25, 2013
DAVID B. RICKARD
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3.1

4.1

4.€

4.€

EXHIBIT INDEX

Amended and Restated Charter of Dollar Genergb@ation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to Dollar General Corporation's GuntrReport on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Noveml#&r2D09 (file no. 00-11421))

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Dollar General Quaitan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Guntr Report on Form 8-K dated
November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on Noveml&r2D09 (file no. 00-11421))

Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock (incaiqted by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm ‘-1 (file no. 33:-161464))

Shareholders' Agreement of Dollar General Corponatilated as of November 9, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Doleneral Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 18, 2009, filed with 8&C on November 18, 2009 (file
no. 00-11421))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2@@Tong Buck Holdings, L.P., Buck
Holdings, LLC, Dollar General Corporation and Sterders named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Form of 4.125% Senior Notes due 2017 (includedxhiliit 4.5)

Indenture, dated as of July 12, 2012, between D@&neral Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee (incorporatedefgrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Dolli
General Corporation's Formi8dated July 12, 2012, filed with the SEC on July 2012
(file no. 00:-11421))

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July2022, among Dollar General
Corporation, the subsidiary guarantors named theagid U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by refereéadexhibit 4.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Form 8-K dated July 12, 2012, filathwhe SEC on July 17, 2012 (file
no. 00-11421)

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, amoollaDGeneral Corporation, as
Borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as Admimitive Agent, and the other lending
institutions from time to time party thereto (inporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated Blsuath 30, 2012, among Dollar
General Corporation, as Borrower, CitiCorp North &inan, N.A. as Administrative
Agent, and the other financial institutions frommé to time party thereto (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Cagtion's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated March 27, 2012 and filed with the SEC on IAyrR012 (file no. 00-11421))

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as ofdd&0, 2012, among Dollar
General Corporation, as Borrower, CitiCorp North &ina, Inc., as Administrative
Agent and Collateral Agent, Citigroup Global Markétc., as Joint Lead Arranger and
Bookrunner, Goldman Sachs Lending Partner LLC aK& KCapital Markets LLC, each
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Bookrunners for theSaetions, and the other credit pai
and lenders party thereto (incorporated by refereaExhibit 4.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended November 2,
2012, filed with the SEC on December 11, 2012 ¢iite 00:-11421))
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Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated &ctidber 9, 2012, among Dollar
General Corporation, as Borrower, CitiCorp North &ina, Inc., as Administrative
Agent, and the other financial institutions fromméi to time party thereto (incorporat
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4.1%

4.1%

4.1¢

4.1F

4.1¢

4.17

4.1¢

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Cagtion's Form 8-K dated October 9,
2012, filed with the SEC on October 12, 2012 (fite 00-11421))

Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, dated as of@]lp07, among certain domestic
subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation, as @ntors and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.3 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Fori @ated July 6, 2007, filed with the S
on July 12, 2007 (file no. 0-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20Q@FetGuarantee to the Credit
Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as New Guaraand Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.23 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20QAetGuarantee to the Credit
Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, asvNGuarantor, and Citicorp North
America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporatedréference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,ddxharantee to the Credit Agreem
between the New Guarantors referenced therein &mbi® North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bit4.30 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,édxharantee to the Credit Agreem
between the New Guarantors referenced therein &mbi® North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bit4.33 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Guarantee to the Crediedment, dated as of August 30, 2(
by and between Retail Property Investments, LLC @itidorp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bit4.57 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, anwltar General Corporation and
certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar Generalpg@oation, as Grantors, and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorpedhby reference to Exhibit 4.4
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20Q@fietS8ecurity Agreement, between
DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor, and Citicorp tloAmerica, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33:--148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20GRetSecurity Agreement, between
Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New Grantor, andd®itp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.35 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))
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Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 200thédecurity Agreement, between the
New Grantors referenced therein and Citicorp Néutterica, Inc., as Collateral Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,acurity Agreement, between the
New Grantors referenced therein and Citicorp Nétterica, Inc., as Collateral Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Security Agreement, daseaf &ugust 30, 2010, between
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4.2¢
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Retail Property Investments, LLC and Citicorp No#timerica, Inc., as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.58 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, amatigDGeneral Corporation and
certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar GeneralpOoation, as Pledgors, and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorpedhby reference to Exhibit 4.5
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8ri dated July 6, 2007, filed with
the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. (-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 20@fetBledge Agreement, between
Financial, LLC, as Additional Pledgor, and Citicdprth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2’ Dtlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 200Aet®ledge Agreement, between
Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as Additional Pledgand Citicorp North America, Inc., as
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.36 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,&d”ledge Agreement, between the
Additional Pledgors referenced therein and Citiddgsth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33:--158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 25, 2010,&d”ledge Agreement, between the
Additional Pledgors referenced therein and Citiddgsth America, Inc., as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4®tlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-3 (file no. 33-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Pledge Agreement, dated Asgust 30, 2010, between Retail
Property Investments, LLC and Citicorp North Amaritnc., as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.59 to Dolkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

ABL Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, aghDollar General Corporation, as
Parent Borrower, certain domestic subsidiaries @fdd General Corporation, as
Subsidiary Borrowers, The CIT Group/Business Cridit, as ABL Administrative
Agent, and the other lending institutions from titndime party thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Dollar General Corpiangis Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 2207 (file no. 00-11421))
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Appointment of Successor Agent and AmendmentiNo.the ABL Credit Agreement
entered into as of July 31, 2009, by and amongQlfieGroup/Business Credit, Inc.,
Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, Dollar General @mation and the Subsidiary
Borrowers and the Lenders signatory thereto (inm@ted by reference to Exhibit 99 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on F8r dated July 31, 2009, filed with
the SEC on August 4, 2009 (file no. -11421))

Amended and Restated ABL Credit Agreement, dateaf March 15, 2012, among
Dollar General Corporation, as Parent Borrowernaterdomestic subsidiaries of Dollar
General Corporation, as Subsidiary Borrowers, Wedlggo Bank, N.A. as ABL
Administrative Agent, and the other lending indtdns from time to time party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Doleneral Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated March 15, 2012, filed with theCS&n March 19, 2012 (file no. 001-
11421))

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Creditéxgent, dated as of October 9,
2012, among Dollar General Corporation and cedalysidiaries, as Borrowers, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrathgent, and the other financial

institutions from time to time party thereto (inporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
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Dollar General Corporation's Form 8-K dated Sepem®s, 2012, filed with the SEC on
September 27, 2012 (file no. (-11421))

Guarantee, dated as of September 11, 2007, toBheCkedit Agreement, between DC
Financial, LLC and The CIT Group/Business Credit s ABL Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.29 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 1, dated as of December 31, 20QRgetGuarantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, asvNsuarantor, and The CIT
Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agéntorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.37 to Dollar General Corporation's Regisbn Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 33-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of March 23, 2009,édxtarantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between the New Guarantors referenegdithand The CIT Group/Busin
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporateyl reference to Exhibit 4.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 30, 2010,¢dxharantee to the ABL Credit
Agreement, between the New Guarantors referenerdithand Wells Fargo Retail
Finance, LLC, as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporatedreference to Exhibit 4.49 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 4 to the Guarantee to the ABL Crdieement, dated as of August 30,
2010, between Retail Property Investments, LLC\Wmills Fargo Retail Finance, LLC,
as Collateral Agent (incorporated by referencexbilit 4.60 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

ABL Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 200@pag Dollar General Corporation,
as Parent Borrower, certain domestic subsidiafi€@otiar General Corporation, as
Subsidiary Borrowers, collectively the Grantorsi dtne CIT Group/Business

Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporatey reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Fori @ated July 6, 2007, filed with the S
on July 12, 2007 (file no. 0-11421))
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Supplement No. 1, dated as of September 11, 20Qfie ABL Security Agreement,
between DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor, and THE Group/Business Credit Inc.,
as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by referetm&xhibit 4.31 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 20QRet&BL Security Agreement,
between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New Grarndod The CIT Group/Business
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporateyl reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009,&0MBL Security Agreement, between
the New Grantors referenced therein and The ClTu@Rusiness Credit Inc., as ABL
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bitt4.46 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-1 (file no. 33:-158281))

Supplement No. 4, dated as of March 30, 2010,&0MBL Security Agreement, between
the New Grantors referenced therein and Wells FRefail Finance, LLC, as ABL
Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Bittd.54 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-3 (file no. 33:-165799))

Supplement No. 5 to the Security Agreement to tB& £redit Agreement, dated as of
August 30, 2010, between Retail Property Invests)dtC and Wells Fargo Retail
Finance, LLC, as Collateral Agent (incorporatedéfgrence to Exhibit 4.61 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omFs-3 (file no. 33:-165799))
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Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plakdg Employees of Dollar General
Corporation and its affiliates (effective June @12) (incorporated by reference to
Appendix A to Dollar General Corporation's DefinéiProxy Statement filed with the
SEC on April 5, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement between Dollar Geh€orporation and certain
officers of Dollar General Corporation grantingct@ptions pursuant to the 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-4 (file no. 33--148320))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement, adopted on May224,1, for Stock Option Grants to
Certain Newly Hired and Promoted Employees undeimended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees of Dollam@ral Corporation and its Affiliates
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Form T®for
the fiscal quarter ended April 29, 2011, filed wite SEC on June 1, 2011 (file no. 001-
11421)) *

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement in connectigth grants made to certain
employees of Dollar General Corporation pursuathé&Amended and Restated 2007
Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2012)djiporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form 8-K dated

March 20, 2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2(flle no. 00-11421))*

Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreemeninn@ction with grants made to
certain employees of Dollar General Corporatiorspant to the Amended and Restated
2007 Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2@ih2prporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form 8-K dated

March 20, 2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2(flle no. 00-11421))*
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Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement@mnection with grants made to
certain employees of Dollar General Corporatiorspant to the Amended and Restated
2007 Stock Incentive Plan (approved March 20, 2@Qih2prporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form 8-K dated

March 20, 2012, filed with the SEC on March 26, 2(flle no. 00-11421))*

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, dated March PQ22 between Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedidlarch 20, 2012, filed with the
SEC on March 26, 2012 (file no. (-11421))*

Waiver of Certain Limitations Pertaining to OptioReeviously Granted under the
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plagctdfé August 26, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endeg 30, 2010, filed with the SEC on
August 31, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Waiver of Transfer Restrictions dated FebruaryQi,2(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99 to Dollar General Corporation's Curr&aport on Form 8-K dated
February 1, 2013, filed with the SEC on Februar2@®L3 (file no. 00-11421))*

Form of Management Stockholder's Agreement amor@bD8eneral Corporation, Bui
Holdings, L.P. and certain officers of Dollar Geale€orporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corpiords Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemenngrbmllar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employeEBollar General Corporation
(July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfikeal quarter ended October 30,
2009, filed with the SEC on December 12, 2009 (iite 00:-11421))*
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Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreemmaoing Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employeEBollar General Corporation
(post-July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by rerfiee to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfieeal quarter ended October 30,
2009, filed with the SEC on December 12, 2009 (iite 00:-11421))*

Second Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agretaneffective June 3, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dotkeneral Corporation's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended!/A80, 2010, filed with the SEC on
June 8, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agresmhin connection with restricted
stock unit grants made to outside directors padviay 24, 2011 pursuant to the
Company's Amended and Restated 2007 Stock IncePtare(incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.15 to Dollar General Corporation'sgigération Statement on FormiSfile
no. 33:-161464))

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, aédpn May 24, 2011, for Grants
to Non-Employee Directors under the Amended andd®ess$ 2007 Stock Incentive Plan
for Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation @sdAffiliates (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corpiords Form 10Q for the fiscal quarte
ended April 29, 2011, filed with the SEC on Jun211 (file no. 00-11421))
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Form of Director Stock Option Agreement in corti@twith option grants made to
outside directors pursuant to the Company's AmeadeldRestated 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1®&udlar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33-161464))

Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as anttadd restated effective
December 31, 2007) (incorporated by reference tutix10.10 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Fo-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

First Amendment to the Dollar General CorporatidbRZSERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007) (incorporhtekference to Exhibit 10.11 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm -4 (file no. 33.-148320))*

Second Amendment to the Dollar General Corporalibi?/SERP Plan (as amended and
restated effective December 31, 2007), dated darwé 3, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar General Corpiords Quarterly Report on Form 1D-
for the quarter ended August 1, 2008, filed with 8EC on September 3, 2008 (file

no. 00-11421))*

Amended and Restated Dollar General Corporatioruahimcentive Plan (effective
June 1, 2012) (incorporated by reference to AppeBdb the Dollar General
Corporation's Definitive Proxy Statement filed witle SEC on April 5, 2012 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Dollar General Corporation 2012 Teamshare Bonugr@m for Named Executive
Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ Dollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quaeteded May 4, 2012, filed with the
SEC on June 4, 2011 (file no. (-11421))*

Summary of Dollar General Corporation Life Insurafrogram as Applicable to
Executive Officers (incorporated by reference tdiBit 10.19 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for trexéil year ended February 2, 2007,
filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007) (file no. -11421))*

Dollar General Corporation Domestic Relocation &ofor Officers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*
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Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation ¢ffed-ebruary 4, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to BolGeneral Corporation's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Fabyri3, 2012, filed with the SEC on
March 22, 2012 (file no. 0(-11421))

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effeéfri 23, 2010, by and betwe
Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreilingcérporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's CutrBeport on Form & dated April 23
2010, filed with the SEC on April 27, 2010 (file.@01-11421))*

Limited Waiver of Certain Tax and Tax Gross-Up Rgéffective January 1, 2013 by
Richard Dreiling*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of January 218, 28&tween Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 10.29 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement omF%-4 (file no. 33:-148320))*
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Stock Option Agreement dated April 23, 2010, hy hetween Dollar General
Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated bference to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedl@pril 23, 2010, filed with the
SEC on April 27, 2010 (file no. 0-11421))*

Restricted Stock Award Agreement, effective asamfuary 21, 2008, between Dollar
General Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.32 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration StatenoenEorm ‘-4 (file no. 33.-148320))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as obda21, 2008, among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and Ridhareiling (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Dollar General Cogtion's Registration Statement on
Form &4 (file no. 33:-148320))*

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2012, byldetween Dollar General
Corporation and David M. Tehle (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedl@pril 16, 2012, filed with the
SEC on April 19, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 20¥1ard between Dollar General
Corporation and Todd J. Vasos (incorporated byreafee to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 1f@Qhe fiscal quarter ended
October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Decembeé(,1 (file no. 00-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated December 19, 20G8;dmn Dollar General Corporati
and Todd Vasos (incorporated by reference to Exhii36 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for treeéil year ended January 29, 2010,
filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. +11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated Deceb® @008, among Dollar General
Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and Todd Vasosdrporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.37 to Dollar General Corporation's AnhRaport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 29, 2010, filed with the SE®™arch 24, 2009 (file no. 0(-11421))

*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2010ahyg between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.33 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kilfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 200&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.34 to Dollar



10.3i

10.3¢

General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of May 28, 209%rud between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.35 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kilfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 20§@nd between Dollar General
Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.36 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktlfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*
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10.3¢

10.4(

10.41

10.4:

10.4:

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.4¢

10.43

10.4¢

Subscription Agreement entered into as of Ma®h2®10, by and between Dollar
General Corporation and John Flanigan (incorporbyeckference to Exhibit 10.37 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on March Z9,22(file no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as ofigti2B3, 2008, by and between
Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P.dalohn Flanigan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, fil@h the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective March 24, 2010abyg between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.39 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kilfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 601-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2B9&nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.40 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktffie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 601-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of December 108,20y and between Dollar Gene
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.41 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktlfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of March 24, 20¢@nd between Dollar General
Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 10.42 to Dollar
General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-Kilfie fiscal year ended January 28,
2011, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file 001-11421))*

Subscription Agreement entered into as of DecerbBeR008 by and between Dollar
General Corporation and Robert Ravener (incorpdrayereference to Exhibit 10.43 to
Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on FAGK for the fiscal year ended
January 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on March ZP,22(file no. 00-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement entered intd Asigust 28, 2008 among Dollar
General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and RoBavener (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Dollar General Cogtimn's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2011, filéh the SEC on March 22, 2011 (file
no. 00:-11421))*

Employment Agreement, effective April 1, 2012, nddetween Dollar General
Corporation and Susan S. Lanigan (incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-tedl@pril 16, 2012, filed with the
SEC on April 19, 2012 (file no. 0-11421))*

Retirement Agreement, dated as of July 20, 201Bnuybetween Kathleen Guion and



Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 99 to Dollar General
Corporation's Form-K dated July 20, 2011 (file no. 0-11421))*

10.4¢ Employment Agreement effective March 19, 2012, bg between Dollar General
Corporation and Greg Sparks (incorporated by refexéo Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar Gene
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forfikeal quarter ended May 4, 2012,
filed with the SEC on June 4, 2012 (file no. -11421))*
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101.INS

101.SCt

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRI

101.DEF

Share Repurchase Agreement dated as of Decembet # by and among Buck
Holdings, L.P. and Dollar General Corporation (irpmrated by reference to Exhibit 1(
to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Reporfanm 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended October 28, 2011, filed with the SEC on Ddammb, 2011 (file no. 0(-11421))

Share Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Marci023, By and among Buck
Holdings L.P. and Dollar General Corporation (impmmated by reference to Exhibit 1.1
to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report omfr8-K dated March 25, 2012, filed
with the SEC on March 26, 2012 (file no. -11421))

Share Repurchase Agreement, dated as of Septemb2012, by and between Buck
Holdings L.P. and Dollar General Corporation (impmmated by reference to Exhibit 1.1
to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report omfr8-K dated September 25, 2012,
filed with the SEC on September 27, 2012 (file ®@1-11421))

Indemnification Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, aghBock Holdings, L.P., Dollar
General Corporation, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & CB..and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Bolteneral Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form-4 (file no. 33:-148320))

Indemnification Priority and Information Sharing ié@ment, dated as of June 30, 2009,
among Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P., the fundsed therein and Dollar General
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibi4® to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (file no. 33-161464))

Calculation of Fixed Charge Rat

List of Subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporat

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking
Powers of Attorney (included as part of the sigreapages heret
Certifications of CEO and CFO under Exchange AdeRiB:14(a)
Certifications of CEO and CFO under 18 U.S.C. 1

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Docurr

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

*

Management Contract or Compensatory |
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Exhibit 10.26

Limited Waiver of Certain Tax and Tax GrossUp Rights

Reference is made to the Amended and Restated Emeid Agreement, effective April 23, 2010 (the “ Aloyment Agreemerid),
between Dollar General Corporation, a Tennessq@cation (the “ Compan}), and Richard Dreiling (* Executiv8. Terms not otherwise
defined herein shall have the meanings ascribeétihén the Employment Agreement.

In consideration for a onme salary adjustment, effective January 1, 2&X&cutive hereby forever waives the following righiut
solely with respect to the tax and tax gross-upigions, as set forth in Sections 5(f) and 5(gbhef Employment Agreement:

5(f) ....The Company shall pay Executive's reabiméegal fees incurred in connection with any
consultation with an attorney regarding this Agreai(up to $15,000), “grossed up” for all fedenadia
state income and employment taxes (and for suastar such gross-up payment), to the extent arty suc
amount is taxable to Executive, no later than tiek & the applicable calendar year in which theeeges
were incurred.

5(g) ....To the extent the Company’s payment onb@rsement of Executive’s expenses in relatiohiso
professional club memberships are required to tledied in Executive’s income for income tax purmose
or as wages for employment tax purposes, the Coynpainpay to Executive an amount necessary to
“gross-up” Executive for state and federal incomd amployment tax purposes (and for such taxes on
such gross-up payment), which gross-up amount beglaid to Executive no later than the end of the
applicable calendar year in which the expenses imerered.

The foregoing limited waiver will become effectivanuary 1, 2013. If the one-time salary adjustmefierenced above is not
implemented for any reason, the foregoing limitedwer will not become effective. Executive shadt be deemed to have waived any other
rights contained in the Employment Agreement, idicig any rights set forth in Sections 5(f) and Sfwreto, that do not pertain to the
specific tax and tax gross-up rights referenced/abo

Date: 12/3/2012 /s/ Richard W. Dreiling
Richard W. Dreilinc

Date: 12/3/201Z2 Accepted: DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Bob Ravene
Name: Bob Raven
Title: EVP, Chief People Perst




Exhibit 12

Dollar General Corporation
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, Combined Figbdrges and Preferred Stock Dividends(1)

Fiscal Year Ended

January 30, January 29, January 28, February 3, February 1,
2009 2010 2011 2012(2) 2013
Earnings(3)
Income before income tax $ 194 3 552.1 $ 985.C $ 12250 $ 1,497.¢
Fixed Charges, exclusive of capitalized inte 513.7 505.7 471.° 437. 409.1
$ 708.1 $ 1,057.¢ $ 1,456.! $ 1,663.C $ 1,906.
Fixed Charges(3
Interest charged to exper $ 391¢ % 3457 $ 274, $ 205.C $ 127.¢
Interest factor on rental expense 121.¢ 160.( 197.% 232. 281.2
513.7 505.% 471.F 437.7 409.1
Interest capitalize = — — 195 0.€
$ 513.7 $ 505.7 $ 4715 $ 439.2 $ 409.7
Ratio of earnings to fixed charg 1.4x 2.1x 3.1x 3.8x 4.7x

(1) During the periods indicated, we had no outstandhmyes of preferred stock. Accordingly, our histgrratio of earnings to fixed
charges, combined fixed charges and preferred stivadends is the same as our ratio of earnindixéal charges in all periods.

(2) The fiscal year ended February 3, 2012 was conpn§&3 weeks.

(3) For purposes of computing the ratio of earningxded charges, (a) earnings consist of income JIbefore income taxes, plus fix
charges less capitalized expenses related to iedieb$s (amortization expense for capitalized iatésenot significant) and (b) fixed
charges consist of interest expense (whether ergesrscapitalized), the amortization of debt issgarosts and discounts related to
indebtedness, and the interest portion of rent rsge

(4) The portion of rent expense representative of ésteis based on the present value of the futuselpayments discounted at 10%.




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name of Entity

(as of March 22, 2013)

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation/Organization

Exhibit 21

DC Financial, LLC
Dolgencorp, LLC (f/k/a Dolgencorp, Inc

DG Louisiana, LLC(10
Dolgencorp of New York, Inc
Dolgencorp of Texas, Inc.(:
Dolgen I, Inc.
Dolgen Il, Inc.
Dolgen lll, Inc.
Dolgen California, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic IV, LL(C
Dolgen Midwest, LLC (f/k/a DG Strategic Ill, LLC)J:
DG eCommerce, LLC (f/k/a Strategic V, LL!
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic I, LLC
DG Strategic VI, LLC
DG Strategic VII, LLC
DG Strategic VIII, LLC
DG Transportation, Inc

DG Logistics, LLC(3)
South Boston Holdings, In:

Sur-Dollar, L.P.(4)
South Boston FF&E, LLC(E

DG Promotions, Inc

DG Retail, LLC(6)

Dollar General Partners('
Ashley River Insurance Company, h
DGC Holdings, LLC
Dollar General Global Sourcing Limited(
Dollar General Literacy Foundation(
Retail Property Investments, LL
Retail Risk Solutions, LL(

(1) A corporation in which the sole shareholder is Di@&atggic |, LLC.

(2) A limited liability company in which DG Strategi¢lLLC is the sole member.
(3) A limited liability company in which DG Transporian, Inc. is the sole member.

Tennesse
Kentucky
Tennesse
Kentucky
Kentucky
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Tennesse
Delaware
California
Delaware
Tennesse
Tennesse
Kentucky
South Carolin¢
Delaware
Hong Kong
Tennesse
Delaware
Tennesse

(4) A limited partnership in which the general partiseBouth Boston Holdings, Inc. and the limited partis Dollar General Corporation.
(5) A limited liability company in which Sun-Dollar, B. is the sole member.

(6) A limited liability company in which DG PromotionBjc. is the sole member.

(7) Held 99.9% by Dollar General Corporation and 0.3#®kC Holdings, LLC.
(8) A nonprofit, public benefit membership corporatiarwhich Dollar General Corporation is the sole nbem
(9) A general partnership in which the general partaeesDG Strategic VI, LLC and DG Promotions, Inc.

(10) A limited liability company in which Dolgencorp, I is the sole member.




Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-D8&ertaining to the Shelf Registration Statenuéidollar General Corporation and
its Affiliates,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-D832ertaining to the Amended and Restated 200akStaentive Plan for Key
Employees of Dollar General Corporation and itsilisfies,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-B5)fpertaining to the 2007 Stock Incentive Plankey Employees of Dollar General
Corporation and its Affiliates,

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-83)(pertaining to the Dollar General Corporatio®8 $tock Incentive Plan,
(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-#9)@ertaining to the Dollar General CorporationfZBERP Plan, and

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-#F)(@ertaining to the Dollar General Corporatio®2®tock Incentive Plan for Key
Employees of Dollar General Corporation and itsilisfies

of our reports dated March 25, 2013, with respethé consolidated financial statements of Dollan&al Corporation and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of Daxl General Corporation included in this Annual BegForm 10-K) of Dollar General
Corporation for the year ended February 1, 2013.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF

Nashville, Tennesse

March 25, 201




Exhibit 31
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Richard W. Dreiling, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Hoflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cormajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itite a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tesigned under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipor, or caused such internal control over finahi@porting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registiadisclosure controls and procedures and presentbis report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s bodrdicectors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 25, 2013 /s/ Richard W. Dreilinc
Richard W. Dreiling
Chief Executive Office




I, David M. Tehle, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-oflar General Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@aynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$odimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presentec
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1B§d)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tlesigned under
our supervision, to ensure that material informati@lating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsdtsclosure controls and procedures and presémtads report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regstsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finateeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectriagistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significésin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 25, 2013 /s/ David M. Tehle
David M. Tehle
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATIONS
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies thatsdkhbwledge the Annual Report on Form 10-K forfiteeal year ended February 1, 2013 of
Dollar General Corporation (the “Company”) filedtiwthe Securities and Exchange Commission on tteetdaeof fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéearExchange Act of 1934 and that the informationtained in such report fairly presents,
in all material respects, the financial conditiodaesults of operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard W. Dreilin¢
Name:Richard W. Dreilinc
Title: Chief Executive Office
Date: March 25, 201:

/s/ David M. Tehle
Name:David M. Tehle

Title: Chief Financial Office
Date: March 25, 201:




